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Corporate Office

Classic Complex,
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

CEO

Mr. Pravin Raman Parajuli

Appointed Actuaries
Mr. Philip Jackson

Re-Insurer
M/S Hanover Re,Malaysia/
Nepal Re-Insurance Co. Ltd.
Himalayan Re-Insurance Co. Ltd

Beema
Samiti License Date

2058-01-04

YTl ST

foratos olloar zacar .

Registered Office

Birgunj, Parsa

Principal Activities

Life Insurance Business

DCEO
Mr. Amit Kumar Keyal

Auditors-External

M/S SAR Associates,
Chartered Accountants

PAN No.
500063433

Authorized Capital
10 Arab

CORPORATE INFORMATION

(as on 31* Ashad, 2080)

Chairman
Mr. Govind Lal Sanghai

Company Secretary
Mr. Binod Kumar Bhujel

Auditors-Internal

M/S.R. Pandey and Co.,
Chartered Accountants

Company Redg. No.
700/056/57

Paid Up Capital
8.20 Arab
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SAR.

ASSOCIATES

/ CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited (the
“Company”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 16,
2022), and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for qualified opinion section of our
report, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Company as at Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022), and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for qualified opinion

The company had collected premium on issuance of right shares in FY 2066/67 and issuance of further
public offering (FPO) of shares on premium in FY 2073/74. Premium amounting to NPR 4,106,804,120was
distributed as bonus shares from financial years 2073/74 to FY 2076/77. The company has paid, in FY
2080/81, an amount of NPR 1,026,701,030 as tax, as per the provision of Finance Act 2080/81 read with
Section 56 (3) of Income Tax Act, 2058. Provision of such tax impact made in FY 2078/79, has been routed
through Statement of Profit or Loss as prior year tax expenses instead of routing them through equity as
required by para 61A of NAS 12, Income Taxes, which requires current tax and deferred tax to be recognized
out of profit or loss if the tax relates to items that are recognized, in the same or different period, outside
profit or loss. This has resulted in understatement of Net Profit by NPR 1,026,701,030.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our Report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
ICAN’s Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and ICAN’s Handbook of Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
the audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.

8. N | Key Audit Maiters Auditor’s Response
T Investment Valuation, Identification, and | Our audit approach regarding verification of process of
Impairment investment valuation, identification and impairment

NRFS - Investment of the company comprises of | included:

investment in in quoted equity instruments, a. Review of the investment of company and its valuation

debentures, mutual funds, fixed deposits of & ; .
financial institutions. The valuation of the aforesaid having reference to NFRS issued by the Accounting
Standard Board of Nepal.

securities has been done in compliance with NAS
39 read with NFRS 9. The investment in the | b. We assessed the nature of expected cash flow of the
government and NRB bonds and T-bills should be investments as well as the business model adopted by

recognized on reporting date on Amortized cost the management on the basis of available
basis whereas other investments in equity evidence/circumstances and ensured that classification
instruments, other than those held for trading, of investment is commensurate with nature of cash
should be valued at Fair Value through Other flow and management intention of holding the
Comprehensive Income.
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investment.
c. For the investment valuation that are donme at
- . i d izati
flow, the business model adopted, complexity of amortized cost, we checked the EIR and amortization

calculations and the significance of amount schedule _O“ el
involved in such investments, same has been | d. For the investment valued through OCI for quoted

Given the varieties of treatments recommended for
valuation of investment based on nature of cash

considered as Key Audit Matter in our audit. investment, we ensured that fair valuation has been
done at the closing transaction rate in NEPSE as on
16.07.2022,
2, Information Technology General Controls Our audit approach regarding Information technology of

IT conirols with respect to recording of | company is based upen the Inforination Technology
{ransactions, generating wvarious reports in | Guidelines 2076 issued by Nepal Insurance Authority
compliance with Nepal Insurance Authority | and it included:

guidelines and other compliances to regulators is
an important part of the process. Such reporting is
highly dependent on the effective working of

a. Understanding the coding system adopted by company
for various categories of products

Software and other allied systems. b. Understanding the feeding of the data in the system

and going through the extraction of the financial
We have considered this as key audit matier as any information and statements from the IT system
control lapses, validation failures, incorrect input existing in company

data and wrong extraction of data may result in
wrong reporting of data to the management,
shareholders and regulators

c. Checking of the user requirements for any changes in
the regulations/ policy of the company

d. Reviewed the reports generated by the system on
sammple basis. We  verified the premium
income/expense and claim payment in regard to
policies issued and claim intimated on test basis

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in Annual Report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's
report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatement
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could




reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform andit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtained audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audif in order to design andit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the management,

¢ Conelude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncerlainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease fo continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonahbly be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the maiters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on the requirements of Companies Act 2063, Insurance Act 2079 and Directives of
Nepal Insurance Authority

We have obtained satisfactory information and explanations asked for, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; the returns received from the branch offices of the
company, though the statements are independently not audited, were adequate for the purpose of the audit;
the consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2063, and they are in agreement with the books of accounts of the company; and the accounts
and records of the company are properly maintained in accordance with the prevailing laws.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, in the course of our audit, we
observed that adequate amount have been set aside for insurance fund and other statutory reserves as per
Nepal Insurance Authority (the then Insurance Board) Directives; the business of the company was
conducted satisfactorily in line with the Nepal Insurance Authority Directives, the company has not




conducted any business other than insurance business and has not issued any unauthorized policies and its
transactions were found to be within the scope of its authority. We did not come across cases of where the
company has acted against the interest of insured and investors. Further, company’s internal control system
is reasonably adequate, and we did not come across cases of accounting related fraud and the cases where the
board of directors or any director or any office bearer of the Company has acted contrary to the provisions of
law, caused loss or damage to the company, or committed any misappropriation of the funds of company.
Also, the company has provided required financial and other information to its shareholders and company
appears to be able to serve its long-term liabilities out of its assets.

Sunir Kumar Dhungel
Managing Partner

Date: January 21, 2024
Place: Kathmandu

UDIN: 240122CA00109wJQS2




Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

1. General Information

"Nepal Life Insurance Limited (herein after referred to as the ‘Company’) was incorporated on 2055/10/18
B.S. (01/02/1999 A.D) and operated as life insurance company after obtaining license on 2058/01/04 B.S.
(17/04/2001 A.D.) under the Insurance Act 2049. The ownership structure among the paid up capital is

51:49 of promoters group and general public. The company has 203,902 general public shareholders till

the end of this financial year. The company has insured itself with well-known reinsurance company

Hannover Rueck SE, Germany in Malaysian branch, Nepal Re-insurance company and Himalayan Re-

insurance company Limited. The registered office of the Company is located at Birgunj, Parsa, Nepal. The

Company's shares are listed on Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd. The financial statements are approved for issue
by the Company's Board of Directors on 2078/10/21 ."

2. Basis of Preparation

a.

Statement of Compliance

"The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) issued by the Nepal Accounting Standards Board
(ASB), as per the provisions of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal Act, 1997.
These confirm, in material respect, to NFRS as issued by the Nepal Accounting Standards
Board. The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The term
NERS, includes all the standards and the related interpretations which are consistently used.
Further the directions issued by the Insurance regulatory authority of Nepal [Beema Samiti] on Poush
12, 2075 with respect to preparation of financials as per NFRS, though strictly not in line with the
NERS, have also be incorporated appropriately."

Basis of Measurement

"The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for following Assets
& Liabilities which have been measured at Fair Value amount:

i. Certain Financial Assets & Liabilities which are required to be measured at fair value
ii. Defined Employee Benefits

iii. Insurance Contract Liabilities which are required to be determined using actuarial valuation for
Liability Adequacy Test (LAT).

Historical cost is generally Fair Value of the consideration given in exchange for goods & services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is

directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique."

"In addition, for Financial Reporting purposes, Fair Value measurements are categorized into Level 1,
or 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the Fair Value measurements are observable & the

significance of the inputs to the Fair Value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

* Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical Assets or Liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date;
Equity shares are measured as per last traded price on stock market.

* Level 2: Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the Asset or Liability, either directly or indirectly; and
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* Level 3: Inputs are unobservable inputs for the Asset or Liability.

Unquoted equity shares are measured at cost."

c. Use of Estimates

The preparation of these Financial Statements in conformity with NFRS requires management to
make estimates, judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the
reported balances of Assets & Liabilities, disclosures relating to Contingent Liabilities as at the date
of the Financial Statements and the reported amounts of Income & Expenses for the years presented.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Changes in estimates are reflected in the Financial Statements in the period
in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the Notes to the financial

statements.
d. Functional and Presentation Currency

These Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except
where indicated otherwise.

e. Going Concern

The Financial Statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The Board of Directors have considered
a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of
profitability, cash flows and capital resources while assessing the going concern basis. Furthermore,
Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operations of it.

f. Changes in Accounting Policies

Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the
Company in preparing and presenting financial statements. The Company is permitted to change
an accounting policy only if the change is required by a standard or interpretation; or results in the
Financial Statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of transactions,

other events or conditions on the entity's financial position, financial performance, or cash flows.
g. Change in Accounting Policies
"Accounting standards issued and effective

All the accounting standards made effective by ASB Nepal is applied for preparing financial
statement of the company.

Accounting standards issued and non-effective
IFRS 17 - Insurane Contracts"
h. Carve-outs

Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. As per the Carve Outs (Carve out No.3) issued by
Accounting standards Board of Nepal (ASB) dated November 20, 2019 (Mangsir 04, 2076) allowed
alternative treatment for operating lease as below which is followed in the current FY 2018/19:

Lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term unless either:

(a) another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit even if the
payments to the lessors are not on that basis; or
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(b) The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to

compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If payments to the lessor vary
because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not met.

The company has not applied any carve-outs provided by the Accounting Standard Board (ASB)

3. Significant unting Policies:

This note provides a list of the significant policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial

Statements.

a. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

i

ii.

Recognition

"Freehold land is carried at historical cost and other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation when, it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and it can be used for
more than one year and the cost can be measured reliably.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it meets the recognition criteria as mentioned above. The carrying amount
of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of profit or loss during the reporting period in

which they are incurred."

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment other than Freehold Land i.e. the Company’s
Freehold Building, Plant & Machinery, Vehicles & Other Assets is provided on "Straight Line
Method (SLM) based on Useful Life estimated by technical expert of the management.

"The Assets Useful Life/ Rate of Depreciation and Residual Values are reviewed at
the Reporting date and the effect of any changes in estimates are accounted for on a
prospective basis. The value of assets fully depreciated but continued to be in use is
considered not material. Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment
are determined by reference to their carrying amount and are included in profit or loss.
Capital items costing to less than NPR 10,000 has been treated as revenue expenditure in the year
of purchase."

Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment based on SLM is categorised as stated below:

List of Asset Categories "Useful Life (In Years) for SLM"

Land Not Applicable
Buildings 50
Leasehold Improvement 5
Furniture & Fixtures 4
Furniture & Fixtures (heavy) 15
Computers and IT Equipments 4
Office Equipment 4
Vehicles 7
Plant & Machinery 8
Plant & Machinery (heavy) 15

iii. Derecognition

An item of Property and Equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no Future Economic
Benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on
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the disposal or retirement of an item of Property and Equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in the Statement
of Profit or Loss.

iv. Impairment of Assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by
which the Asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets.
Assets that suffer an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end
of each reporting period. In case of such reversal, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
so as not to exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had there been no
impairment loss.

v. Capital Work-In-Progress

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant
and machinery and system development which are to be capitalized. Capital Work in Progress
would be transferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use. Capital Work in Progress is
stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

b. Intangible Assets
i. Recognition
"Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles,
excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure
is reflected in Statement of profit or loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.
Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future

economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is
expensed as incurred."

ii. Amortization

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. An intangible
asset shall be regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on an analysis of all of the
relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected generate
net cash inflow for the entity.

Amortisation is recognised in statement of profit or loss on straight line method (SLM) over the
estimated useful life of the intangible assets, from the date that it is available for use since this most
closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied
in the asset. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful
life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset
are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Useful Life of Intangible Assets based on SLM is categorised as stated below:

List of Assets Categories Useful Life (In Years) for SLM

Softwares 5

Licenses License Period
Others (to be Specified)

iii. Derecognition
An Intangible Asset is derecognised when no Future Economic Benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on the derecognition is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in
the Statement of Profit or Loss.

iv. Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that Intangible
Assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. An impairment loss is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk

specific to the assets.
c. Investment Properties
Cost Model

Property that is held for rental income or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as investment
property. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including related transaction cost. It is
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to
the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. Land is carried at historical cost, however, buildings
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives as mentioned above. The value of investment property
as on 16th July, 2022 is Rs. 408,215,876 as per the cost model of accounting. However, fair value of the
investment property namely ‘Nepal Life Building’ is Rs. 889,849,000 as per the valuation provided by
the independent valuator as on 26th November, 2020. Additionally, the company has purchased an
additional investment property with amout Rs. 181,125,000 during this financial year."

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of, or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected
from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are

recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer
from investment property to PPE, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the
date of change in use. If PPE becomes an investment property, the Company accounts for such property
in accordance with the policy stated under PPE up to the date of change in use.

d. Cash & Cash Equivalent

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, Cash & Cash Equivalents includes

Cash In Hand, Bank Balances and short term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.
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e. Financial Assets

i. Initial Recognition & Measurement

"Financial Assets are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of
its Financial Assets at initial recognition. When Financial Assets are recognized initially, they are
measured at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial Assets not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisation of the Financial Asset. Transaction costs of
Financial Assets carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit

or Loss."

ii. Subsequent Measurement

a. Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost (AC)

A Financial Asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income
from these financial assets is measured using effective interest rate method.

The following investments are classified under investment measured at amortized cost
category.

i. Investment in debentures

ii. Investment in bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/Guaranteed by Nepal Government)

iii. Fixed deposits of "A" clsss financial institutions

iv. Fixed deposits in "B" class financial institutions

b. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling Financial Assets and the
contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These financial
assets are measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement of other comprehensive

income."

c. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at
FVTPL. These financial assets are measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement
of profit or loss.

The company has categorized following investments as Financial Assets at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss (FVTPL):

i. Investment in equity instruments
ii. Investment in mutual funds
iii. De-Recognition

A Financial Asset is derecognized only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive
cash flows from the Financial Asset. Where the Company has transferred an Asset, the Company
evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
Financial Asset. In such cases, the Financial Asset is derecognized. Where the Company has not
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the Financial Asset, the Financial
Asset is not derecognized. Where the Company retains control of the Financial Asset, the Asset is

continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the Financial Asset.
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iv.

Impairment of Financial Assets

"The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has
occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
On the objective evidence of test of impairment, Financial Assets except Loan to Agents were not
found impaired. The impairment testing of Loan to Agents has been carried out on individual
basis considering the repayment history of each loan and the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash

flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate"

f. Financial Liabilities

i

ii.

iii.

Initial Recognition & Measurement

"Financial Liabilities are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of
its Financial Liabilities at initial recognition.

All Financial Liabilities are recognized initially at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial Liabilities
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of the
Financial Liability."

Subsequent Measurement

"After initial recognition, Financial Liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the Effective Interest Method.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the date of Statement of Financial
Position, the carrying amounts approximate Fair value due to short maturity of these

instruments."

De-Recognition

A Financial Liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing Financial Liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability

and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

g. Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial

position where there is legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an

intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally

enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal

course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the

counterparty.
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h. Reinsurance Assets

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial

position where there is legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an

intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally

enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal

course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the

counterparty.
i. Equity

Financial Instruments issued by the Company are classified as Equity only to the extent that they do

not meet the definition of a Financial Liability or Financial Asset.

j- Reserves and Funds

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

vi.

vii.

viii.

Share Premium

If the Company issues share capital at premium it receives extra amount other than share capital
such amount is transferred to share premium. The amount in share premium is allowed for
distribution of bonus shares.

Catastrophe Reserves

The Company has allocated catastrophe reserve for the amount which is 10% of the distributable
profit for the year as per Regulator's Directive.

Fair Value Reserves

The Company has policy of creating fair value reserve equal to the amount of Fair Value Gain
recognized in statement of other comprehensive income as per regulator’s directive.However,

company does not have any FV reserve as on reporting date.

Regulatory Reserves

Reserve created out of net profit in line with different circulars issued by Insurance Board.
Actuarial Reserves

Reseserve against actuarial gain or loss on present value of defined benefit obligation resuting from,
experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous actuarial assumptions and
what has actually occurred); and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions.

Cashflow Hedge Reserves

Is the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk associated with
all or a component of a recognized asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction, and
could affect profit or loss. Reserve represent effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument recognized in other comprehensive income.

Revaluation Reserves

Reserve created against revaluation gain on property, plant & equipments & intangible assets,
other than the reversal of earlier revalaution losses charged to profit or loss.

Deferred Tax Reserves

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of

assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes

k. Insurance Contract Liabilities

i

Provision for unearned premiuins

Unearned premiums reserve represents the portion of the premium written in the year but relating

to the unexpired term of coverage.
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it.

iii.

Change in reserve for unearned insurance premium represents the net portion of the gross written
premium transferred to the unearned premium reserve during the year to cover the unexpired

period of the polices."

Outstanding claims provisions

Outstanding claims provisions are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred
but not settled at the statement of financial position date, whether reported or not, together with

related claims handling costs. "

Unapportioned surplus

Unapportioned surplus where the amount are yet to be allocated or distributed to either
policyholders or shareholders by the end of the financial period, and held within the insurance

contract liabilities."
"Liability adequacy

At each reporting date, the Company performs a liability adequacy test to determine the adequacy
of its technical provisioning for its life insurance-related liabilities. The calculation uses current
estimates of future contractual cash flows and other relevant cash flows of each individual policy.
The cash flows are discounted back at a rate mandated by the regulator. The discount rate used is
lower than management’s estimate of realistic fund-based yields. The estimates of the cashflows
further allow for a margin of adverse deviation. Liability adequacy tests based on available data

show that provisions formed at the aggregate level are adequate."

l.  Employee Benefits

i

1.

Short Term Obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are

presented as current employee benefit obligations in the Statement of Financial Position.

Post-Employment Benefits
- Defined Contribution Plan

The Company pays Provident Fund contributions to publicly administered Provident Funds as per
local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contribution

are recognized as Employee Benefit Expense when they are due.
- Defined Benefit Plan

For Defined Benefit Plan, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit
Credit Method, with Actuarial Valuations being carried out at each Statement of Financial Position.
Actuarial Gains & Losses are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income in the period in
which they occur. Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are
already vested and otherwise is amortized on a Straight Line Basis over the average period until
the benefits become vested. The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Statement of
Financial Position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for
unrecognized past service cost, as reduced by the Fair Value of plan Assets (If Any). Any Asset
resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available

refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan.
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iii.

iv.

Long Term Employee Benefits

The liabilities for un-availed earned leaves are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. Leave Encashment
has been computed using Actuarial Assumptions and these are measured at the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end
of the year using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The benefits are discounted using the market
yields at the end of the year that have terms approximating to the terms of assumptions.

Termination

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the
normal retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary retirement in exchange of these

benefits. The Company recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:
a. When the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and

b. When the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of NAS 37 and
involves the payment of termination benefits.

The termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept

the offer in case of voluntary retirement scheme.

m. Revenue Recognition

i

ii.

1il.

iv.

Gross Premium

Gross premiums are recognised as soon as the amount of the premiums can be reliably measured.
First premium is recognised from inception date. At the end of the financial year, all due premiums

are accounted for to the extent that they can be reliably measured.

Unearned Premium Reserves

Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of
risk after the reporting date. Unearned premiums are calculated on a pro rata basis. The proportion

attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums.

Reinsurance Premium

"Reinsurance premiums written comprise the total premiums payable for the whole cover provided
by contracts entered into the period and are recognized on the date on which the policy incepts.
Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of reinsurance
contracts incepting in prior accounting periods. Unearned reinsurance premiums are those
proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after the reporting date.

Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been
presented as negative items within premiums and net benefits and claims, respectively, because

this is consistent with how the business is managed."

Fees and commission income

Commission Income are recognised on accrual basis. If the income is for future periods, then they
are deferred and recognised over those future periods.

Investment income

"Interest income is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated
by using the EIR method. Fees and commissions that are an integral part of the effective
yield of the financial asset are recognised as an adjustment to the EIR of the instrument.

Investment income also includes dividends when the right to receive payment is established."
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vi.

Net realised gains and losses

Net realised gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss include gains and losses
on financial assets and properties. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as
the difference between net sales proceeds and the original or amortised cost and are recorded on
occurrence of the sale transaction.

n. Benefit, Claims and Expenses

i

it.

Gross Benefits and Claims

Benefits and claims includes the cost of all claims arising during the year, including external claims
handling costs that are directly related to processing and settlements of claims. Benefits and claims
that are incurred during the financial year are recognised when a claimable event occurs and/or
the insurer is notified. Death, surrender and other benefits without due dates are treated as claims
payable, on the date of receipt of intimation of death of the assured or occurrence of contingency
covered

Reinsurance Claims

Reinsurance claims are recognised according to the terms of relevant contracts at the time of
recognising related gross insurance claim.

0. Product Classification

"Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant

insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if

a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general

guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk by comparing benefits paid

withbenefits payableif theinsured eventdid notoccur. Insurance contracts canalso transfer financial risk.

The Company has following portfolios under which it operates its business:"

i

ii.

iii.

iv.

Endowment

This is a with profit plan that makes provisions for the family of the Life Assured in event of
his early death and also assures a lump sum at a desired age on maturity. It costs moderate
premiums, has high liquidity and in savings oriented.This plan is apt for people of all ages and
social groups who wish to protect their families from a financial setback that may occur owing to
their demise.

Anticipated

This scheme provides for specific periodic payments of partial survival benefits during the term
of the policy itself so long as the policy holder is alive. It is therefore suitable to meet specified
financial requirements needed for occasions like Brata bandha, Academic Graduations etc. An
important feature of plan is that in the event of death at any time within the policy term, the death
claim comprises full sum assured without deducting any of the survival benefit amounts, which
have already been paid. It is also with profit plan.

Endowment Cum Whole Life

This plan is a combination of Endowment Assurance and Whole Life with profit plan. It provides
financial protection against death throughout the lifetime of the life assured with the provision of

payment of a lump sum at the maturity of the policy to the assured in case of his survival.

Whole Life

This plan is a combination of Endowment Assurance and Whole Life with profit plan. It provides
financial protection against death throughout the lifetime of the life assured with the provision of
payment of a lump sum at the maturity of the policy to the assured in case of his survival.
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v. Foreign Employment Term

Term life insurance, also known as pure life insurance, is life insurance that guarantees payment
of a stated death benefit during a specified term. Once the term expires, the policyholder can
renew it for another term, convert the policy to permanent coverage, or allow the policy to
terminate.

vi. Other Term
Term life insurance, also known as pure life insurance, is life insurance that guarantees payment of
a stated death benefit during a specified term. Once the term expires, the policyholder can renew
it for another term, convert the policy to permanent coverage, or allow the policy to terminate.
vii. Special
Special Term insurance is a modified version of term insurance with added benefits.
viii. Others to be Specified

Life insurance policies other than above mentioned products are classified as others.
p- Borrowing Costs

"Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure

on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are

incurred."
q. Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flows are reported using the direct method, whereby major classes of cash receipts and cash
payments are disclosed as cash flows.

r. Leases

"Lease Identifying a lease At the inception of a contract, the company assesses whether the contract
is, or contains, a lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to use
of a specific asset or assets for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The insurance company
has applied accounting for lease component with the true spirit of NFRS 16 which states that a lessee

(Insurance) has the right to direct the use of an identified asset if either:

a. The lessee has the right to direct how and for what purpose the asset is used throughout its period
of use; or

b. The relevant decisions about use are pre-determined and the lessee has the right to operate the
asset throughout the period of use without the lessor having the right to change these operating
instructions.

With a very few exceptions, NFRS 16 abolishes the distinction between an operating lease and a fi
nance lease in the fi nancial statements of lessees. Hence, the bank recognizes the right of use asset and
an associated liability at the inception of the lease.

a. Right of use asset

The Insurance Company measures the right-of-use asset initially at the amount of the lease liability
plus any initial direct costs incurred by the bank. The Company has made adjustments required
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for lease incentives, payments at or prior to commencement and restoration obligations or similar.
After lease commencement, the company shall measure the right-of-use asset using a cost model.
Under the cost model a right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line method from
the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of
the lease term. The Company determines the estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets on the same
basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by

impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.
b. Lease Liability:

The Insurance Company measures lease liability initially at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate. The lease liability is

subsequently re-measured to reflect changes in:
i. The lease term (using a revised discount rate)
ii. The assessment of a purchase option (using a revised discount rate)

iii. The amounts expected to be payable under residual value guarantees (using an unchanged discount

rate); or

iv. Future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or a rate used to determine those

payments (using an unchanged discount rate).

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost and is re-measured when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a change in discounting rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under the lease, or if the Company changes its assessment of
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option under the contract of lease. When
the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profi t or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-

use asset has been reduced to zero."
s. Income Taxes
Income Tax Expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable & Deferred Tax.

i.  Current Tax

Current Tax Expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses
relate. Provision for Current Income Tax is made for the Tax Liability payable on Taxable Income
after considering tax allowances, deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the

applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.

ii. Deferred Tax

"Deferred Tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of Assets
& Liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position and their tax bases. Deferred Tax Assets &
Liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax
base of Assets & Liabilities and their carrying amount in Financial Statements, except when the
Deferred Tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill, an Asset or Liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable Profits or Loss at the
time of the transaction.

Deferred Tax Assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible Temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.
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Deferred Tax Liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable Temporary differences.

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the Deferred Tax Asset to be utilized."

t. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

i. Provisions

"Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Provisions are measured at the present value of management’'s best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.
The discount rate to determine the present value is a Pre-Tax Rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.
Provisions for Contingent Liability are recognized in the books as a matter of abundant precaution
and conservative approach based on management's best estimate. However, Management believes
that chances of these matters going against the company are remote and there will not be any
probable cash outflow."

ii. Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events due to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms
of future outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made.

Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis and only those having a largely probable outflow of
resources are provided for.

iii. Contingent Assets
Contingent assets where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company.
These are not recognized but disclosed in the Financial Statements.

u. Functional Currency & Foreign Currency Transactions

The Financial Statements of the Company are presented in Nepalese Rupees, which is the Company’s
Functional Currency. In preparing the Financial Statements of the Company, transactions in currencies
other than the Company’s Functional Currency i.e. Foreign Currencies are recognized at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

v. Earnings Per Share

"Basic Earning per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company
by the Weighted Average Number of equity shares outstanding during the Financial Year.
For diluted earning per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares."

w. Operating Segment

"Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker (CODM) as defined by NFRS 8, “Operating Segment”.

Company’s Income & Expenses including interest are considered as part of un-allocable Income
& Expenses which are not identifiable to any business segment. Company’s Asset & Liabilities are

considered as part of un-allocable Assets & Liabilities which are not identifiable to any business.
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NEFRSs based Financial Statements
Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As At Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Annexure |

Fig. in NPR
- [ Grwp |  InsuranceCompany |
| Notes | CurrentYear | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year |
Assets
Intangible Assets 4 10,075,919 1,742,927 9,544,772 1,742,927
Property, Plant and Equipment 5 248,623,661 76,164,497 228,384,886 76,164,497
Investment Properties 6 408,215,876 231,011,856 408,215,876 231,011,856
Deferred Tax Assets 7 175,150,513 - 163,645,670 -
Investment in Subsidiaries 8 - - 153,000,000 -
Investment in Associates 9 - - - -
Investments 10 115,472,159,344 92,712,565,682 | 115,323,834,337 | 92,712,565,682
Loans 11 25,463,368,952 20,973,488,892 | 25,463,368,952 | 20,973,488,892
Reinsurance Assets 12 - - - -
Current Tax Assets (Net) 21 264,835,404 2,298,363,630 259,573,901 2,298,363,630
Insurance Receivables 13 132,061,189 95,295,016 132,061,189 95,295,016
Other Assets 14 214,230,754 188,525,163 214,149,151 188,525,163
Other Financial Assets 15 3,862,675,586 4,185,612,417 3,856,221,137 4,185,612,417
Cash and Cash Equivalents 16 4,420,534,351 6,495,853,384 4,369,735,487 6,495,853,384
Total Assets 150,671,931,549 | 127,258,623,464 | 150,581,735,357 | 127,258,623,464
Equity & Liabilities
Equity
Share Capital 17 (a) 8,207,966,554 7,199,970,661 8,207,966,554 7,199,970,661
Share Application Money 17 (b) ) ) _ }
Pending Allotment
Share Premium 17 (c) 43,839,625 47,101,709 43,839,625 47,101,709
Catastrophe Reserves 17 (d) 838,236,643 829,247,601 838,236,643 829,247,601
Retained Earnings 17 (e) (159,131,061) 2,423,940,804 (124,936,856) 2,423,940,804
Other Equity 17 (f) 736,865,791 583,688,671 736,263,798 583,688,671
Total Equity attributable to 9,667,777,552 | 11,083,949,447 |  9,701,369,764 | 11,083,949,447
equity holders
Non Controlling Interest 114,649,895
Total Equity 9,782,427,447 | 11,083,949,447 9,701,369,764 11,083,949,447
Liabilities
Provisions 18 321,605,553 285,987,057 321,605,553 285,987,057
Gross Insurance Contract 19 136,131,498,662 | 112,551,812,626 | 136,131,498,662 | 112,551,812,626
Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liabilities 7 - 78,880,827 - 78,880,827
Insurance Payables 20 219,844,104 265,696,637 219,844,104 265,696,637
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 21 - - - -
Loans and Borrowings 22 - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities 23 1,920,323,391 2,018,119,313 1,911,188,611 2,018,119,313
Other Liabilities 24 2,296,232,393 974,177,557 2,296,228,663 974,177,557
Total Liabilities 140,889,504,102 | 116,174,674,017 | 140,880,365,592 | 116,174,674,017
Total Equity and Liabilities 150,671,931,549 | 127,258,623,464 | 150,581,735,357 | 127,258,623,464
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date
Pravin Raman Parajuli Govind Lal Sanghai Directors Sunir Kumar Dhungel
Chief Executive Officer Chairman Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal Managing Partner
Vivek Agrawal SAR Associates
Zoya Khan Prem Prasad Regmi Bimal Prasad Dhakal Chartered Accountants

Head- Account & Finance

Date: 2080/10/07
Address: Kathmandu

AGM-Account & Finance

Parul Dhakal

Shakti Kumar Golyan

Krishna Raj Lamichhane
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For The Year Ended Ashadh 32, 2079
(For The Year Ended July 16, 2022)

Fig. in NPR
[ | Gruwp |  InsuranceCompany |
| Notes | CurrentYear | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year |

Income:
Gross Earned Premiums 25 35,489,383,739 32,367,058,650 35,489,383,739 32,367,058,650
Premiums Ceded 26 (453,556,709) (417,137,005) (453,556,709) (417,137,005)
Net Earned Premiums 27 35,035,827,030 | 31,949,921,645 | 35,035,827,030 | 31,949,921,645
Fees and Commission Income 28 476,625,546 335,374,649 476,625,546 335,374,649
Investment Income 29 12,095,203,020 9,347,151,550 |  12,090,788,588 9,347,151,550
gﬁ;f;;‘s/ (1EeEE )N Ol 30 (859,100,140) 674,590,687 | (785,824,051) 674,590,687
Net Realised Gains/ (Losses) 31 10,634,932 1,005,717,707 9,118,622 1,005,717,707
Other Income 32 13,791,964 - - -
Total Income 46,772,982,352 |  43,312,756,238 |  46,826,535,735 | 43,312,756,238
Expenses:
Gross Benefits and Claims Paid 33 14,599,470,718 8,910,273,895 |  14,599,470,718 8,910,273,895
Claims Ceded 34 (454,615,913) (151,658,034) (454,615,913) (151,658,034)
Gross Change in Contract Liabilities 35 23,592,705912 |  24,782,726,257 |  23,592,705,912 |  24,782,726,257
Change in Contract Liabities Ceded 35 ) ) ) )
to Reinsurers
Net Benefits and Claims Paid 37,737,560,718 33,541,342,118 37,737,560,718 33,541,342,118
Commission Expenses 36 3,529,971,651 3,562,573,922 3,529,971,651 3,562,573,922
Service Fees 37 350,441,247 319,540,686 350,441,247 319,540,686
Employee Benefits Expenses 38 825,256,742 783,001,130 820,078,318 783,001,130
Depreciation and Amortization 39 58,192,640 31,902,486 55,181,403 31,902,486
Expenses
Impairment Losses 40 176,311,282 16,629,426 176,311,282 16,629,426
Other Expenses 41 1,708,307,966 1,941,417,093 1,701,578,085 1,941,417,093
Finance Cost 42 14,468,238 - 14,161,977 -
Total Expenses 44,400,510,485 | 40,196,406,860 | 44,385,284,680 | 40,196,406,860
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year
Before Share of Net Profits of 2372471867 | 3116349378 |  2,441,251,055 |  3,116,349,378
Associates Accounted for Using
Equity Method and Tax
Share of Profit of Associates 9 ) ) ) )
accounted using Equity Method
Profit Before Tax 2,372,471,867 3,116,349,378 2,441,251,055 3,116,349,378
Income Tax Expense 43 2,337,505,820 1,149,849,826 2,344,008,495 1,149,849,826
Net Profit/ (Loss) For The Year 34,966,047 1,966,499,552 97,242,559 1,966,499,552
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Insurance 65,471,329 1,966,499,552 97,242,559 1,966,499,552
Non-Controlling Interest (30,505,282)
Earning Per Share 50
Basic EPS 0.80 27 1.18 27
Diluted EPS 0.80 27 1.18 27
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date
Pravin Raman Parajuli Govind Lal Sanghai Directors Sunir Kumar Dhungel
Chief Executive Officer Chairman Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal Managing Partner
Vivek Agrawal SAR Associates
Zoya Khan Prem Prasad Regmi Bimal Prasad Dhakal Chartered Accountants
Head- Account & Finance AGM-Account & Finance Krishna Raj Lamichhane
Parul Dhakal
Date: 2080/10/07 Shakti Kumar Golyan

Address: Kathmandu
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For The Year Ended Ashadh 32, 2079
(For The Year Ended July 16, 2022)

@ Gew |

Cash Flow From Operating Actvities:

Fig. in NPR

Insurance Company

Cash Received

Gross Premium Received 35,489,383,739 |  32,367,058,650 | 35,489,383,739 |  32,367,058,650
Fees and Commission 476,625,546 335,374,649 476,625,546 335,374,649
Claim Recovery Received from Reinsurers 417,849,740 155,214,791 417,849,740 155,214,791
Realised Foreign Exchange Income other

than on Cash and Cash Equivalents

Others (to be specified)

Cash Paid

Gross Benefits and Claims Paid (14,599,470,718) |  (8,910,273,895) | (14,599,470,718) | (8,910,273,895)
Reinsurance Premium Paid (499,409,243) (402,338,948) (499,409,243) (402,338,948)
Commission Paid (3,529,971,651) | (3,811,615,004) | (3,529,971,651) | (3,811,615,004)
Service Fees Paid (319,181,743) | (272,493,378) |  (319,181,743) |  (272,493,378)
Employee Benefits Expenses Paid (810,996,923) (774,973,874) (805,868,239) (774,973,874)
Other Expenses Paid (1,702,478,153) | (1,926,838,826) | (1,695,748,271) | (1,926,838,826)
Others (Medical Examination Fee Paid) (11,938,587) (14,578,267) (11,938,587) (14,578,267)
Others (Increase)/Decrease in current assets) 2,534,731,142 (621,580,444) 2,481,944,261 (621,580,444)
Iggi‘fiiise(sl)“crease/ (Decrease) in current 1,072,659,665 | (1,146,772,703) |  1,063,570,895 | (1,146,772,703)
Income Tax Paid (2,572,101,639) | (1,034,603,481) | (2,575,754,503) | (1,034,603,481)
Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities [1] | 15,945,701,175 13,941,579,272 | 15,892,031,227 | 13,941,579,272
Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Acquisitions of Intangible Assets (9,473,926) (449,126) (8,942,779) (449,126)
Proceeds From Sale of Intangible Assets - - - -
Acquisitions of Investment Properties (181,125,000) - (181,125,000) -
Proceeds From Sale of Investment Properties - - - -
Rental Income Received 37,138,898 23,034,615 37,138,898 23,034,615
Acquisitions of Property, Plant & Equipment (69,898,086) (20,352,119) (62,283,155) (20,352,119)
g;ﬁf;fisnfrom Sale of Property, Plant & 6,112,259 691,273 6,112,259 691,273
Foymensfr sl oS/ ™ assomom -
Investment in Associates - - - -
Receipts from Sale of Investments in ) ) ) )
Subsidiaries

Receipts from Sale of Investments in ) ) ) )
Associates

Purchase of Equity Instruments (2,022,282,416) | (4,725,994,769) | (1,874,557,409) | (4,725,994,769)
Proceeds from Sale of Equity Instruments 1,115,845,212 3,734,473,652 1,115,845,212 3,734,473,652
Purchase of Mutual Funds (51,454,302) (51,454,302) (51,454,302) (51,454,302)
Proceeds from Sale of Mutual Funds 79,220,409 79,220,409 79,220,409 79,220,409

Purchase of Preference Shares

Proceeds from Sale of Preference Shares
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Purchase of Debentures (578,515,285) (818,259,485) (578,515,285) (818,259,485)
Proceeds from Sale of Debentures -

Purchase of Bonds 100,000,000 250,000,000 100,000,000 250,000,000
Proceeds from Sale of Bonds

Investments in Deposits (22,186,800,000) | (23,673,300,000) | (22,186,800,000) | (23,673,300,000)
Maturity of Deposits - - - -
Proceeds from Finance Lease - - - -
Loans Paid (4,800,931,772) | (3,001,944,141) | (4,800,931,772) | (3,001,944,141)
Proceeds from Loans

Interest Income Received 11,822,256,914 7,940,711,614 11,822,256,914 7,940,711,614
Dividend Received 58,815,401 25,183,852 58,815,401 25,183,852
Others (to be specified) 9,118,622 1,005,717,707 9,118,622 1,005,717,707
[Z]"tal Cash Flow From Investing Activities | ¢ 71 973 070y | (19,232,720,821) | (16,669,101,987) | (19,232,720,821)
Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Interest Paid - - - -
Payment of Finance Lease - - - -
Proceeds From Issue of Share Capital - - - -
Share Issuance Cost Paid - - - -
Dividend Paid (1,231,468,999) - (1,231,468,999) -
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid (64,525,720) - (64,525,720) -
Others (Cash dividend of FY 76.77) (53,052,416) - (53,052,416) -
Total Cash Flow From Financing Activities [3] | (1,349,047,135) - (1,349,047,135) -
1;]1 itlf,l;:::e[/l(z?;]ease) n(Eencsleri (2,075,319,032) | (5,291,141,549) | (2,126,117,896) | (5,291,141,549)
Tckfes};ir%se};igg““’alems At Beginning of 6,/495,853,384 | 11,786,994,934 |  6,495853,384 | 11,786,994,934
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash

and Cash Equivalents
ifri‘lfe‘r;?h Equivalents At End of The 4420534351 | 6495853384 | 4,369,735487 |  6,495,853,384
Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash In Hand 81,040,203 121,943,454 80,998,759 121,943,454
Cheques In Hand 14,903,487 191,881,357 14,903,487 191,881,357
Term Deposit with Banks (with initial _ :

maturity upto 3 months)

Gold Coins - - - -
Balance With Banks 4,324,590,661 6,182,028,572 4,273,833,241 6,182,028,572

Deposit with initial maturity upto 3 months of Previous Year ie Rs 10,282,700,000 has been classified to Investment in A class and B
Class Institutions being not Matured within 3 month from the date of acquisition.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Pravin Raman Parajuli

Chief Executive Officer Chairman

Zoya Khan
Head- Account & Finance

Date: 2080,/10/07
Address: Kathmandu
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Vivek Agrawal SAR Associates
Bimal Prasad Dhakal Chartered Accountants
Krishna Raj Lamichhane
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For The Year Ended Ashadh 32, 2079
(For The Year Ended July 16, 2022)

Fig. in NPR

| Gew [  msuanceCompany

Net Profit/ (Loss) For The Year

Current Year
34,966,047

Previous Year
1,966,499,552

Current Year
97,242,559

Previous Year
1,966,499,552

Other Comprehensive Income

a) Items that are or may be Reclassified to
Profit or Loss

Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Debt
Instruments

Cash Flow Hedge - Effective Portion of
Changes in Fair Value

Exchange differences on translation of
Foreign Operation

Share of other comprehensive income of
associates accounted for using the equity
method

Income Tax Relating to Above Items

Reclassified to Profit or Loss

b) Items that will not be Reclassified to
Profit or Loss

Changes in fair value of FVOCI Equity
Instruments

Revaluation of Property, Plant and
Equipment/ Intangible Assets

Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit
Obligations

(43,121,958)

19,288,706

(43,121,958)

19,288,706

Share of other comprehensive income of
associates accounted for using the equity
method

Income Tax Relating to Above Items

10,780,489.50

(4,822,177)

10,780,489.50

(4,822,177)

Total Other Comprehensive Income For the
Year, Net of Tax

(32,341,469)

14,466,530

(32,341,469)

14,466,530

Total Comprehensive Income For the Year,
Net of Tax

2,624,578

1,980,966,082

64,901,091

1,980,966,082

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Pravin Raman Parajuli

Chief Executive Officer Chairman

Zoya Khan

Head- Account & Finance

Date: 2080/10/07
Address: Kathmandu

Govind Lal Sanghai

Prem Prasad Regmi
AGM-Account & Finance

Directors

As per our report of even date

Sunir Kumar Dhungel

Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal
Vivek Agrawal

Bimal Prasad Dhakal
Krishna Raj Lamichhane

Parul Dhakal

Shakti Kumar Golyan

Managing Partner
SAR Associates

Chartered Accountants
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF DISTRIBUTABLE PROFIT OR LOSS
For The Year Ended Ashadh 32, 2079
(For The Year Ended July 16, 2022)

Fig. in NPR
T e
Particular Current Year Previous Year
Opening Balance in Retained Earnings 2,423,940,804 1,138,344,441
Adjustment:Dividend distributed FY 2076/77 (1,057,786,225) -
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 97,242,559 1,966,499,552
Appropriations: - -
i) Transfer to Catastrophe Reserves (8,989,042) (154,992,249)
ii) Transfer to Capital Reserves - -
iii) Transfer to Regulatory Reserves (7,352,144) (416,577,059)
iv) Transfer to Fair Value Reserves - -
v) Transfer of Deferred Tax Reserves (163,645,670) 41,187,694
v) Transfer of CSR Reserves (898,904) -
vii) Others -Acturial adjustment (111,453,514) (150,521,576)
Less: - -
i) Unrealised Gain on fluctuation of Foreign Exchange Currency - -
ii) Unrealised Income on unwinding of Financial Assets - -
iii) Actuarial Reserve - -
iv) Fair Value Reserve on Equity Instrument at FVTOCI - -
v) Goodwill Recognised - -
vi) Dividend distributed last year (1,295,994,719) -
Total Distributable Profits (124,936,855) 2,423,940,804

As per our report of even date

Pravin Raman Parajuli Govind Lal Sanghai Directors Sunir Kumar Dhungel
Chief Executive Officer Chairman Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal Managing Partner
Vivek Agrawal SAR Associates
Zoya Khan Prem Prasad Regmi Bimal Prasad Dhakal Chartered Accountants
Head- Account & Finance AGM-Account & Finance Krishna Raj Lamichhane
Parul Dhakal
Date: 2080/10/07 Shakti Kumar Golyan

Address: Kathmandu
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended Ashadh 32, 2079 (For The Year Ended July 16, 2022)

4. Intangible Assets Fig. in NPR

Others-from

Particulars Softwares Licenses Nepal Life
Capital

Gross carrying amount

As at Sharwan 1, 2078 7,362,287 823,960 8,186,247
Additions - - - -
Acquisition 8,942,779 - 400,020 9,342,799

Internal Development - - - -

Business Combination > - - -

Disposals - - - -

Revaluation - - - -

Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2079 16,305,066 - 1,223,980 17,529,046

Accumulated amortization and impairment

As at Sharwan 1, 2078 5,619,360 512,608 6,131,968
Additions 1,140,934 180,226 1,321,160
Disposals - - - -

Impairment losses - = - -

Impairment reversal - - - -

Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2079 6,760,294 - 692,833 7,453,127
Net Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2078 1,742,927 - 311,352 2,054,279
Net Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2079 9,544,772 - 531,147 10,075,919
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6. Investment Properties

Fig. in NPR

Gross carrying amount

As at Sharwan 1, 2078

82,814,700

213,698,412

296,513,112

Additions

172,248,536

8,876,464

181,125,000

Disposals

Transfer/ adjustments

Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2079

255,063,236

222,574,876

477,638,112

Depreciation and impairment

As at Sharwan 1, 2078

65,501,256

65,501,256

Depreciation

3,920,980

3,920,980

Disposals

Impairment losses

Impairment reversal

Transfer/ adjustments

Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2079

69,422,236

69,422,236

Net Carrying Amount

As at Ashadh 31, 2078

82,814,700

148,197,156

231,011,856

As at Ashadh 32, 2079

255,063,236

153,152,640

408,215,876

Capital work-in-progress as at Ashadh 31, 2078

Additions

Capitalisation

Disposals

Impairment losses

Impairment reversal

Capital work-in-progress as at Ashadh 32, 2079

Net Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2078

82,814,700

148,197,156

231,011,856

Net Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2079

255,063,236

153,152,640

408,215,876

(i) Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss for investment properties

Rental income 56,813,949 45,846,602
Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income (18,750,387) (18,848,941)
Direct operating expenses from property that didn't generated rental income - -
Profit from investment properties before depreciation 38,063,562 26,997,661
Depreciation (3,920,980) (3,891,391)
Profit from investment properties 34,142,582 23,106,270

(if) Contractual obligations: Refer note no. 54 For disclosure of contractual obligations relating to investment properties.

(iii) There are no restrictions on the realisability of investment properties or proceeds of disposal / OR MENTION ABOUT

RESTRICTION IF ANY

(iv) Fair value of investment properties:

"The fair values of the investment properties were determined by external independent qualified valuers using

Comparison/ Development/ Other (specify the name) Method. Comparision Method:

e Comparision Method:

This approach considers the sales of similar or substitute properties and related market data, and establishes a value
estimate by adjustments made for differences in factors that affect value. In general, the investment properties are
compared with sales of similar properties that have been transacted in the open market. Listings and offers may
also be considered."
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* Development Method:

When a property to be valued is fairly big and no data available from similar land but sales transaction of small
plots are available, on the basis we may adopt the method of development. In this method, the properties which are
in the undeveloped stage or partly developed and partly undeveloped stage, the total land is divided into number
of plots after providing for roads, parks etc. In such cases, the probable selling price of divided plots, the area
required for roads, parks etc and other expenses for development should be known in such a way that the similar
facilities and conditions are maintained to match with the available surrounding units for compensation."

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Land 560,058,000 560,058,000
Building 329,791,000 329,791,000
Total 889,849,000 889,849,000

7. Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

Intangible Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment (23,465,787) (5,163,303) |  (23,020,486) (5,163,303)
Fair Value Gains/ (Losses) 81,927,465 (140,784,846) 67,940,790 (140,784,846)
Provision for Leave Encashment 34,154,732 27,983,579 34,154,732 27,983,579
Provision for Gratuity 46,246,656 43,513,185 46,246,656 43,513,185
Impairment Loss on Property, Plant and Equipment - - - -
Impairment Loss on Financial Assets = = = =
Impairment Loss on Other Assets - - - -
Rent Equalization 36,287,447 392,734 38,323,977 392,734
Income Tax Losses - - - -
Provision for doubtful debt - - - -
Other (to be Specified) - - - -
Total 175,150,513 (74,058,651) 163,645,670 (74,058,651)

Movements in deferred tax assets/(liablities)

Group Insurance company

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

As at Ashadh 31, 2078 (78,880,827) 41,187,694 (78,880,827) 41,187,694
Charged/ (Credited) to Statement of Profit or Loss 243,250,851 | (115,246,345) 231,746,008 (115,246,345)
Charged/ (Credited) to Other Comprehensive Income 10,780,490 (4,822,177) 10,780,490 (4,822,177)
Transferred to Insurance Contract Liabilities - - - -
As at Ashadh 32, 2079 175,150,513 (78,880,827) 163,645,670 (78,880,827)
8. Investments in Subsidiaries Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries = = = =
Investment in Unquoted Subidiaries - - 153,000,000 -
Less: Impairment Losses - - - -
Total - - 153,000,000 -
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Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars

Shares of Rs. ..... eachof ....... Ltd.
Shares of Rs. ..... eachof ....... Ltd. - - - _

Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars

1,530,000 Shares of Rs. 100 each of Nepal Life
Investment Company Ltd.

Total 153,000,000 153,000,000 - -

153,000,000 153,000,000 - -

Information Relating to Subsidiaries

Percentage of Ownership

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars

1,530,000 Shares of Rs. 100 each of Nepal Life Capital Limited.

9. Investments in Associates

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Investment in Quoted Associates

Investment in Unquoted Associates - -

Less: Impairment Losses - -

Total - -

Investment in Quoted Associates

Particulars (or) Equity

Method

........... Shares of Rs. ..... eachof ....... Ltd. - - - - - -

........... Shares of Rs. ..... eachof ....... Ltd. - - = - - -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years - - - - - -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year - = = - - -
Total - - - - - -

Investment in Unquoted Associates

Current Year Previous Year
........... Shares of Rs. ..... eachof ....... Ltd. - - - - - -
........... Shares of Rs. ..... eachof ....... Ltd. - = = - - -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years - - - - - -

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year - = - - - _
Total - - - - - -
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Information Relating to Associates

Current | Previous | Current | Previous | Current | Previous

Particulars N Year Year Year Year Year
Name
Place of Business
Accounting Method

% of Ownership

Current Assets - - - - - -

i) Cash and Cash Equivalents - - = = - -
ii) Other Assets - - - - - -

Non-Current Assets o 5 - - - -

Current Liabilities - - - - - -

i) Financial Liabilities - = = o - -

ii) Other Liabilities - - - - - -

Non-Current Liabilities = - - - - -

Revenue = - - - - -

Interest Income - - - - - -

Depreciation and Amortization - = = = - -

Interest Expenses - - - - - -

Income Tax Expenses - = = - - -

Net Profit or Loss from Continuing Operations - - - - - -

Post tax profit or Loss form Discontinued Opera-
tions

Other Comprehensive Income - - - - - -

Total Comprehensive Income - = = o - -

Company's share of profits - - - - - -

Net Profit or Loss = - - - - -

Other Comprehensive Income - - - - - -

10. Investments

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Investments measured at Amortised Cost - - - -

i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank
and Financial Institutions

ii) Investment in Debentures 3,452,160,669 | 2,872,814,053 |  3,452,160,669 2,872,814,053
iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal

Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal - 100,000,000 - 100,000,000
Government)

iv) Fixed Deposit of "A" Class Financial 92,223,100,000 | 73,879,000,000 | 92,223,100,000 73,879,000,000
Institutions

v) Fixed Deposit of Infrastructure Banks - - - -
vi) Fixed Deposits in "B" Class Financial 13,765,000,000 |  9,922,300,000 | 13,765,000,000 9,922,300,000

Institutions

vii) Fixed Deposits in "C" Class Financial
Institutions
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Particulars Current Year

Previous Year

viii) Others (to be specified) -

Current Year

Previous Year

Less: Impairment Losses =

Investments measured at FVTOCI -

i) Investment in Equity Instruments

(Quoted)

ii) Investment in Equity Instruments
(Unquoted)

iii) Investment in Mutual Funds =

iv) Investment in Debentures -

v) Others (to be Specified) -

Investments measured at FVTPL -

i) Investment in Equity Instruments 5,849,350,316 | 5,733,214,909 5,701,625,309 5,733,214,909
ii) Investment in Mutual Funds 182,548,360 205,236,720 181,948,360 205,236,720
iii) Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total 115,472,159,344 | 92,712,565,682 | 115,323,834,337 92,712,565,682

In Previous Year(FY 2077/78), Fixed Deposit in A class and B class Institutions have been classified from Cash and Cash Equivalent i.e.

Rs. 8,447,900,000 and Rs. 1,834,800,000 respectively

a) Details of Impairment Losses

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions

Investment in Debentures

Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by
Nepal Government)

Fixed Deposit of "A" Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposit of Infrastructure Banks

Fixed Deposits in "B" Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposits in "C" Class Financial Institutions

Others (to be specified)

Total

b) Investments having expected maturities less than 12 months

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)

Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)

Investment in Mutual Funds

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions

Investment in Debentures

229,850,000

425,685,000

Investment in Bonds

Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial Institutions

30,350,000,000

38,069,000,000

Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks

Fixed Deposits with "B" Class Financial Institutions

7,630,000,000

8,122,300,000

Fixed Deposits with "C" Class Financial Institutions

Others Deposits

Total

38,209,850,000

46,616,985,000

¢) The Company has earmarked all the investinents at Insurance Board i.e. Beema Samiti. Out of all NPR

58,891,100,000.00 are under blocked status.
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11. Loans
T oew [ ey

Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Loans at Amortised Cost

Loan to Associates - - - -
Loan to Employees 374,405,052 255,066,891 374,405,052 255,066,891
Loan to Agent 486,497,201 1,180,447,974 486,497,201 1,180,447,974
Loan to Policyholders 24,769,750,182 19,592,663,473 24,769,750,182 19,592,663,473
Others - - - -
Less: Impairment Losses-Agent Loan (146,667,407) (34,025,371) (146,667,407) (34,025,371)
Less: Impairment Losses-Debtor (20,616,076) (20,664,076) (20,616,076) (20,664,076)
Total 25,463,368,952 20,973,488,892 25,463,368,952 20,973,488,892

Impairment Losses of Agent loan (Doubtful Debt) has been regrouped from Provision in both financial year

a) Expected repayment within 12 months

Loan to Associates

Previous Year

Loan to Employees 22,022,924 38,543,343

Loan to Agent - -

Loan to Policyholders - -
Others - -
Total 22,022,924 38,543,343

12. Reinsurance Assets
Group

Insurance company

Current Year

Particulars Current Year Previous Year Previous Year

Reinsurance Assets on:

Policy liabilities and provisions - - - -

Provision for unearned premiums = = - _

Premium deficiency reserve - - - _

Outstanding Claim reserve - = = -

Less: Impairment Losses - - - -

Total - - - -

13. Insurance Receivables

Insurance company

Particulars Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Receivable from Reinsurers 132,061,189 95,295,016 132,061,189 95,295,016
Receivable from Other Insurance Companies - - - -
Other (to be Specified) = = - -
Less: Impairment Losses - - - -
Total 132,061,189 95,295,016 132,061,189 95,295,016
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a) Expected receivable within 12 months

Insurance company

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year | Previous Year
Receivable from Reinsurers 132,061,189 95,295,016 132,061,189 95,295,016
Receivable from Other Insurance Companies - - - -
Other (to be Specified) - - - -
Total 132,061,189 95,295,016 132,061,189 95,295,016

14. Other Assets

Insurance company

Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Capital Advances - - - -
Prepaid Expenses 6,410,021 2,467,938 6,328,418 2,467,938
Advance To Suppliers 4,240,471 13,404,515 4,240,471 13,404,515
Staff Advances 212,944 1,180,538 212,944 1,180,538
VAT Receivable - - - -
Deferred Expenses 198,440,585 165,765,436 198,440,585 165,765,436
Deferred Agent Commission Expenses - - - -
Finance Lease Receivable - - - -
Stamp Stock 642,187 527,008 642,187 527,008
Printing & Stationery Stock 3,319,624 4,214,806 3,319,624 4,214,806
Lease Equalisation Receivable - - - -
Advance to building 679,533 679,533 679,533 679,533
Advance to Agents 285,390 285,391 285,390 285,391
Less: Impairment Losses - - - -
Total 214,230,754 188,525,163 214,149,151 188,525,163

a) Expected to be recovered/ settled within 12 months

Insurance company

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Capital Advances

Prepaid Expenses 6,410,021 2,467,938 6,328,418 2,467,938
Advance To Suppliers 4,240,471 13,404,515 4,240,471 13,404,515
Staff Advances 212,944 1,180,538 212,944 1,180,538
VAT Receivable - = - -
Deferred Expenses - - - -
Deferred Agent Commission Expenses - - = -
Finance Lease Receivable - - - -
Stamp Stock - = - -
Printing & Stationery Stock - - - -
Lease Equalisation Receivable - = = -
Advance to building 679,533 679,533 679,533 679,533
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Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Advance to Agents 285,390 285,391 285,390 285,391

Less: Impairment Losses - - - -

Total 11,828,359 18,017,914 11,746,756 18,017,914

15. Other Financial Assets

Group Insurance company

Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Security Deposits 498,528 441,028 498,528 441,028
Accrued Interest - - - -
Interest Receivable from Policyholders 3,447,716,169 2,632,665,923 3,447,716,169 2,632,665,923
Other Receivables (interest on FD) 343,407,725 1,022,516,729 343,407,725 1,022,516,729
Sundry Debtors 21,824,089 15,590,223 15,369,640 15,590,223
Other Deposits - - - -
Share Application Money 4,106,000 470,200,000 4,106,000 470,200,000
Income Receivable From "Nepal Life 45,103,612 44,178,947 45,103,612 44,178,947
Building"

Deficit Premium Receivable 19,463 19,567 19,463 19,567
Other (to be Specified) - - - -
Less: Impairment Losses - - - -
Total 3,862,675,586 4,185,612,417 3,856,221,137 4,185,612,417

a) Expected maturities within 12 months

Group Insurance company

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Security Deposits - - - -
Accrued Interest - - - -
Interest Receivable from Policyholders 3,447,716,169 2,632,665,923 | 3,447,716,169 2,632,665,923
Other Receivables (interest on FD) 343,407,725 | 1,022,516,729 343,407,725 1,022,516,729
Share Application Money 4,106,000 470,200,000 4,106,000 470,200,000
Income Receivable From "Nepal Life Building" 45,103,612 44,178,947 45,103,612 44,178,947
Other (to be Specified) - - - -
Total 3,840,333,506 | 4,169,561,599 | 3,840,333,506 4,169,561,599

16. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Group Insurance company

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year | Previous Year

Cash In Hand 81,040,203 121,943,454 80,998,759 121,943,454

Cheques In Hand 78,572,733 191,881,357 78,572,733 191,881,357

Bank Balances - - - -

i) Balance with "A" Class Financial 4,097,153,354 5,788,178,104 | 4,073,579,158 | 5,788,178,104
Institutions
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Insurance company

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year | Previous Year
ii) Balance with "B" Class Financial 212,064,022 386,350,254 198,733,466 386,350,254
Institutions
iii) Balance with "C" Class Financial 15,373,284 7,500,215 1,520,617 7,500,215
Institutions
Less: Impairment Losses - - - -
Deposit with initial maturity upto 3 months - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Less: Impairment Losses (63,669,246) - (63,669,246) -
Total 4,420,534,351 6,495,853,384 | 4,369,735,487 | 6,495,853,384

Deposit with initial maturity upto 3 months of Previous Year i.e. Rs. 10,282,700,000 has been classified to Investment in A
class and B Class Institutions being not Matured within 3 month from the date of acquisition.

17. a) Share Capital

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Insurance company

Current Year

Previous Year

Ordinary Shares

As at Ashadh 31, 2078

7,199,970,661

7,199,970,661

7,199,970,661

7,199,970,661

Additions during the year

i) Bonus Share Issue

1,007,995,893

1,007,995,893

ii) Share Issue

As at Ashadh 32, 2079

8,207,966,554

7,199,970,661

8,207,966,554

7,199,970,661

Convertible Preference Shares (Equity

Component Only)

As at Ashadh 31, 2078

Additions during the year

As at Ashadh 32, 2079

Irredeemable Preference Shares
(Equity Component Only)

As at Ashadh 31, 2078

Additions during the year

As at Ashadh 32, 2079

Total

8,207,966,554

7,199,970,661

8,207,966,554

7,199,970,661

i) Ordinary Shares

Insurance company

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Authorised Capital:
100,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs.100. each | 10,000,000,000 | 10,000,000,000 | 10,000,000,000 | 10,000,000,000
Issued Capital:
52,079,065.54 Ordinary Shares of R.100- 1 g 207,966,554 | 7,199970,661 | 8,207,966,554 | 7,199,970,661
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:
eizc’ﬁ79'665 -54 Ordinary Shares of Rs.100. 8,207,966,554 |  7,199,970,661 | 8,207,966,554 | 7,199,970,661
Total 8,207,966,554 |  7,199,970,661 | 8,207,966,554 | 7,199,970,661
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ii) Preference Share Capital

. Current Previous Current .
Particulars Previous Year
Year Year Year

Authorised Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ... each - - - -

........Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ... each - - = =

Issued Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ... each - - - -

........Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ... each - - - -
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ... each - - - -

........Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ... each - - - -

Total - - - -

Shareholding Structure of Share Capital

Number of Shares Percentage

Particulars

Promoters

Government of Nepal - = = -

Nepalese Organized Institutions - - - -
Nepalese Citizen 41,860,629 41,860,629 51% 51%
Foreigner - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total (A) 41,860,629 41,860,629 51% 51%
Other than Promoters
General Public 40,219,036 40,219,036 49% 49%
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total (B) 40,219,036 40,219,036 49% 49%
Total (A+B) 82,079,665 82,079,665 100% 100%

** Shareholding structure has been changed and approved by 21st Annual General Meeting.

Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 1% of the total shares in the Company:

Number of Shares Percentage
Particulars
1. Suvash Chandra Sanghai 5,420,948 5,420,948 6.60% 6.69%
2. Govind Lal Sanghai 4,403,754 4,403,754 5.37% 5.37%
3. Anuj Agrawal 4,139,243 4,139,243 5.04% 5.33%
4. Pawan Kumar Golyan 3,026,345 3,026,345 3.69% 4.08%
5. Bishal Agrawal 2,977,794 2,977,794 3.63% 3.75%
6. Ram Chand Sanghai 2,855,710 2,855,710 3.48% 3.48%
7. Purushottam Lal Sanghai 2,492,314 2,492,314 3.04% 3.45%
8. Basudev Golyan 2,377,069 2,377,069 2.90% 3.07%
9. Kavita Sanghai 1,657,925 1,657,925 2.02% 2.15%
10. Tulasi Ram Agrawal 1,457,921 1,457,921 1.78% 1.86%
11. Manju Agrawal 1,384,949 1,384,949 1.69% 1.78%
12. Sushil Gupta 1,203,543 1,203,543 1.47% 1.50%
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b) Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Particulars

Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Insurance company

Previous Year

Total

¢) Share Premium

Insurance company

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
As at Ashadh 31, 2078 47,101,709 47,101,709 47,101,709 47,101,709
Increase due to Issue of shares at premium - - - -
Decrease due Issue of bonus shares (3,262,084) - (3,262,084) -
Transaction costs on issue of share - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
As at Ashadh 32, 2079 43,839,625 47,101,709 43,839,625 47,101,709

d) Catastrophe Reserves

Insurance ¢ ompany

Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
As at Ashadh 31, 2078 829,247,601 674,255,352 829,247,601 674,255,352
Additions 8,989,042 154,992,249 8,989,042 154,992,249
Utilizations - - - -
As at Ashadh 32, 2079 838,236,643 829,247,601 838,236,643 829,247,601

e) Retained Earnings

Insurance company

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
As at Ashadh 31, 2078 2,423,940,804 | 1,138,344,441 | 2,423,940,804 | 1,138,344,441
ZAOC;]gl/s;r;lent.Dlwdend distribution of FY e -| (1,057,786,225) )
Net Profit or Loss 97,242,559 |  1,966,499,552 97,242,559 |  1,966,499,552
Items of OCI recognised directly in retained } . . _
earnings
gi?;:f;f;“ent of Post-Employment Benefit | 117 453514y | (150,521,576) | (111,453,514) | (150,521,576
Transfer to/ from reserves - - - -
Capital Reserves - - - -
Catastrophe Reserves (8,989,042) (154,992,249) (8,989,042) |  (154,992,249)
Regulatory Reserves (7,352,144) (416,577,059) (7,352,144) |  (416,577,059)
Fair Value Reserves - - - -
Actuarial Reserves - - - -
Revaluation Reserves - - - -
Deferred Tax Reserves (163,645,670) 41,187,694 (163,645,670) 41,187,694
Corporate Social Responsibity Reserve (898,904) - (898,904) -
Depreciation on Revaluation of Property, ) ) ) )
Plant and Equipment
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Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year | Previous Year

On Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment - - - -

On Disposal of Equity Instruments Measured

at FVTOCI

Prior Period Adjustments-Tax relating to
shareholders

Issue of Bonus Shares

Transaction costs on issue of Shares

Dividend Paid (1,231,468,999) - (1,231,468,999) -
Dividend Distribution Tax (64,525,720) - (64,525,720) -
Transfer to Insurance Contract Liability - - - -
Others-Profit/ (loss) from Nepal life Capital (34,194,206) - - -
As at Ashadh 32, 2079 (159,131,061) |  2,423,940,804 (124,936,856) | 2,423,940,804

f) Other Equity

Insurance company

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Capital Reserves 601,993 - - -
Regulatory Reserves 589,594,163 582,242,018 589,594,163 582,242,018
Fair Value Reserves - - - -
Actuarial Reserves (17,874,939) 1,446,653 (17,874,939) 1,446,653
Revaluation Reserves - - - -
Cash Flow Hedge Reserves - - - -
Other Reserves - Deferred Tax Reserve 163,645,670 - 163,645,670 -
Other Reserves - CSR Reserve 898,904 - 898,904 -
Transfer to Insurance Contract Liability - - - -
Total 736,865,791 583,688,671 736,263,798 583,688,671

18. Provisions

T e

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Insurance ¢ ompany

Previous Year

Provisions for employee benefits

i) Provision for Leave

136,618,928

111,934,317

136,618,928

111,934,317

ii) Defined Benefit Plans (CIT)

184,986,625

174,052,740

184,986,625

174,052,740

iii) Termination Benefits

iv) Other employee benefit
obligation (to be Specified)

Provision for tax related legal cases

Provision for non-tax legal cases

Provision for bad debt

Others

Total

321,605,553

285,987,057

321,605,553

285,987,057

Impairment Losses of Agent loan (Doubtful Debt) has been regrouped to Loan(loan to Agent-Impairment loss) in both

financial year.
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a) Additional Disclosure of Provisions

Description

Provision for tax related legal cases

Opening
Balance

Additions

During the
Year

Utilised
During the
Year

Reversed
During the

Year

Unwinding
of Discount

Closing
Balance

Provision for non-tax legal cases

Others (to be Specified)

b) Provision with expected payouts within 12 months

Particulars

Provisions for employee benefits

Current Year

Previous Year

Insurance company

Current Year

Previous Year

i) Provision for Leave

136,618,928

111,934,317

136,618,928

111,934,317

ii) Defined Benefit Plans (CIT)

184,986,625

174,052,740

184,986,625

174,052,740

iii) Termination Benefits

iv) Other employee benefit obligation
(to be Specified)

Provision for tax related legal cases

Provision for non-tax legal cases

Others

Total

321,605,553

285,987,057

321,605,553

285,987,057

19. Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities

Insurance company

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year | Previous Year
Policy liabilities and provisions 119,085,095,578 | 97,787,186,740 | 119,085,095,578 | 97,787,186,740
Bonus Liability 14,584,251,603 | 11,028,456,436 | 14,584,251,603 | 11,028,456,436
Unallocated Surplus 527,241,706 805,900,138 527,241,706 805,900,138
Provision for unearned premiums 219,418,670 361,769,466 219,418,670 361,769,466
Premium deficiency reserve - - - -
Outstanding Claim Reserve 1,715,491,105 2,555,479,970 1,715,491,105 2,555,479,970
Fair Value Reserves - - - -
Cash Flow Hedge Reserves - - - -
Actuarial Reserves - 13,019,877 - 13,019,877
Revaluation Reserves - - - -
Fair Value Gain on Investment Properties - - - -
Share of Profit of Associates accounted as per ) ) ) )
Equity Method
Share of Other Comprehensive Income of
Associates Accounted for using the Equity - - - -
Method
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total 136,131,498,662 | 112,551,812,626 | 136,131,498,662 | 112,551,812,626
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Insurance company

Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Payable to Reinsurance Company 219,844,104 265,696,637 219,844,104 265,696,637
Payable to Other Insurance Company - = - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total 219,844,104 265,696,637 219,844,104 265,696,637

Payable within 12 months

Current Year

Insurance company

Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Particulars

Payable to Reinsurance Company 219,844,104 265,696,637 219,844,104 265,696,637
Payable to Other Insurance Company - = = -
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total 219,844,104 265,696,637 219,844,104 265,696,637

21. Current Tax (Assets)/ Liabilities (Net)

Group

Insurance company

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Income Tax Liabilities 2,564,271,402 1,034,603,481 2,562,401,769 1,034,603,481
Income Tax Assets 2,829,106,806 3,332,967,111 2,821,975,670 3,332,967,111
Total (264,835,404) (2,298,363,630) (259,573,901) (2,298,363,630)

22. Loans and Borrowings

Insurance company

Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year | Previous Year

Bond - - - -

Debenture - - - -

Term Loan - Bank and Financial Institution - - - -
Bank Overdraft = = - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total - = o -

Group Insurance company

Current Year

Payable within 12 months

Particulars Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Bond - - - -

Debenture - - - -

Term Loan - Bank and Financial Institution - - - -
Bank Overdraft = = - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total - = = -
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23. Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Insurance company

Current Year

Previous Year

Redeemable Preference Shares - - - -
Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares - - - -
Payable to Agent 1,118,517,559 1,306,921,519 1,118,517,559 1,306,921,519
Refundable Share Application Money - - - -
Lease Liability 160,084,345 - 153,295,909 -
Sundry Creditors 214,445,055 258,338,397 214,381,165 258,338,397
Retention and Deposit 102,376,744 116,034,065 102,292,114 116,034,065
Short-term employee benefits payable - - - -
i) Salary Payable 200,331,679 148,935,879 200,281,939 148,935,879
ii) Bonus Payable 110,328,196 183,336,955 110,328,196 183,336,955
iii) Other employee benefit payable (to be - - - -
Specified)
Audit Fees Payable 1,507,650 1,542,899 1,440,750 1,542,899
Provident Fund Payable 563,572 309,290 563,572 309,290
Citizen Investment Trust Payable 10,087,406 2,700,308 10,087,406 2,700,308
Others-Paybale to Regulatory and other 2,081,185 - - -
Misscellenous
Total 1,920,323,391 2,018,119,313 1,911,188,611 2,018,119,313

Payable within 12 months

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Insurance company

Current Year

Previous Year

Redeemable Preference Shares

Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares

Payable to Agent 1,118,517,559 1,306,921,519 1,118,517,559 | 1,306,921,519
Refundable Share Application Money - - - -
Lease Liability - - 65,323,689 -
Retention and Deposit - - - -
Sundry Creditors 214,445,055 258,338,397 214,381,165 258,338,397
Short-term employee benefits payable - - - -
i) Salary Payable 200,331,679 148,935,879 200,281,939 148,935,879
ii) Bonus Payable 110,328,196 183,336,955 110,328,196 183,336,955
iii) Other employee benefit payable (to - - - -
be Specified)
Audit Fees Payable 1,507,650 1,542,899 1,440,750 1,542,899
Provident Fund Payable 563,572 309,290 563,572 309,290
Citizen Investment Trust Payable 10,087,406 2,700,308 10,087,406 2,700,308
Others-Paybale to Regulatory and other - - - -
Misscellenous
Total 1,655,781,117 1,902,085,247 1,720,924,277 | 1,902,085,247
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24, Other Liabilities

Insurance company

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
TDS Payable 302,632,839 343,082,979 302,629,109 343,082,979
VAT Payable = 5 - -
Dividend Payable 1,404,300,542 111,392,280 | 1,404,300,542 111,392,280

Unidentified Premium = - - -

Advance Premium - - - -

Insurance Service Fee Payable 354,895,063 323,635,560 354,895,063 323,635,560
Lease Equilisation Payable - 1,570,937 - 1,570,937
Deferred Income - - - -
New Agent Lic. Fee Payable To Beema Samiti 18,512,726 25,280,656 18,512,726 25,280,656
Renewal Agent Lic.Fee Payable To Beema Samiti 3,129,929 2,963,509 3,129,929 2,963,509
Misc Credit (Agent Training) - - - -
Other Liabilities (Misc Credit Account) 83,100 86,000 83,100 86,000
Claim Payable 210,598,433 164,081,645 210,598,433 164,081,645
Payable to Forfeited Policy 2,079,761 2,083,993 2,079,761 2,083,993
Total 2,296,232,393 974,177,557 | 2,296,228,663 974,177,557

Payable within 12 months

Group Insurance company

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year | Previous Year
TDS Payable 302,632,839 343,082,979 302,629,109 343,082,979
VAT Payable = = = =
Dividend Payable 1,404,300,542 111,392,280 1,404,300,542 111,392,280

Unidentified Premium = - - -

Advance Premium - - - -

Insurance Service Fee Payable 354,895,063 323,635,560 354,895,063 323,635,560
Deferred Income - - - -
New Agent Lic. Fee Payable To Beema Samiti 18,512,726 25,280,656 18,512,726 25,280,656
Renewal Agent Lic.Fee Payable To Beema Samiti 3,129,929 2,963,509 3,129,929 2,963,509
Misc Credit (Agent Training) - - - -
Other Liabilities (Misc Credit Account) 83,100 86,000 83,100 86,000
Claim Payable 210,598,433 164,081,645 210,598,433 164,081,645
Payable to Forfeited Policy 2,079,761 2,083,993 2,079,761 2,083,993
Total 2,296,232,393 972,606,620 2,296,228,663 972,606,620

25. Gross Earned Premiums

I S N —
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Direct Premiums 35,489,383,739 32,367,058,650 35,489,383,739 32,367,058,650

Premiums on Reinsurance Accepted - = - -

Change in Unearned Premiums - - - -

Total 35,489,383,739 32,367,058,650 35,489,383,739 32,367,058,650
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29. Investment Income

Insurance company

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year Current Year | Previous Year
Interest Income from Financial Assets Measured
at Amortised Costs
() Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial 7954038501 |  6,476,765274 | 7,949,929,538 | 6,476,765,274
ii) Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank - - - -
Iirilis)tiil"t‘;gn]zep‘”it with "B" Class Financial 1,185,502,607 625,812,496 | 1,185,502,607 | 625,812,496
Ii;ls)tfti(iii ;)eposit with "C" Class Financial ) 68,400 ) 68,400
v) Debentures 298,402,922 213,098,050 298,402,922 213,098,050
é’ga]i;’;‘iseﬁ;pgfpzl" gg‘zf:zeﬁliw 3,174,111 6,631,116 3,174,111 6,631,116
vii) Preference Shares of Bank and Financial ) ) ) )
Institutions
viii) Bank Deposits other than Fixed Deposit 31,884,850 - 31,884,850 -
ix) Policyholder Loan 2,388,473,223 1,856,291,669 | 2,388,473,223 | 1,856,291,669
x) Agent Loan 66,450,345 64,048,230 66,450,345 64,048,230
xi) Employee Loan 61,267,453 47,129,834 61,267,453 47,129,834
xii) Other Interest Income (gratuity deposit) 7,978,233 4,618,631 7,978,233 4,618,631
Financial Assets Measured at at FVTOCI - - - -
i) Interest Income on Debentures - - - -
ii) Dividend Income - - - -
iii) Other Interest Income (to be specified) - - - -
Financial Assets Measured at at FVTPL - - - -
i) Dividend Income 59,070,670 25,183,852 58,815,401 25,183,852
ii) Other Interest Income (to be specified) - - - -
Rental Income 38,063,562 26,997,661 38,063,562 26,997,661
Miscelleneous income 896,541 506,339 846,341 506,339
Total 12,095,203,020 9,347,151,550 | 12,090,788,588 | 9,347,151,550

30. Net Gains/ (Losses) on Fair Value Changes

Particulars

Changes in Fair Value of Financial Assets
Measured at FVTPL

Current Year

Previous Year

Insurance company

Current Year

Previous Year

i) Equity Instruments

(863,577,886)

619,510,039

(790,301,798)

619,510,039

ii) Mutual Fund

4,477,746

55,080,647

4,477,746

55,080,647

iii) Others (to be specified)

Changes in Fair Value on Investment Properties

Changes in Fair Value on Hedged Items in Fair
Value Hedges

Changes in Fair Value on Hedging Instruments
in Fair Value Hedges

Gains/ (Losses) of Ineffective Portion on Cash
Flow Hedge

Others (to be specified)

Total

(859,100,140)

674,590,687

(785,824,051)

674,590,687
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31. Net Realised Gains/ (Losses)

Group Insurance company

Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Realised Gains/ (Losses) on Derecognition of Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL
i) Equity Instruments 10,634,932 1,005,717,707 9,118,622 1,005,717,707
if) Mutual Fund - - - -

iii) Others (to be specified) = = = -

Realised Gains/ (Losses) on Derecognition of Financial Assets at Amortised Costs

i) Debentures - = = -
ii) Bonds - - - -
iii) Others (to be specified) - = - -
Total 10,634,932 1,005,717,707 9,118,622 1,005,717,707

32. Other Income

Group Insurance company

Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on Financial Assets
at Amortised Cost

i) Security Deposits - = - -
ii) Others (to be Specified) - - - -

Foreign Exchange Income - = - -

Interest Income from Finance Lease - - - -

Amortization of Deferred Income = - - -

Profit from disposal of Property, Plant and
Equipment

Amortization of Deferred Income = - - -

Stamp Income - - - -

Others Income: = - - -

Income from Depository Participant 697,360 - - -
Income from Portfolio Management Services 13,094,604 = = =
Total 13,791,964 - - -

33. Gross Benefits and Claims Paid

Group Insurance company

Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Gross Benefits and Claims Paid 14,599,470,718 8,910,273,895 14,599,470,718 8,910,273,895
Total 14,599,470,718 8,910,273,895 14,599,470,718 8,910,273,895

34. Claims Ceded
Group Insurance company

Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Claims Ceded to Reinsurers 454,615,913 151,658,034 454,615,913 151,658,034
Total 454,615,913 151,658,034 454,615,913 151,658,034
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39. Depreciation & Amortization Expenses

Particulars

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Insurance company

Previous
Year

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Note. 5) 35,428,255 | 27,299,780 | 32,417,018 | 27,299,780
Depreciation on Right-of-Use Assets (Refer Note. 5) 17,702,471 - | 17,702,471 -
Depreciation on Investment Properties (Refer Note. 6) 3,920,980 3,891,391 | 3,920,980 | 3,891,391
Amortization of Intangible Assets (Refer Note. 4) 1,140,934 711,315 1,140,934 711,315
Total 58,192,640 | 31,902,486 | 55,181,403 | 31,902,486

40. Impairment Losses

Particulars

Current Year

Insurance company

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Impairment Losses on PPE, Investment Properties
and Intangible Assets

i) Property, Plant and Equipment

ii) Investment Properties

iii) Intangible Assets

Impairment Losses on Financial Assets

i) Investment

ii) Loans

112,642,036

16,629,426

112,642,036

16,629,426

iii) Other Financial Assets

iv) Cash and Cash Equivalent

63,669,246

63,669,246

v) Others (to be Specified)

Impairment Losses on Other Assets

i) Reinsurance Assets

ii) Insurance Receivables

iii) Lease Receivables

iv) Others (to be Specified)

Total

176,311,282

16,629,426

176,311,282

16,629,426

41. Other Expenses

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Insurance company

Current Year

Previous Year

Rent Expenses 86,124,162 79,635,326 86,124,162 79,635,326
Electricity and Water 7,958,897 6,200,250 7,662,405 6,200,250
Repair & Maintenance - - - -
i) Building 787,435 336,580 787,435 336,580
ii) Vehicle 1,135,221 331,963 1,135,221 331,963
iii) Furniture 4,757,144 1,900,790 4,757,144 1,900,790
iii) Office Equipments 106,027 172,960 26,866 172,960
iv) Software 6,935,405 2,615,994 6,935,405 2,615,994
Telephone & Communication 31,217,579 17,484,753 31,217,579 17,484,753
Printing & Stationary 30,450,373 31,993,458 30,265,165 31,993,458
Office Consumable Expenses 8,028,342 4,776,602 7,766,328 4,776,602
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Particulars

Travelling Expenses

Group Insurance company

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

i) Domestic 12,324,186 3,551,665 12,324,186 3,551,665
ii) Foreign - - - -
Agent Training 17,008,854 5,966,697 17,008,854 5,966,697
Other Agent Expenses 1,313,128,939 1,664,998,765 | 1,313,128,939 1,664,998,765
Insurance Premium 3,909,377 4,462,245 3,907,820 4,462,245
Security Expenses 824,984 826,308 824,984 826,308
Legal and Consulting Expenses 3,411,216 3,715,578 3,311,216 3,715,578
Newspapers, Books and Periodicals 193,337 171,513 189,937 171,513
Advertisement & Promotion Expenses 56,509,619 28,315,865 56,044,507 28,315,865
Business Promotion 18,847,395 4,836,815 18,847,395 4,836,815
Guest Entertainment 1,418,652 966,926 1,418,652 966,926
Gift and Donations 1,530,806 11,000 1,430,806 11,000
Board Meeting Fees and Expenses 24,934 - - -
i) Meeting Allowances 4,549,000 3,524,000 3,919,000 3,524,000
ii) Other Expenses 447,663 250,222 315,663 250,222
Other Committee/ Sub-committee Expenses - - - -
i) Meeting Allowances 4,332,000 4,912,000 4,332,000 4,912,000
ii) Other Expenses - - - -
Annual General Meeting Expenses 1,011,992 946,530 883,340 946,530
Audit Related Expenses - - - -
i) Statutory Audit 1,197,800 1,130,000 1,130,000 1,130,000
ii) Tax Audit - - - -
iif) Long Form Audit Report - - - -
iv) Other Fees - - - -
v) Internal Audit 1,243,000 999,060 1,243,000 999,060
vi) IS Audit 339,000 508,500 339,000 508,500
vii) Others 165,706 59,648 165,706 59,648
Bank Charges 1,000,270 601,058 837,715 601,058
Fee and Charges 8,754,885 12,271,222 8,275,961 12,271,222
Postage Charges 4,750,581 2,878,108 4,750,581 2,878,108
Actuary Fee 4,828,014 1,220,689 4,828,014 1,220,689
Fuel 13,457,313 7,840,738 13,308,180 7,840,738
Staff Entertainment and Conference 16,618,560 10,482,779 16,618,560 10,482,779
Miscelleneous Expenses 14,420,516 11,709,647 14,136,576 11,709,647
FE-Pool Expenses 5,235,055 1,145,922 5,235,055 1,145,922
Policy Stamp 2,574,430 3,069,230 2,574,430 3,069,230
Medical Fee Expense 11,938,587 14,578,267 11,938,587 14,578,267
Foreign exchange (gain)/ loss 13,039 17,419 13,039 17,419
Loss on sale of assets - - - -
Out-source expenses 1,618,671 - 1,618,671 -
Merchant Banking Expenses: - - - -
Depository Participant Expense 31,288 - - -
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Insurance company

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Commission Expenses 1,703,375 - - -
SEBON Commission 847,690 - = -
Service Charge-SEBON 515,686 - - -
BO-Maintenance Cost 80,960 - = -
Total 1,708,307,966 1,941,417,093 | 1,701,578,085  1,941,417,093

42. Finance Cost

Insurance ¢ ompany

Particulars Current Year

Unwinding of discount on Provisions -

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on Financial Liabilities at
Amortised Costs

Interest Expenses - on Financial Liabilities at
Amortised Costs

Interest Expenses - Lease 14,468,238 - 14,161,977 -
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total 14,468,238 - 14,161,977 -

43. Income Tax Expense

a) Income Tax Expense

Insurance company

Particulars Current Year Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year

Current Tax

i) Income Tax Expenses for the Year 1,537,570,372 | 1,034,603,481 | 1,535,700,739 | 1,034,603,481
ii) Income Tax Relating to Prior Periods 14,558,580 - 13,352,734 -
iii) Income Tax Relating to Prior Periods-Shareholder | 1,026,701,030 - | 1,026,701,030 -
Deferred Tax For The Year - - - -
i) Originating and reversal of temporary differences (241,324,162) 115,246,345 | (231,746,008) 115,246,345
ii) Changes in tax rate - - - -
iii) Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - - - -
iv) Write-down or reversal - - - -
v) Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Income Tax Expense 2,337,505,820 | 1,149,849,826 | 2,344,008,495 | 1,149,849,826

b) Reconciliation of Taxable Profit & Accounting Profit

Previous Year

Accounting Profit Before Tax 2,441,251,055 3,116,349,378
Applicable Tax Rate 25% 25%
Tax at the applicable rate on Accounting Profit 610,312,764 779,087,345
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose - -
i) Net Claims Benefits 3,536,213,701 9,061,931,929
ii) Change in Insurance Contract Liabilities 5,898,176,478 24,782,726,257

iii) Foreign Exchange Loss

iv) Fine and Penalties

Less: Tax effect on exempt income and additional deduction
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Particulars Current Year Previous Year

i) Premium Income (8,758,956,757) (31,949,921,645)
ii) Share of Profit of an Associate - -
iii) Dividend Income (14,527,753) (25,183,852)

Less: Adjustments to Current Tax for Prior Periods = =
i) FY ... - -
i) = -
Add/ (Less): Others - -

i) Tax effect of expenses that ar not deductible for tax purpose 248,863,746
ii) - -
Income Tax Expense 1,520,082,178 2,648,640,033
Effective Tax Rate 62% 85%

44. Employee Retirement Benefits
a) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Contribution Plans

For the year ended Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022 ) the company has recognised an amount of NPR 59,881,637.00 as
an expenses under the defined contribution plans in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

b) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Benefit Plans

For Defined Benefit Plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with
Actuarial Valuations being carried out.

¢) Total Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars

Current service cost 45,957,417 50,706,120

Past service cost = - - _

Net interest cost 13,924,220 - - -

a. Interest expense on defined benefit
obligation (DBO)

b. Interest (income) on plan assets - - - -

c. Total net interest cost = - - _

Defined benefit cost included in Statement

of Profit or Loss 59,881,637 50,706,120 - -

d) Remeasurement effects recognised in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars

a. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to financial

assumption changes in DBO 43,357,104 (21,175:502) i )

b. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to experience

on DBO

c. Re'turn on plan assets (greater)/ less than (235,146) 1,886,796 i )
discount rate

Total actuarial (gain)/loss included in OCI 43,121,958 (19,288,706) - -
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e) Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income

Current Year | Previous Year

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Cost recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 59,881,637 -
Remeasurements effects recognised in OCI 43,121,958 (19,288,706) -
Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income 103,003,595 (19,288,706) -

f) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars
L)fetf}'?;e}clle::neﬁt obligation as at the beginning 270,841,344 238,072,920 ) )
Service cost 45,957,417 38,165,712 - -
Interest cost 21,667,308 19,045,834 - -
Benefit payments from plan assets (21,017,673) (3,267,620) - -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - financial assumptions - (3,516,682) - -
Actuarial (gain)/ Loss - experience 43,357,104 (17,658,820) - -
Defined Benefit Obligation As At Year End 360,805,500 270,841,344 - -

8) Change in Fair Value Of Plan Assets

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars
Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year 96,788,604 81,317,825 - -
Interest Income 7,743,088 6,505,426 - -
Expected return on plan assets - -
Employer contributions 71,052,037 10,852,149 - -
Participant contributions - -
Benefit payments from plan assets - -
Transfer in/ transfer out - -
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets 235,146 (1,886,796) - -
Fair value of Plan Assets At End of Year 175,818,875 96,788,604 - -

h) Net Defined Benefit Asset/(Liability)

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars
Defined Benefit Obligation 360,805,500 270,841,344 - -
Fair Value of Plan Assets 175,818,875 96,788,604 - -
(Sur.plus)(Deﬁa? Becogmsed in Statement 184,986,625 367,629,048 ) )
of Financial Position
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i) Expected Company Contributions for the Next Year

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars

Expected company contributions for the next 87,035,627 59,881 637 ) )
year

(Sur'plus)(Defla? !{ecogmsed in Statement 87,035,627 59,881,637 ) )
of Financial Position

7) Reconciliation of amounts in Statement of Financial Position

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars

Net defined benefit liability/ (asset) at prior 174,052,740 156,755,095 ) }
year end

Deflped benefit cost included in Statement of 59,881,637 50,706,120 ) )
Profit or Loss

Total remeasurements included in OCI 43,121,958 (19,288,706) - -
Acquisition/ divestment (21,017,673) (3,267,620) - -
Employer contributions (71,052,037) (10,852,149) - -
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) 184,986,625 174,052,740 - -

k) Reconciliation of Statement of Other Comprehensive Incomne

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars

Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss, beginning 43,357,104 (21,175,502) ) }
of period

Total remeasurements included in OCI (235,146) 1,886,796 - -
Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss 43,121,958 (19,288,706) - -

) Current/Non - Current Liability

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars

Current Liability (184,986,625) (174,052,740)
Non - Current Liability 369,973,250 348,105,480 - =
Total 184,986,625 174,052,740 - -

m) Expected Future Benefit Payments

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Current Year

Particulars

Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

Within 1 year 10,851,663 16,531,433 - -
Between 1-2 years 9,171,978 6,564,345 - -
Between 2-5 years 48,797,813 33,099,500 - -
From 6 to 10 125,883,992 73,371,817 - -
Total 194,705,446 129,567,095 - -
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n) Plan assets

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars

Government Securities (Central and State)

Corporate Bonds (including Public Sector bonds)

Mutual Funds - - -
Deposits (Citizen Investment Trust) 175,818,875 96,788,604 =
Cash and bank balances - - -
Others (to be Specified) = = -
Total 175,818,875 96,788,604 -

o) Sensitivity Analysis

Particulars

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

1% ncreasen Diseount Rate- | (0654139 | @0857429

1% Decrease i Discount Rate | 8307|3855 :
1% Increae in Salary Escalation Rate | 46908180| 34455790 -
1% Decrease inSalry Escalation Rate | (0309789) | (2959429 :
1% Increase in Attton Rate | ©087.498) | (6731361 :
1% Decrease n Atition Rate- | 1017686 | 755754 :

p) Assumptions

. Employee Benefit Any Other Funded
Liability

Discount Rate 8.00% -

Escalation Rate (Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels) 10.00% -

Attrition Rate (Employee Turnover) 2.83% -
q . Nepali Assured Lives

Mortality Rate During Employment Mortality Table, 2009

45. Insurance Risk

Insurance risk includes the risk of incurring higher claims costs than expected owing to the random nature

of claims, frequency and severity and the risk of change in the legal or economic conditions of insurance
or reinsurance cover. This may result in the insurer having either received too little premium for the risks
it has agreed to underwrite and hence has not enough funds to invest and pay claims, or that claims are

in excess of those expected.

The Company seeks to minimise insurance risk through a formalised reinsurance arrangement with
an appropriate mix and spread of business between classes of business based on its overall strategy. This
is complemented by observing formalised risk management policies.

"The Company considers insurance risk to be a combination of the following components of risks:

a) Product development
b) Pricing

¢) Underwriting and
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d) Claims Handling
e) Reinsurance

f) Reserving

a) Product development:

"The above risk exposure is mitigated by the diversification across a large portfolio
of insurance contracts and geographical areas. The variability of risks is improved by
careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategies, which are designed
to ensure that risks are diversified in terms of type of risk and level of insured benefits.
Furthermore, strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review
of claims handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are put in
place to reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The Company further enforces a policy of actively
managing and promptly pursuing claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future
developments that can negatively impact the business."

b) Pricing:
The pricing of an insurance product involves the estimation of claims, operational and financing costs
and the income arising from investing the premium received. The pricing process typically comprises

collecting data on the underlying risks to be covered, determining the pricing assumptions and the
base rate, setting the final premium rate, and monitoring the review of the appropriateness of pricing.

The Company collects adequate data to validate the reasonableness of the underlying assumptions
used for pricing. The base rate represents the amount required to meet the value of anticipated benefits,
expenses, and margins for risks and profit. Data primarily relates to the company's own historical
experience and that of the industry where relevant. These may be supplemented by other internal and
external data, and could include trends observed in claims costs and expenses.

Pricing is done by modelling all identified risks, using appropriate methodologies depending on the

complexity of the risks and available data. Adequate buffers are kept in the premiums to cushion

against the risk that actual experience may turn out to be worse than expected.

c) Underwriting;:

The Company’s underwriting process is governed by the by the internal underwriting procedures.

Some of the actions undertaken to mitigate underwriting risks are detailed belowr:

i) Investments are made on the training and development of underwriting and claims management
staff, including those attached to the distribution network.

ii) Application of Four-Eye principle on underwriting process.

iii) Pre-underwriting inspections are made on new business over a predetermined threshold to evaluate
risk prior to acceptance.

iv) Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed.

v) Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the adequacy
of these covers."

d) Claims handling;:

The Company considers insurance claim risk to be a combination of the following components of risks:

i) Mortality Risk - risk of loss arising due to policyholder death experience being different than
expected

ii) Longevity Risk - risk of loss arising due to the annuitant living longer than expected

iii) Investment Return Risk - risk of loss arising from actual returns being different than expected

iv) Expense Risk - risk of loss arising from expense experience being different than expected

v) Policyholder Decision Risk - risk of loss arising due to policyholder experiences (lapses and
surrenders) being different than expected"
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Level 1: Level 1 Hierarchy includes Financial Instruments measured using Quoted Prices.

Level 2: Fair Value of Financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques which maximises the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible
on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to determine Fair Value of an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in Level 3.

There is no transfer of Financial Instruments between different levels as mentioned above
during the year.

(ii) Valuation Technique Used to Determine Fair Value

a) Use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

b) Fair Value of remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis
(iii) Valuation Process

The finance and accounts department of the Company performs the valuation of financial assets and
liabilities required for financial reporting purposes. Discussion on valuation processes and results are
held at least once in a year.

The main level 3 inputs are derived and evaluated as follows:
a) Discount rate is arrived at considering the internal and external factors.

b) Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the
discounting is material.

(iv) Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost

Amount Value Amount Value
Investments
i) Investment in Preference Shares of ) ) ) )
Bank and Financial Institutions
ii) Investment in Debentures 3,452,160,669 3,452,160,669 2,872,814,053 2,872,814,053
iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal
Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed - - 100,000,000 100,000,000
by Nepal Government)
iv) Fixed Deposit 105,988,100,000 | 105,988,100,000 | 83,801,300,000 | 83,801,300,000
v) Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Loans - - - -
i) Loan to Associates - - - -
ii) Loan to Employees 374,405,052 374,405,052 255,066,891 255,066,891
iii) Loan to Agent 486,497,201 339,829,794 1,180,447,974 1,146,422,603
iv) Loan to Policyholders 24,769,750,182 | 24,769,750,182 | 19,592,663,473 | 19,592,663,473
v) Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Other Financial Assets - - - -
g’fs‘:l Financial Assets at Amortised | 55 (70 913103 | 134,924,245,696 | 107,802,292,392 | 107,768,267,021
Loans and Borrowings - - - -
i) Bond - - - -
ii) Debenture - - - -
iif) Term Loan - Bank and Financial _ _ ) .
Institution
iv) Bank Overdraft - - - -
v) Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities 1,911,188,611 1,911,188,611 2,018,119,313 2,018,119,313
Total Financial Liabilities at 1,911,188,611 | 1,911,188,611 | 2,018119,313 | 2,018,119,313
Amortised Cost
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The fair values of the above financial instruments measured at amortised cost are calculated based on
cash flows discounted using current discount rate.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values,
due to their short-term nature.

47. Financial Risk Management
The Company's activities expose it to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk & Market Risk.
i) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss as a result of the default or failure of third parties to meet their
payment obligations to the Company. Thus, for an insurance contract, credit risk includes the risk that
an insurer incurs a financial loss because a reinsurer defaults on its obligations under the reinsurance
contract.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company’s exposure to credit
risk:

a) Company has credit risk policy which sets out the assessment and determination of what
constitutes credit risk for the Company. Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures
and breaches are reported to the Company’s risk committee. The policy is regularly reviewed for
pertinence and for changes in the risk environment.

b) Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration of
risk is avoided by entering into agreement with more than one party. At each reporting date,
management performs an assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the
reinsurance purchase strategy, ascertaining suitable allowance for impairment.

¢) The company deals with only creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashadh 32, 2079

Gross Expected Expected Carrying
Particulars Asset Group Carrying probability Credit Amount After
Amount of Default Losses Provision
Loseall Eerarll(foees 374,405,052 - - 374,405,052
Credit Risk has not ns:;if:y::‘;; Poy
significantly increased since Loan to Agent 486,497,201 30.15% | 146,667,407 339,829,794
Lo s months expected
initial recognition credit losses L R
oan 1o 24,769,750,182 - - | 24,769,750,182
Policyholders
Credit Risk has significantly
increased and not credit Loss allowance
impaired measured at life- - - - - -
time expected
Credit Risk has significantly credit losses } ) ) ) )
increased and credit impaired

Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashadh 31, 2078

Gross Expected | Expected Carrying
Particulars Asset Group Carrying probability Credit Amount After
Amount of Default Losses Provision
E]‘;;rl‘;;ees 255,066,891 - - 255,066,891
Credit Risk has not }I;S:Szli::;v:tn ;;
?;{?g;fllizgély 1iIt1icOr§ased since months expected Loan to Agent 1,180,447,974 2.88% 34,025,371 1,146,422,603
gn credit losses L :
PO‘;?Cr;hc;l dors | 19592663473 - | 19,592,663,473
Credit Risk has significantly
increased and not credit Loss allowance
impaired measured at life- - - - - -

time expected
Credit Risk has significantly credit losses

increased and credit impaired
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Measured at 12

Particulars months expected Credit Risk has Credit Risk has
credit losses significantly increased significantly increased
and not credit impaired and credit impaired
Loss Allowance on Ashadh 31, 2078 34,025,371 - -
Changes in loss allowances 176,311,282 - -
Write-offs - - -
Recoveries - - -
Loss Allowance on Ashadh 31, 2079 210,336,653 - -

ii) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. In respect of
catastrophic events there is also a liquidity risk associated with the timing differences between gross
cash out-flows and expected reinsurance recoveries.

Maturity of Financial Liabilities:

The table below summarises the Company's Financial Liabilities into Relevant Maturity Groupings
based on their Contractual Maturities for all Financial Liabilities.

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars
1 Yearto5 | More than 1Yearto5 | More than
Loans and Borrowings

Other Financial Liabilities | 1,720,924,277 | 190,264,334
Total Financial Liabilities | 1,720,924,277 | 190,264,334

1,902,085,247 | 116,034,065 -
1,902,085,247 | 116,034,065 -

iii) Market Risk
al) Foreign Currency Risk Exposure
Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to experience volatility in the value of its
assets, liabilities and solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value
between the currencies of its assets and liabilities and its reporting currency. The Company does

not maintain foreign currency denominated assets in its investment portfolios and as such is not
exposed to foreign exchange risk related to investments.

The Company has no significant concentration of currency risk. The amount with reinsurer is
settled in Nepali Rupee.

b1) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The major interest rate risk that the Company is exposed to is the discount rate for determining
insurance liabilities.

b2) Interest Rate Sensitivity

Profit or Loss is sensitive to changes in Interest Rate for Borrowings. A change in Market Interest
Level by 1% which is reasonably possible based on Management's Assessment would have the
following effect on the Profit After Tax.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Interest Rate - Increase By 1%* - -

Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%* - -

* Holding all other Variable Constant
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c1) Equity Price Risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in equity prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or

currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrument or its issuer, or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company has invested in equity securities and the exposure is equity securities price risk
from investments held by the Company and classified in the statement of financial position as fair
value through OCIL.

b2) Sensitivity

The table below summarises the impact of increase/ decrease of the index in the Company’s equity
and impact on OCI for the period. The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index
had increased/ decreased by 1% with all other variables held constant, and that all the Company's
equity instruments moved in line with the index.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Interest Rate - Increase By 1%* - -

Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%* - -

* Other components of equity would increase/decrease as a result of gains/ (losses) on equity securities classified as fair

value through other comprehensive income.
48. Operational Risk

Operational Risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss, or damaged reputation resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems or external events. When controls fail to perform,
operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to
financial loss. The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous
control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage
the risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access controls, authorisation and reconciliation
procedures, staff education and assessment processes, including the use of internal audit. Business risks
such as changes in environment, technology and the industry are monitored through the Company’s
strategic planning and budgeting process.

49. Capital Management
The Company's objectives when managing Capital are to:

a) Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern so that they can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

b) Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

* Regulatory minimum paid up capital

Life insurance companies were required by the Directive of Insurance Board to attain a stipulated
minimum paid up capital of NPR 5 billion by mid-July 2022. As on the reporting date, the company's
paid up capital is NPR 8.20 Billion.

¢ Dividend

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

(i) Dividends recognised

Dividend approval for the year ended 2076/77 was approved by AGM
after Ashad 31, 2078, of NPR 14.7368 /- per fully paid equity share
(Ashadh 31, 2077 - Cash Dividend NPR 0.7368 /- & Stock Dividend 14%). 1,061,048,309 2,802,959,570
This is considered as non adjusting events after the Balance sheet date
and thus not recognised.
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Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Since the year ended the directors have recommended the payment of a
final dividend of NPR 15.7895 /- per fully paid equity share (Ashadh 31,
2078 - Cash Dividend NPR 15.7895). This proposed dividend is subject
to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting

1,295,994,719 -

1,061,048,309 2,802,959,570

(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period

In addition to the above dividends, since the dividend approval for
the year ended 2076/77 was approved by AGM after Ashad 31, 2078,
of NPR 14.7368 /- per fully paid equity share (Ashadh 31, 2077 - Cash
Dividend NPR 0.7368 /- & Stock Dividend 14%). This is considered as
non adjusting events after the Balance sheet date and thus not recognised.

1,061,048,309

2,357,043,028 1,061,048,309

50. Earnings Per Share

Particulars Current Year|Previous Year| Current Year| Previous Year

E:r’f;}thii’z the Year used for Calculating Basic Farning | o\ 359 | 1 966 499550 | 97,242,559 | 1,966,499,552

Add: Interest saving on Convertible Bonds = - - -

Profit For the Year used for Calculating Diluted
Earning per Share

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding
During the Year For Basic Earning per Share
Adjustments for calculation of Diluted Earning per
Share:

i) Dilutive Shares - = = -

65,471,329 | 1,966,499,552 97,242,559 | 1,966,499,552

82,079,665 71,999,707 82,079,665 71,999,707

ii) Options - - - -

iii) Convertible Bonds - = = -

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding

During the Year for Diluted Earning Per Share 82,079,665 71,999,707 82,079,665 71,999,707

Nominal Value of Equity Shares 100 100 100 100
Basic Earnings Per Share 0.80 27 1.18 27
Diluted Earnings Per Share 0.80 27 1.18 27

51. Operating Segment

Segment information is presented in respect of the Company's business segments. Management of the
Company has identified portfolio as business segment and the Company's internal reporting structure is also
based on portfolio. Performance is measured based on segment profit as management believes that it is most
relevant in evaluating the results of segment relative to other entities that operate within these industries.

Segment asset is disclosed below based on total of all asset for each business segment.

The Company operates predominantly in Nepal and accordingly, the Management of the Company is
of the view that the financial information by geographical segments of the Company’s operation is not
necessary to be presented.

Business Segments of the Company’s are:

i) Endowment

ii) Anticipated Endowment

iii) Endowment Cum Whole Life
iv) Whole Life

v) Foreign Employment Term
vi) Other Term

vii) Special Term

viii) Others (to be Specified)
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¢) Reconciliation of Segmental Profit with Statement of Profit or Loss

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Segmental Profit 2,767,160,520 1,927,188,550
Less: Depreciation and Amortization (5,518,140) (3,190,249)
kess: Non—lcash expenses other than Depreciation and (176,311,282) (16,629,426)
mortization

Less: Unallocable Corporate Expenditures (250,190,833) (270,562,480)
Add: Unallocable Other Income 120,272,765 1,479,542,980
Less: Finance Cost (14,161,977)

Profit Before Tax 2,441,251,052 3,116,349,375

d) Reconciliation of Assets

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Segment Assets 138,716,814,509 115,230,077,686
Intangible Assets 890,547 165,122
Property, Plant and Equipment 21,308,781 7,215,704
Investment Properties 38,087,383 21,885,697
Deferred Tax Assets 15,268,478 -
Investment in Subsidiaries 153,000,000

Investment in Associates -

Investments 10,759,951,545 7,809,274,816
Loans 64,716,061 1,988,952,775
Current Tax Assets (Net) 24,218,780 217,743,327
Other Assets 19,980,557 17,860,575
Other Financial Assets 359,793,384 396,538,286
Cash and Cash Equivalents 407,705,331 1,589,573,552
Total Assets 150,581,735,357 127,279,287,540

e) Reconciliation of Liabilities

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Segment Liabilities 140,218,960,927 115,643,937,327
Provisions 321,605,553 306,651,133
Deferred Tax Liabilities - 7,473,045

Current Tax Liabilities (Net) -

Other Financial Liabilities 178,317,838 191,193,425
Other Liabilities 161,481,274 46,083,164
Total Liabilities 140,880,365,592 116,195,338,093

52. Related Party Disclosure
(a) Identify Related Parties

Holding Company: The Company doesn’t have holding company for the fiscal year ended Ashadh 32,
2079 ( 16th July, 2022)

Subsidiaries: The Company have Invested 1,530,000 number of Shares of Rs. 100 each in Nepal Life
Capital Limited for the fiscal year ended Ashadh 32, 2079 (16th July, 2022)
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Associates: The Company doesn’t have associates for the fiscal year ended Ashadh 32, 2079 (16th July,
2022)

Fellow Subsidiaries: The Company doesn’t have fellow subsidiaries for the fiscal year ended Ashadh
32,2079 (16th July, 2022)

Key Management Personnel:

Mr. Govind Lal Sanghai Chairman

Mr. Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal Independent Director

Mr. Vivek Agrawal Non Executive Director

Mr. Bimal Prasad Dhakal Non Executive Director

Mrs. Parul Dhakal Non Executive Director

Mr. Krishnaraj Lamichhane Non Executive Director

Mr. Sakti Kumar Golyan Independent Director

Mr. Pravin Raman Parajuli Senior Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Sushil Kumar Chaudhary Act. Chief Executive Officer

b) Key Management Personnel Compensation

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Short-term employee benefits 17,140,943 19,780,093

Post-employment benefits - -

Other long-term benefits - -

Termination benefits - -

Total 17,140,943 19,780,093

Payment to Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Particulars Current Year

Annual salary and allowances 5,371,865 6,363,215
Performance based allowances = =
i) Employee Bonus 1,585,581 -
ii) Benefits as per prevailing provisions 1,932,497 2,704,501
iii) Incentives - 2,276,376

Insurance related benefits - -

i) Life Insurance - -

ii) Accident Insurance - -

iii) Health Insurance (including family members) - -

Total 8,889,943 11,344,092
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53. Leases
(a) Leases as Lessee
(i) Operating Leases:

The Company has various operating leases ranging from 5 years to 10 years. The company has not
entered into any of Non-cancellable lease agreement. The leases are renewable by mutual consent
and contain escalation clause. Rental expenses for operating leases recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss for the year is NPR 86,124,161.94 (Ashadh 31,2078/ July 15,2021: NPR 79,635,326.13).

Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below:

Future Minimum Lease Payments Current Year Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year 65,323,689 77,721,839
ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 156,353,819 219,472,712
iii) Later than 5 years 14,236,195 30,099,641

(ii) Finance Lease:

The Company holds assets under finance leases. Future minimum lease payments and lease liability
at the end of the year is given below:

Future Minimum Lease Payments Current Year Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year - -

ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -

iii) Later than 5 years - -

Total Future Minimum Lease Payments - =

Less: Effect of Discounting - -

Finance lease liability recognised - -

(b) Leases as Lessor
(i) Operating Lease:

The Company has leased out certain office spaces of its asset- 'Investment Property' that are
renewable on a periodic basis. The company has not entered into any Non-cancellable lease. Rental
income received during the year in respect of operating lease is NPR 56,813,949 (Ashadh 31, 2078/
July 15, 2021: NPR 45,846,602). The disclosure of Investment Property is separately made under
note no. 5

Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below:

Future Minimum Lease Income Current Year Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year - -

ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -

iii) Later than 5 years - -

(ii) Finance Lease:

The Company has not given any of it's assets under finance lease agreement.

Current Year Previous Year

Unearned
Finance
Income

Unearned
Finance
Income

Particulars

Net Gross
Investment | Investment

Net
Investment

Gross
Investment

i) Not Later than 1 year - - - - - -

ii) Later than 1 year and
not later than 5 years

iii) Later than 5 years - - - - - -
Total - - o o o -
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54. Capital Commitments

The company has no Capital Commitments at the reporting date

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Property, Plant and Equipment - -

Investment Properties - -

Intangible Assets -

Total

55. Contingent Liabilities

There are no contingent liabilities associated with the company's compliance or lack of compliance with
such regulations.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts - -

a) Income Tax -

b) Indirect Taxes -

¢) Others (to be Specified) o -

Total -

56. Events occuring after Balance Sheet

Dividend of NPR 15.7895 /- per fully paid equity share of FY 2077/78 (Cash Dividend of NPR 15 /- &
NPR 0.7895/ - for tax purpose) was approved by AGM on Mangsir 08, 2079.

57. Assets Pledged as Security (only if pledged)

The company has not pledged any assets as security.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Reinsurance Receivables

Investments in equity

Fixed Deposits

Property, plant and equipment

Others (to be Specified)

Total -

58. Miscellaneous

(i) All amounts are in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated.
(if) All figures are in the Nearest Rupee & Rounded off.
(iil) Total SODPL after adjustment of dividend of FY 2076/77 & 2077/78 is Rs. -124,936,855
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59. Bonus Rate

Bonus Rate declared by company for policy holders for one thousand sum assured:

Plan

Close / Open
to New
Business

Type of Plan

2078/79

Policy Term 5-20 Years 60
11 Surakshit Jeevan Open Endowment | Policy Term 21-25 Years 70
Policy Term >25 Years 82
Policy Term 5-20 Years 60
15 Jeevan Jyoti Open Endowment | Policy Term 21-25 Years 70
Policy Term >25 Years 82
Rural End Policy Term 5-20 Years 60
16 ural Endowment Open Endowment | Policy Term 21-25 Years 70
Assurance -
Policy Term >25 Years 82
i Policy Term 5-20 Years 60
17 1ero Open Endowment | Policy Term 21-25 Years 70
Endowment -
Policy Term >25 Years 82
Policy Term 5-20 Years 60
51 KetaKeti Open Endowment | Policy Term 21-25 Years 70
Policy Term >25 Years 82
Child Ed . Policy Term 5-20 Years 60
53 Plaln ucation Open Endowment | Policy Term 21-25 Years 70
Endowment Policy Term >25 Years 82
Policy Term 5-20 Years 60
61 Jiwan Laxmi Plan Open Endowment | Policy Term 21-25 Years 70
Policy Term >25 Years 82
End Policy Term 5-20 Years 62
63 Jiwan Sarathi Open /n]o?x?iefr;t Policy Term 21-25 Years 72
Policy Term >25 Years 85
Naulo Surakshi Policy Term 5-20 Years 65
13 aulo Surakshit Open Endowment | Policy Term 21-25 Years 72
Jeevan Beema -
Policy Term >25 Years 82
Naulo Ketaketi Policy Term 5-20 Years 65
55 Jeevan Beema Open Endowment | Policy Term 21-25 Years 72
Yojana Policy Term >25 Years 82
5 ‘ Policy Term 5-20 Years 56
72 Jeevan amimuna Open Endowment | Policy Term 21-25 Years 60
Beema Yojana -
Policy Term >25 Years 70
Jeevan Udaya Policy Term 5-20 Years 60
91 Ekal Jeevan Open Endowment | Policy Term 21-25 Years 70
Beema Yojana Policy Term >25 Years 82
Policy Term 5-20 Years 60
Endowment cum 62 Ji Sahara Pl o Endow. Cum -
Whole life Iwan sahara Mlan pen Whole Life | Policy Term 21-25 Years 70
Policy Term >25 Years 82
Anmol Jeevan Policy Term 5-20 Years 60
Endowment cum 71 Beema Open Endow. Cum Policy Term 21-25 Years 70
Whole life Vo P Whole Life y
ojana Policy Term >25 Years 82
21 Dhan Varsha Closed Anticipated 50
22 Dhan Varsha Closed Anticipated 50
23 Jeevan Sambridhi Closed Anticipated 50
24 Jeevan Sambridhi Closed Anticipated 50
Anticipated 25 Naulo Dhana Open Anticipated 50
Barsha
Endowment Naulo Ji
aulo Jiwan -
26 Sambridhi Open Anticipated 50
27 Jeevan Unnati Open Anticipated 50
52 Chhora Chhori Closed Anticipated 50
69 Sadabahar Jivan Open Anticipated 50
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Annexure II
Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited

MINIMUM DISCLOSURE IN MANAGEMENT REPORT
(Year Ended Upto Ashadh 32, 2079)

A. Information related to Life Insurer

1 | Date of establishment: 2055/10/18 B.S. (01/02/1999 A.D.)

2 | Insurer licence date: 2058/ 01/ 04 B.S. (17/04/2001 A.D.)
3 | Insurance business type, nature: Life Insurance

4 | Date of commencement of business: 2058/ 01/ 21 B.S. (04/ 05/ 2001 A.D.)
5 | Other matters which insurer wish to include: None

B. Insurer’s Board of Directors shall approve following matters

1. Validity of license issued by Beema Samiti to carry insurance business:

The license has been renewed in accordance of Insurance Act & Regulation. There is no any issue
outstanding as per section 11(A), Insurance Act 2049 in validating the insurance license.

2. Tax, service charges, fine and penalties to be paid under laws & regulation whether paid or not:
Tax, service charges, fine and penalties to be paid under laws & regulation are paid
3. Share structure of the insurer, changes if any in line with prevailing laws & regulation:

The company has an authorized capital of NPR 1,000 crore and paid up capital of NPR 820.79 crore.
The share capital stracture of the company comprises of 51 percent as promoter share and 49 percent
as public share. There is no any changes in share capital structure as at the year end.

4. Whether solvency ratio as prescribed by Beema Samiti is maintained or not:
The company has maintained the solvency ratio as prescribed by Beema Samiti.
5. a) Assets that financial amount contained in SOFP are not overstated than it's fair value.

b) Measurement basis of the assets recognized in financial statements are historical cost less
depreciation, amortized cost and fair value.

6. All the investments made by the company are in line with prevailing laws. All the provisions of
Insurance Act,2049, Insurance Regulations, 2049 are followed and investments are made accordance to
Investment Directive issued by Beema Samiti.

7. Number of claim settled within the year and outstanding claim number and time frame to settle the
outstanding claim.

During the FY 2078 /79, Total number of policies for Death Claim payment was 1,954, Maturity payment
was 10,197, survival benefit payment was 24,751 and surrender payment was 13,793. The number of
outstanding Death claims are 22, Maturity claims are 10,888 and Survival claims are 11,265.

8. Declaration on compliance with the provision of Insurance Act 2049, Insurance Regulation 2049,
Company Act 2063, NFRSs and other prevailing laws & regulation to which insurer shall adhere to
and any non compliance with reasons thereof:

The company has taken sufficient measures to comply with all the provision of Insurance Act 2049,
Insurance Regulation 2049, Company Act 2063, NFRSs and other prevailing laws & regulations as
applicable.

9. Declaration that the appropriate accounting policy has been consistently adopted:

The Financial Statement of the Company has been prepared in accordance with the applicable
accounting
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standards, principles and policies followed along with proper explanations relating to material departures,

10.

11.

12.

13

14.

15.

16.

if any.
Declaration on Financial Statements as at Reporting Date that the insurer's Financial Position and

Financial Performance are presented true & fairly:

Financial Statement as at Ashadh 32, 2079 present true & fair view of Financial Position and Financial
Performance of the Company.

Declaration that Board of Directors have implemented adequate and appropriate provision to
safeguard the assets and for identification and mitigation against losses due to fraud, embezzlement
and irregularities:

Board of Directors have implemented adequate and appropriate provision to safeguard the assets and
for identification and mitigation against losses due to fraud, embezzlement and irregularities.

Financial Statements have been prepared based on going concern basis.

Declaration that the internal control system is commensurate with the size, nature & volume of the
insurer's business:

The company has been keeping the internal control system effective and efficient. The company has
appointed an independent chartered accountant as internal auditor to strengthen internal control
system; the management receives quartely internal audit report and make comprehensive discussion.

Declaration that the insurer has not conducted any transactions contrary to Insurance Act, 2049,
Companies Act, 2063, related regulations and directions with any person, firm, company and
insurer's director or with any entity in which insurer's director has interest:

The insurer has not conducted any transactions contrary to Insurance Act, 2049, Companies Act, 2063,
related regulations and directions with any person, firm, company and insurer's director or with any
entity in which insurer's director has interest

Disclosure on any penalties, levied by Beema Samiti for the particular financial year:
There is no any penalties, levied by Beema Samiti for the financial year 2078/79.
Other disclosure which is deemed appropriate by management:

None.

@ 233 arfier wirage Q00T /oE



Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited

MAJOR FINANCIAL INDICATOR

(Year Ended Upto Ashadh 32, 2079)

Fiscal Year

Annexure III

2078/79 2077/78 2076/77 2075/76 2074/75

S. .

N. Particular

1 | Net worth NRs. 9,701,369,764 11,041,485,154 | 9,225,337,123 | 9,144,232,023 | 9,691,295,181

2 | Number of Shares Number 82,079,665 82,079,665 71,999,707 54,961,608 43,969,287

3 | Book value per shares NRs. 118 135 128 166 220

4 | Net Profit NRs. 97,242,559 | 1,964,067,798 | 1,108,130,708 | 1,336,303,963 | 1,453,842,041

5 | Earning per Shares (EPS) NRs. 1.18 24 15 24 20

6 | Dividend per Shares (DPS) NRs. - 15.7895 14.7368 51.0 49

7 | Market Price per Shares (MPPS) NRs. 747 1,919 1,260 901 1,050

8 | Price Earning Ratio (PE Ratio) Ratio 631 80 82 37 58]

9 | Solvency Margin % 3.47 2.62 2.72 3.48 3.13

10 | Change in Equity % -12.14% 19.69% 0.89% -5.64% 5.09%

11 | Return on Revenue % 0.28% 4.54% 3.11% 4.49% 6.71%

12 | Return on Equity % 1.00% 17.79% 12.01% 14.61% 15.00%

13 | Return on Investments % 9.47 % 9.22% 10.64 % 10.41% 12.71%

14 | Return on Assets % 0.06% 1.54% 1.09% 1.72% 2.32%

15 | Operating Expense Ratio % 7.04% 8.45% 10.01% 10.36% 10.69%

16 | NetInsurance Premium/ Gross 7 98.72% 98.71% 98.64% 98.74% 98.89%
Insurance Premium

17 | Net Profit/ Gross Insurance % 0.27% 6.07% 401% 5.78% 8.77%
Premium

18 | Gross Insurance Premium/ Total % 23.57% 25.43% 27.19% 29.74% 26.39%
Assets

19 | Income from Investment & loan/ % 8.59% 8.20% 9.52% 9.73% 9.80%
Total investment & loan amount

gy | Reiimettiinge s ilslon e/ % 19.40% 6.08% 22.75% 22.06% 9.80%
Gross Reinsurance Premium

21 | Management expenses/ Gross % 7.80% 8.49% 10.06% 10.36% 10.70%
Insurance Premium

27 | Agent Related Expenses/ Gross % 13.69% 1617% 17.82% 18.58% 1651%
Insurance Premium

23 | Number of Agents Numbers 207,294 185,739 157,645 127,883 107,066

24 | Number of Branch and Sub-Branch Numbers 195 199 197 179 135

25 | Employee expenses/ Management % 29.63% 27.61% 27.08% 24.15% 25.00%
expenses

26 | Employee expenses/ Number of % 1,246,674 1,243,527 | 1,235,548 1,061,103 1,030,551
Employees

27 | Outstanding Claim/ Claim Paid % 12.13% 24.96% 23.26% 10.13% 25.07%

2g | Total Number of In Force Numbers 1,054,691 1381433 | 1304632 1,280,636 1,084,149
Insurance Policies

29 | Gross Premium Growth Rate % 9.65% 17.02% 19.68% 42.92% 32.33%

30 | Change in Gross Premium % 9.65% 17.02% 19.68% 42.92% 32.33%

31 | Actuarial Provision Amount - - - - -

32 | Technical Provisions/ Total Equity % - - - - -

33 | Reinsurance Ratio % 7.72% 3.69% 5.29% 9.28% 4.62%

34 | Gross Premium Revenue/ Equity % 366% 293% 300% 253% 171%

35 | Net Premium Revenue/ Equity % 361% 289% 296% 250% 169%

36 | Insurance Debt/ Total Equity % - - - - -

37 | Liquidity Ratio % 1.99 3.25 3.34 4.97 4.22

38 | Affiliate Ratio % - - - - -
(Unquoted Equities + Debtors)/ o o o o o o

39 Net Total Assets % 0.01% 0.01% 1.78% 3.31% 1.21%
Number of Renewed Policy/ Last

40 | Year's Total Number of In Force % 71.51 72.61 87.08 80.47 92.12
Policies

41 Number of Intimated qalm/ Total % 248 248 376 388 355
Number of In Force Policy

42 | Declared Bonus Rate Per Thousand | Rs50-Rs 85| Rs56-Rs82| Rs56-Rs82 | Rs62-Rs82| Rs62-Rs 82

43 | Interim Bonus Rate Per Thousand
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SAR.

ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

AT ATRH TART FHAT [ATESH AEAT HET(HEee G0
CEGIRNEPTIR ISC G
forirr faaor SRt gfqaes

HGTTEFE FrETT a7

gTHISr qUTl TS SR HWAT fafHee (Faufy “erer” AfHuS) & a0 o d9Ie 3R,
0% (4% FATE 0 BN AT, Hife FAfGwT AT adE AT e B9, SR WOw
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AUTA AT Sovdleod Bdloil feifdies
3. d.209Z /00K
facier faeruner wrfem wa qar fifvee

FTEA-2=
q. HIISollcAD STADBIST :

FIHT U, R0%3 T ST U, R0%< el Ulscrsh fafqee wroteRr &7 fafd 04c/02/22 AT AT AR SARH
HTO{IhT TTIAT U &Y | ATt IR el TS ST Tsit &t Tonfud e oY Sfiae SffHT S| SRR
T TR sftar wffaare fafd 0uciogioy AT TR T T TR HeTATET el Ut dedr SAT SwEOT 2 | 79 T
T T U THT HETIR FEET At U2 % TaTeRT ¥ % HAHTIRUT TUTCHICTs T6=hT THUShT & | T ETeT JEhT 03,20 ATIRIT
T TTEITE TEohT & | T I GTHT Trarwell Trblar favash! @At UTed JAsTAT HPaet 22T &t ST,
IR STRATERT 9UehT & | |18 STt YsaT shrot fetfaes T femmera ft S~ st ferfreedi af gsitar graet
AT TR © | I8 FFoTehT TTee e STUisT, THIAT ©ohl @ 9 21 hETad HHATE!, FHISHIUSIHT &ehl B |

9. fadfter faaeur qardleT 3MURES :

FEIIRT oI UfdRTideh ool STTUNUT STTET TRt HaHT= g, TN 1 8a8HT JTet oiamaH, Jurel fafaer
SdaeTHT T ST U R0 <, &fiuT faamreedt 0% T axfifaer fafa o€/ 04 /2% 7T IR ekt Tadia T e
STFE TR TRTEHT & |

STIHIER ST afffder SRY TRehr faedter faferehT STgam oTiefer faarue® qam et HuTer @ Tt T usht
AETREE GFaTf-ed IHeRAT GeraT TR S |

3. Rer Jaufr amgq ofifa :
TR TrafetTs AT JoamT TS T fifd STaere THueh & |
8. BT B¢t ofifa :

feor grafasr graegt durer  fafer wfadeTo o< (Proeprty, Plant and Equipment) & e W FHIH
HrafeEEah! SUATTATRT (useful life) STUTRHT SATEITUA 3T TEIRUT T THETHT (Straight Line basis) BT
T T i fesr S |

erﬁuseful life ﬁwmgl
| G TR ¥ %
R | Frier 3uwr ¥ Y
3 | gan AT -remaTEed) ° Y
¥ | wiER e e () ¥ %
w | iR e e (Be) ou Ty
% | ORI T T « g%
o | AfeeRY SushoT (FT3e) Ty
¢ | Aferdt SueRor (23) ou Ty
R | fasrEes « I
g0 | e “o TH
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TedT & 20,000 YT HH T Godoh TR Yoot Hrafaesans qufiehd i fifer ferguent |
§. MRABR AGEAT gl dishrs sifd :
EISCLIEIDER
TR U o\ ¢ ITFHT ATTINRT STRIHT TUHT UG & TS HT U 0% R, ST FemTaeft 0% T &T afvfaet SR
TR Terfier THQTeTeRTeRT STETCAT AT AT TeETe T 3T o9 TedTeae T afewhis T ifd fersuen & |
ETAHRT

Tt T STeTcaenT T SATE T Bk Tarcier faramumaT Soctfad oy sffereht STET thiehaT JUTel @I 2R (Income
Taxes) STTHTR T HTeh! SHALAT THUHT & | ITEATAhT TTFHT Serfetd T rafeerd TrT o Trafe STget 3UT Tat ar
TR T ATIRT ST L HREh TaT AN G el &L L T STTHI T Hiehl ThH fEIRoT THTRIS |

V. TGl |l aitfel :
() TR/ afserh fafie e FFOIRT T9qU= / FUTIFHT STHT A-THA ATf -

(3T) UTCT ThRERT SHqUS AT VIS I UTET TRREhT STHIA U1 FOTT=HT o Ufscrsh fefaes srafient
eI/ FUTISHT TRUT TS 3150 oo (Face Value) AT AR T Hifd fersuent & |

(3T) TS (3) SHITSTH TRTERT ATTeRT SHATEd Hod HraT e Hod e | HUHT ol 96T CRHeTS ST / GRS
Tt fafaer E<ies 1 ST AWTEH T A7 GEATs A&l AHIeRT 31afer fsr gaTaTiaen smemmET
(Pro-rata Basis)IITGFTCI@'@? Tﬁﬁﬁﬁffﬁ'ﬂﬂﬁ@l

(3) @ug () TS MU TTHIGRT ST Hool YT Wl Hool H UHT Rl Tieh ThHTITS TiTHT STafer
Tt FETgTTAeR SATETHT STHIETE STRIEhT EHT TRATSH T H1id feagueht & | AT aefifaere ST Thwshr
TG SIS ST TRATSH T U7 uTe fotae HTqeaHT & STET JUehT & |

(@) o/ e deamn qeet e @ S if

Sk / farefier GTerehT et FarT a1 AT Tt HISHT HaRIgEeh! 3UGH STIdeh! Far IS SiaT THEHT
TR T i FeTgUeht & | T el CTTTHTohT FITE TR e 3 STRUTEST TeohTet R g Tae STaeT ST
VUhT GUSHT T TTTT TohHehT SIS ATeRTHT SareelT T i ferguent & |

(M) ufscr fafae e FFHTRT TATHT AT AQGTHA AN -

yfecten fafaee sraefient Giaerd SRITT AT AR TTHT ATSTHTEEHT THRUh! THIATs e JedHT er@ishT
TITERT & T AT TRURT IR @IS THUh! JeaH-aT TSR o A G TUAT &l Beh ThH e
WW(PI‘OViSiOH) i Hife fergusr @ | mmwmwwwm
Feftame 220 (Delisted WTHT) HY T STTEREHT AT s3awe 71 o fifd fersuer |

fecte faifee shTdHieR HEeTTeh SRITHT THTIHT TITRT I STHIETS el HodmT J@3- Hifd fasuent & | @,
T iRt dfecres fefiee srofient Heemueh IR @t ek firfdet o aee af seiferd s smifem
ForaTsT SSTCAT e TUHT 8T FIT STeRehT THTTTHT STAUTART AT SaeeT TR Hifd ferguen & |

C. Ucgl gcde HAISI ofifd :

e HaTHT U FRIGRATS Tt farfae gfdagmm 32 (The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rate)
ITIAR HRIGR UshT TafaaT s fafamr T s1ged Jureft gammr sur-aer 1ie fifq faguenr 3|
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¥. dionged 3negTell A|Sd ofifer :

TR TG AT TehT ST SfHTYeh STFETHT ST T A1 STaeTrs Tehl & | a¥, e i fafe vt offmr ek
R ] 0 i Qo fr oA Sfesgess R SIS arafed aiET ST erETs T Hifq sTaere TR 3
| Ffq SrATYIee Usha™ =T St STATIR! ATHT UHYSS WIS WUHT Ufecl auel ATHT g7 SIS afHTsIesh STarT aifeft
STkt ekl ThH ERIETeRT EIHT T 1T feIgUeh! & | TR, UoheT ST ATTohUEhT STHToRT GeRHAT AT SAEET AF] G &
| ATt Seehd TR FHISHH  eRIdTehT ST TNGURT ThAETE TTSeclT TUEEHT STHT STaTeshl THTIITIAER EIHT STHTEIeh
T dited Hif feguant & |

Fafareh USHR FATY St ST SeEmIeR! 31 = feamemT sfmIes (Qg) ToMT Taf, fifd 004/ 20/ 02 3@ pool
FCITIRGRT FTierd Jafereh USHTE wret g oAt e e e swifs ey fewament ST ook AT ST
RT3 |

90. GoTdldT SHfdrere 3MegTell AAZ ol ofife :
YA HRETE U7 HIHIHETS AwTet STEHAT (accrual basis) AT T@TEA T fifd Taers TRTRN & | G AT

FHAIA (Profit Commission) I FHAT 3t HIAYHATS G W a7 T THRaTE Ut Teafed Telen STramaT
T afed fifq faswrr 3

99. 36 AR QA doI dishrs sifd :

FETeT STHTSIedh ToIT 31T UCIe TG aTeehahT ST SHT HfHdehT farfer faemor aremeft fdfarenT 18T cr@rs
T dtewre T Hifd faguerr |

93. Holl AAFd ailfd :

) vaferd HHT T SHITSTH HFoTeT hell UG TaT el el STt g TaTe STTIR Tl TR shelielTs grar
THHAT @ i feTsuent 3 |
FEAT ST (TSR T | Sholl STEehT ThH AT el T fife feiguert & | adr e T afafaenr
Tarefter ToaaroT avereft A farent ST9eT Miwe § |

3T)  FFOHTC SHTCRgh! FIamT HaT e Fetiehl GoRHT STHTCT@EhT ST SRS el Shol [T TFTi-ad AT
Shd g UH SHATET Tleh TR SThd g U SfHTeRgeR! fadmT Ha TRUGRT FSiells el IHRaTe 8
TSI TR T feguent & | T Icieh STTTieh TSeh! ST-eIHT STthd g SHTeIE Tieh TR Hifd ferguent & |

3)  FUARIEETS UG TR TG Fofl T Ha HTEH Tl STeqhiietT ol T I FHoTTelTg [GHehTier oIt
afifertor 71 fifer fergeent |

) SerdieEaTs HeH TRUH! FHeliaTs fEHahTia shsTaT Sty T Aifd fesur o |

93. A<AT W SISHIS oiifd :
el ST TS (pool T aTeeh) faT afifaent fEw aHIfT STHAT SHaEe @ishT 231 HfawTd T oo
GiqeTd TRHATS SHHST ATHT A fearer T 31 o5 feamemr siewie ™ ifd foaguanr @ | Jefmen s Fret sfied
fomT ORI pool FTEITIERT U SHFdHTeh! fewameh! Geiers sftar afufaenr fdye saifsm Swm @=ient o
FiaeTd T Fos a2 ThACTS ShAST: TR A TGETe T RITeT Sfia ST SJadTaeh! 1 o9 T6H1eMT aiehie
Fifq fasmnr 3|

q8. §iar gt oehTell Td | o aifel :

TP STeeRT ST T TaT STHTCTE STHITSTHeRT ThT-T U TohH ToIT §T ST Tl eehT AATHT FFu-TohT UGTRIshI
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T fifq STaeeH TiueT & | Sefere USTR =rel Sfiae Tt el pool STEITIHETE T VT FHITST ETH
feTenT STt Rt ThRACTS Tt Sfia femT sremrent 31 =51 ey steaiar aTelt ST (ge) TemmemT gurasT
iU B |

QY. §idT GIdl arad GIfIcd T4 AT AAS ol ofifd :

(%) ST WURT T STHFRIWT TR (IBNR) T el amaa arireaert @nft furgier arferea it | o
U AT HoaTs Hidog-enT STERAT SFareelT T+ fifd STaera THush & |

(@) T aTelt arudeht weile g aitfer gy aTelt, atafer o areft, atifren atafer wmmfe areft qem awdor goxr areft
T SftaT fremTaeft 0%¥R THT 24 (Fr) T TG STid et aTaT ThHRT 22% TTaT ThH SEwT T Hifd
TR TR & | FF9Teh TSR w7t SfiarT femT e mereh! 3T SAaETuae UTed WU STTHT HPa-Teht
TeTHTehT ST G el aTelt aTIden WA BITET Stia fomT saammeehT 1R & feumer steia STifefer aweRt
ST TBTHT & SiTehT QT ATIT SATEITHT FHTAIT TR S |

9g. e AR Iud diswrs ifed :
FEIehT SHT SATHRISTE YT STeIdelTs SHTEIT JoTeh THUGhT STECTHT STHTeRISHT TohT ST=0T 7T T A1eET T

GY TR ThATTS AT e feamemT a1 T SHTEI Yoo UveiTd AT ThHCTS o fHT diafaen! feaapd T ATt
e feaTemT GHRSH TR i staereT Tius 31

qu. SHafarst 3uqra, fagr den e Jhawr arua w=rawen sifer :

FHA 3UTH, TaaT T 177 Giaem arad YRR Tu- STEshTeT b ST shirt fHemTaeiT Seare R aHTfem
WWWﬁWWﬂng\HW faferr afdaeTam 2% (Employee Benefits) AU
TSR 3TE5 | AT AT T 31 L e Treret fafTa STgam, R0y HIE 23 WaT STE, FHFa AT St et
feTusht FFHETIETS, 21 U, R0t 1 HTUGUS YT T HFI-h! HHART fafammae SHHR e T T fafd 200
TTE 2% 9T Ui TRYfh TeTuent Shaieeeh! ST 97 U, Ro\sy STJAN ¢ (U HiEHTeh! ST qetel sRTeeh!
ThH ST TR & |

qG. IihIEUG M =ra<en sfifd :

HUATATIRT STETRAT ST TG S NGURT SIS HeTereh difden TefiehiauT STTavehrerdT=T e 1 Hifd
IR TR 3 |

Y. TAIH I AAF ol e :

TR TR GNGHT YTRIT TRUHT BT THetTs dt FuTTseh! Yohi 1ate e sTaera i fifa fasuent &
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Promoter share pledged as on Ashad end 2079

.
units units

1 |Basu Dev Golyan 657464 Vishal Agrawal 36150
2 |Pawan Kumar Golyan 646543 36 |Madhusudan Agrawal 35721
3 |Narayan Prasad Mundara 522690 37 |Nand Kishor Sharma 34864
4 | Pradip Kumar Murarka 264039 38 [Mahesh Kumar Agrawal 31920
5 |Satish Kumar More 260317 39 |Sumit Agrawal 30000
6 [Shashi Kant Agrawal 228000 40 |Bijaya Kumar Agrawal 29868
7 | Amit Agrawal 207267 41 |Suraj Pandia 28726
Prudential Capital Management 42 |Pratik Jalan 22401
8 |¢c 200000
ompany Pvt. Ltd.
43 |Surendra Kumar Goel 21275
9 |[Shankar Lal Agrawal 186051
44 |Prem Bahadur Baral 20518
10 | Ashok Kumar Agrawal 176920 B B
45 |Mahendra Kumar Bhimsaria 19911
11 | Ashok Kumar Agrawal 158944 - -
46 |Suraj Adhikary 19798
12 |Prakash Bikram Khatri 153900 :
47 |Raj Kumar Baral 19629
13 |[Shrawan Kumar More 143861 -
48 |Dipesh Bahadur Dhoubanzar 17746
14 |Jaishree Golchha 125445 .
49 |Roshani Maiya Dhoubanzar 17746
15 | Anjali Sarawogi 123117 )
50 [Rajendra Kumar Agrawal 17733
16 |Shiv Ratan Agarwal 123111 )
51 |Nand Kishor Sharma 17184
17 |Raj Kumar More 108934 B
52 [Sanjeeb Kumar Dahal 14479
18 |Bodh Prasad Tripathi 100781 )
53 |Lalit Sarda 14198
19 |Saurav Garg 98494 i
54 |Bharat Regmi 11642
20 |Ram Awatar Agrawal 89151 )
55 |Pawan Kumar Saria 11286
21 |Sajjan Kumar Khetan 87644 )
56 |Arpit Agrawal 11219
22 |Nirmal Kumar Agrawal 65835
57 | Poonam Goel 10615
23 |Sanjay K Surek 63269
anjay ~Hmar oures 58 |Keshav Tuladhar 10258
24 | Sushil Gupta 59361 )
59 [Sumitra Sharma 9571
25 | Renu Mittal 59000 )
60 |Sumitra Sharma 8396
26 |Suresh Kumar Agrawal 57454 )
61 |Binod Prasad Dulal 5700
Shree Ganesh I ti d
27 Invggtmirrﬁ: roperties an 57000 62 |Navratan Mal Chandaliya 5700
28 |Pramila Devi Agrawal 51920 63 |Shyam Chokhani 5689
29 ]ayant Kumar Agrawal 51520 64 |Suresh Kumar Dharewal 5677
30 |Suresh Kumar Agrawal 49246 65 |Kanhaiya Mittal 4180
31 |Ram Awatar Agrawal 43077 66 |Ravi Kumar Agrawal 3548
20 || SRk e M 40227 67 |Pradeep Krishna Manandhar 3252
33 | Anant Kumar Golyan 40000 68 |Shova Mishra 1924
34 |Renu Agrawal 37335
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ACTUARIAL VALUATION FY78/79 (AS AT 16 JULY 2022)

Certification by Appointed Actuary

ACTUARY’S CERTIFICATE

I, Philip Jackson, do hereby certify that:

1. I have applied such tests as | consider reasonable to satisfy myself about the accuracy and
completeness of the database on business in force used in my valuation;

2. | have valued the liabilities in compliance with the Valuation Directive 2077 for Life Insurers and
Insurance Act 2049 (1992) issued by Insurance Regulatory Authority of Nepal (NIA) to the extent
they are applicable to the valuation; and

3. | have valued the liabilities in respect of products for which the basis of valuation is not
prescribed, on a basis, which | consider appropriate and adequate.

Philip Jackson
Fellow of the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries

28 December 2023

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited 7 28 December 2023
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SAR.

ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited (the
“Company”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at Ashadh 31, 2080 (July 16,
2023), and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consclidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Company as at Ashadh 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023), and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matlers that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
the audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whele, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
nat provide a separate opinion on Lhese matters. We have determined the matters deseribed below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.

| 8. N | Key Audit Matters

|1

i

Auditor’s Response

Investment Valuaﬁ‘);, Identification, and | "Our audit approach regarding verification of process of |

identification and

Impairment investment valuation, impairment |
NRFS - Investment of the company comprises of | included:
lrgelbiienll [ GUONEE TR I a. Review of the investment of company and its valuation

debentures, mutual funds, fixed deposits of
financial institutions. The valuation of the aforesaid
securities has been done in compliance with NAS
39 read with NFRS 9. The investmeni in the | b.
government and NRB bonds and T-bills should be
recognized on reporting date on Amartized cost
basis whereas other imvestments in equity
instruments, other than those held for trading,
should be valued at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income.

Given the varicties of treatments recommended for
valuation of imvestment based on nature of cash
Now, Lhe busmess model adopted, complexity of
caleulations  and  the  signilicance  of  amount |,
imolved in such imvestments, same has been
considered as Key Audil Matter in our audit.

|

IT controls with respect to recording of
transactions, generating various reports
compliance with Nepal Insurance Authority
guidelines and other compliances to regulalors is
an important part of the process. Such reporting is
highly dependent on the effective working of |
Software and other allied systems. | b.

We have considered this as key audit matter as any |
control lapses, validation failures, incorrect input
data and wrong extraction of data may result in
wrong reporting of data to the management,
shareholders and regulators

} Our audit approach regarding Information technology of

company is based upon the Inforination Technolog
in | Guidelines 2076 issued by Nepal Insurance Authority
and it included:

having reference to NFRS issued by the Accounting
Standard Board of Nepal.

We assessed the nature of expecled cash flow of the
investments as well as the business model adopted by
the management on the basis of available
evidence/circumstances and ensured that classification
of investment is commensurate with nature of cash
flow and management intention of holding the
im estment.

For the imvestmenl valualion that are done at
amorlized cosl, we checked the RIR and amorlization
schedule on test basis

For the investment salued through OCI for guoted
imestient, we ensured that fair valuation has been
done al the closing transaction rale in NEPSLE as on
16.07.2023.

Understanding the cading system adopted by company
for various categorics of products

Understanding the feeding of the data in the system
and going through the extraction of the financial
information and statements from the IT syvstem
existing in company .
Checking of the user requirements for any changes in |
the regulations,/ policy of the company

Reviewed the reports senerated by the system on |
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sample  basis.  We  verified the  premium
income/expense and claim paymenl in regard to
policies issued and claim intimated on test basis

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in Annual Report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's
report.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statemenis

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial stalements that are free from
matertal misstatement. whether due to fraud or creor,

I preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstaterment when it exists. Misstatement
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected 1o influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financiai statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism thronghout the andit. We also:

¢ [dentify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtained audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one vesulting from error, as {raud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevani to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

s  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the management,

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
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auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

* FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a stalement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought 1o bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matler should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on the requirements of Companies Act 2063, Insurance Act 2079 and Directives of
Nepal Insurance Authority

We have obtained satisfactory information and explanations asked for, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; the returns received from the branch offices of the
company, though the statements are independently not audited, were adequate for the purpose of the audit;
the consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisiens of the
Companies Act 2063, and they are in agreement with the books of aceounts of the company; and the accounts
and records of the company are properly maintained in accordance with the prevailing laws.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, in the course of our audit, we
observed that adequate amount have been set aside for insurance fund and other statutory reserves as per
Nepal Insurance Authority (the then Insurance Board) Directives; the business of the company was
conducted satisfactorily in line with the Nepal Insurance Authority Directives, the company has not
conducted any business other than insurance business and has not issued any unauthorized policies and its
transactions were found 1o be within the scope of its authority. We did not come across cases where the
company has acted against the interest of the insured and investors. Further, company’s internal control
system is reasonably adequate, and we did not come across cases of accounting related fraud and the cases
where the board of directors or any director or any office hearcer of the Company has acted contrary to the
provisions of law, caused loss or damage to the company, or committed any misappropriation of the funds of
company. Also, the company has provided the required financial and other information to its shareholders
and the company appears to be able to serve its long-term liabilities out of its assets.

Sunir Kumar Dhungel
Managing Partner

Date: June 02, 2024
Place: Kathmandu

UDIN No: 240603CA001090vUim3



Annexure I
Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
MINIMUM DISCLOSURE IN DIRECTORS' REPORT
A. Information related to the Company

1 | Date of establishment: 2055/10/18 B.S. (01/02/1999 A.D.)
2 | Insurer licence date: 2058/ 01/ 04 B.S. (17/04/2001 A.D.)
3 | Insurance business type, nature: Life Insurance
4 | Date of commencement of business: 2058/ 01/ 21 B.S. (04/ 05/ 2001 A.D.)
5 | Other matters which insurer wish to include: None

B. Board of Directors approved the following matters

1

Tax, service charges, fine and penalties to be paid under laws & regulation whether paid or not:
Tax, service charges, fine and penalties to be paid under laws & regulation are paid.
Share structure of the company, changes if any in line with prevailing laws & regulation:

The company has an authorized capital of NPR 1,000 crore and paid up capital of NPR 820.79 crore.
The share capital stracture of the company comprises of 51 percent as promoter share and 49 percent
as public share. There is no any changes in share capital structure as at the year end.

Whether solvency ratio as prescribed by Nepal Insurance Authority is maintained or not:
The company has maintained the solvency ratio as prescribed by Nepal Insurance Authority.
a) Assets that financial amount contained in SOFP are not overstated than it's fair value.

b) Measurement basis of the assets recognized in financial statements are historical cost less
depreciation, amortized cost and fair value.

Declaration on investment made by the company that are in line with prevailing laws:

All the investments made by the company are in line with prevailing laws. All the provisions of
Insurance Act,2079, are followed and investments are made accordance to Investment Directive
issued by Nepal Insurance Authority.

Number of claim settled within the year and outstanding claim number and time frame to settle

the outstanding claim.

During the FY 2079/80, Total number of policies for Death Claim payment was 1,294, Maturity
payment was 22,336, survival benefit payment was 24,015 and surrender payment was 33,383. The
number of outstanding Death claims are 11, Maturity claims are 10,173 and Survival claims are 4,961.
Outstanding claims will be settled in the following financial years within the time frame prescribed
by the Insurance Act, 2079

Declaration on compliance with the provision of Insurance Act 2079, Insurance Regulation
2049,Company Act 2063, NFRSs and other prevailing laws & regulation to which the company
shall adhere to and any non compliance with reasons thereof:

The company has taken sufficient measures to comply with all the provision of Insurance Act 2079,
Insurance Regulation, 2049 Company Act 2063, NFRSs and other prevailing laws & regulations as
applicable.
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Declaration that the appropriate accounting policy has been consistently adopted:

The Financial Statement of the Company has been prepared in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards, principles and policies followed along with proper explanations relating to

material departures, if any.

Declaration on Financial Statements as at Reporting Date that the insurer's Financial Position

and Financial Performance are presented true & fairly:

Financial Statement as at Ashadh 31, 2080 present true & fair view of Financial Position and

Financial Performance of the Company.

Declaration that Board of Directors have implemented adequate and appropriate provision to
safeguard the assets and for identification and mitigation againstlosses due to fraud, embezzlement

and irregularities:

Board of Directors have implemented adequate and appropriate provision to safeguard the assets

and for identification and mitigation against losses due to fraud, embezzlement and irregularities
Decleration of Financial Statements have been prepared based on going concern basis:
Financial Statements have been prepared based on going concern basis.

Declaration that the internal control system is commensurate with the size, nature & volume of the
company business:

The company has been keeping the internal control system effective and efficient. The company has
appointed an independent chartered accountant as internal auditor to strengthen internal control

system; the management receives quartely internal audit report and make comprehensive discussion.

Declaration that the insurer has not conducted any transactions contrary to Insurance Act, 2079,
Companies Act, 2063, related regulations and directions with any person, firm, company and

insurer's director or with any entity in which insurer's director has interest:

The insurer has not conducted any transactions contrary to Insurance Act, 2079, Companies Act,
2063, related regulations and directions with any person, firm, company and insurer's director or

with any entity in which insurer's director has interest

Disclosure on any penalties, levied by Nepal Insurance Authority for the particular financial year:
There is no any penalties, levied by Nepal Insurance Auhtority for the financial year 2079/80.

Other disclosure which is deemed appropriate by management:

None

Govind Lal Sanghai Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal Vivek Agrawal Bimal Prasad Dhakal

Chairman

Directors Directors Directors

Krishna Raj Lamichhane Parul Dhakal Shakti Kumar Golyan

Directors

Directors Directors

Date: 2080/02,20
Address: Kathmandu
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NEFRSs based Financial Statements
Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As on 16th July, 2023 (Ashad End, 2080)

Annexure 11

Fig. in NPR
Assets
Goodwill & Intangible Assets 4 12,688,754 10,075,919 12,271,183 9,544,772
Property and Equipment ) 247,327,973 248,623,661 230,191,437 228,384,886
Investment Properties 6 408,096,425 408,215,876 408,096,425 408,215,876
Deferred Tax Assets 7 - 175,150,513 - 163,645,670
Investment in Subsidiaries 8 - - 153,000,000 153,000,000
Investment in Associates 9 - - - -
Investments 10 138,965,904,234 | 115,472,159,344 | 138,756,809,412 | 115,323,834,337
Loans 11 31,117,808,713 25,483,985,028 31,117,808,713 25,483,985,028
Reinsurance Assets 12 - - - -
Current Tax Assets 21 - 264,835,404 - 259,573,901
Insurance Receivables 13 65,458,981 132,061,189 65,458,981 132,061,189
Other Assets 14 203,908,744 214,230,754 203,641,770 214,149,151
Other Financial Assets 15 4,904,023,506 3,842,059,510 4,901,335,867 3,835,605,060
Cash and Cash Equivalent 16 4,637,140,696 4,420,534,351 4,627,558,471 4,369,735,487
Total Assets 180,562,358,027 | 150,671,931,549 | 180,476,172,260 | 150,581,735,357
Equity & Liabilities
Equity
Share Capital 17 (a) 8,207,966,554 8,207,966,554 8,207,966,554 8,207,966,554
Share Application Money 17 (b) ) ) _ }
Pending Allotment
Share Premium 17 (c) 43,839,625 43,839,625 43,839,625 43,839,625
Catastrophe Reserves 17 (d) 1,048,197,371 838,236,643 1,048,197,371 838,236,643
Retained Earnings 17 (e) 1,729,680,358 (159,131,061) 1,754,494,110 (124,936,855)
Other Equity 17 (f) 741,164,067 736,865,791 740,562,073 736,263,798
Total Equity attributable to 11,770,847,975 | 9,667,777,552 | 11,795,059,734 |  9,701,369,765
equity holders
Non Controlling Interest 17(g) 123,656,577 114,649,895 - -
Total Equity 11,894,504,551 9,782,427,447 11,795,059,734 9,701,369,765
Liabilities
Provisions 18 258,616,831 321,605,553 258,379,742 321,605,553
f;‘ﬁigurame Contract 19 163,391,287,377 | 136,131,498,662 | 163,391,287,377 | 136,131,498,662
Deferred Tax Liabilities 7 138,812,938 - 159,152,915 -
Insurance Payable 20 284,364,516 219,844,104 284,364,516 219,844,104
Current Tax Liabilities 21 1,661,640,067 - 1,667,622,361 -
Borrowings 22 - - - -
Other Liabilities 23 1,048,318,112 1,052,016,196 1,042,470,336 1,077,230,331
Other Financial Liabilities 24 1,884,813,634 3,164,539,588 1,877,835,280 3,130,186,943
Total Liabilities 168,667,853,475 | 140,889,504,102 | 168,681,112,527 | 140,880,365,592
Total Equity and Liabilities 180,562,358,027 | 150,671,931,549 | 180,476,172,260 | 150,581,735,357
The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date
Govind Lal Sanghai  Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal Vivek Agrawal  Bimal Prasad Dhakal Sunir Kumar Dhungel
Chairman Directors Directors Directors Managing Partner
SAR Associates
Krishna Raj Lamichhane Parul Dhakal Shakti Kumar Golyan Pravin Raman Parajuli  Chartered Accountants
Directors Directors Directors Chief Executive Officer
Prem Prasad Regmi Zoya Khan Date: 2080,/02,/20

AGM- Account & Finance

Head - Account & Finance

Address: Kathmandu
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For Period 17th July, 2022 - 16th July, 2023
(For the Year Ended Ashad, 2080)

Fig. in NPR
: Group
Income:
Gross Earned Premiums 25 37,162,809,071 35,489,383,739 37,162,809,071 35,489,383,739
Premiums Ceded 26 652,380,950 453,556,709 652,380,950 453,556,709
Net Earned Premiums 36,510,428,122 35,035,827,030 | 36,510,428,122 | 35,035,827,030
Commission Income 27 139,257,094 88,006,415 139,257,094 88,006,415
Other Direct Income 28 429,228,628 388,619,131 429,228,628 388,619,131
Interest Income on Loan to Policyholders 11 2,976,931,688 2,388,473,223 2,976,931,688 2,388,473,223
Income from Investments and Loans 29 12,782,903,406 9,706,729,796 12,779,338,117 9,702,315,365
Net Gain/(Loss) on Fair Value Changes 30 34,115,703 (859,100,140) = (785,824,051)
Net Realised Gains/(Losses) 31 (213,071,424) 10,634,932 (196,933,714) 9,118,622
Other Income 32 40,093,051 13,791,964 35,960,296 -
Total Income 52,699,886,267 46,772,982,352 | 52,674,210,229 | 46,826,535,735
Expenses:
Gross Benefits and Claims Paid 33 15,691,253,006 14,404,567,970 15,691,253,006 14,404,567,970
Claims Ceded 33 262,290,116 259,713,165 262,290,116 259,713,165
Gross Change in Contract Liabilities 34 26,672,062,393 23,592,705,912 26,672,062,393 23,592,705,912
Change in Contract Liabities Ceded to 34 i i i i
Reinsurers
Net Benefits and Claims Incurred 42,101,025,283 | 37,737,560,717 | 42,101,025,283 | 37,737,560,717
Commission Expenses 35 3,109,076,686 3,529,971,651 3,109,076,686 3,529,971,651
Service Fees 36 302,922,232 350,441,247 302,922,232 350,441,247
Other Direct expenses 37 2,663,330 2,574,430 2,663,330 2,574,430
Employee Benefits Expenses 38 1,047,790,883 825,256,742 1,040,235,732 820,078,318
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 39 74,240,286 58,192,640 70,657,950 55,181,403
Impairment Losses 40 (37,531,726) 176,311,282 (37,531,726) 176,311,282
Other Operating Expenses 41 1,391,626,356 1,705,733,536 1,387,248,406 1,699,003,655
Finance Cost 42 15,662,934 14,468,238 15,116,556 14,161,977
Total Expenses 48,007,476,265 44,400,510,484 | 47,991,414,450 | 44,385,284,680
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year Before Share
of Net Profits of Associates Accounted for 4,692,410,002 2,372,471,867 4,682,795,779 2,441,251,055
Using Equity Method and Tax
Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted 9 i ) ) )
using Equity Method
Profit Before Tax 4,692,410,002 2,372,471,867 4,682,795,779 2,441,251,055
Income Tax Expense 43 2,664,835,185 2,337,505,820 2,671,571,869 2,344,008,495
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year 2,027,574,817 34,966,047 2,011,223,910 97,242,559
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the insurer 2,019,565,553 65,471,329
Non-Controlling Interest 8,009,264 (30,505,282)
Earning Per Share 50
Basic EPS 24.70 0.80 24.50 1.90
Diluted EPS 24.70 0.80 24.50 1.90
The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date
Govind Lal Sanghai  Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal Vivek Agrawal  Bimal Prasad Dhakal Sunir Kumar Dhungel
Chairman Directors Directors Directors Managing Partner
SAR Associates
Krishna Raj Lamichhane Parul Dhakal Shakti Kumar Golyan Pravin Raman Parajuli ~ Chartered Accountants
Directors Directors Directors Chief Executive Officer
Prem Prasad Regmi Zoya Khan Date: 2080,/02,/20

AGM- Account & Finance

@ 283t arfifer uferemar Qoo /Z0
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For Period 17th July, 2022 - 16th July, 2023
(For the Year Ended Ashad, 2080)

Particulars

Net Profit/(Loss) For the Year

Insurance Company

Current
Year

2,027,574,817

Previous
Year

34,966,047

Current
Year

2,011,223,910

Fig. in NPR

Previous
Year

97,242,559

Other Comprehensive Income

a) Items that are or may be Reclassified to
Profit or Loss

Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Debt
Instruments

Cash Flow Hedge - Effective Portion of
Changes in Fair Value

Exchange differences on translation of Foreign
Operation

Share of other comprehensive income of
associates accounted for using the equity
method

Income Tax Relating to Above Items

Reclassified to Profit or Loss

b) Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit

or Loss

Changes in fair value of FVOCI Equity
Instruments

850,788,720

850,788,720

Revaluation of Property and Equipment/
Goodwill & Intangible Assets

Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit
Obligations

43,750,194

(43,121,958)

43,750,194

(43,121,958)

Share of other comprehensive income of
associates accounted for using the equity
method

Income Tax Relating to Above Items

(223,634,728)

10,780,490

(223,634,728)

10,780,490

Total Other Comprehensive Income For the
Year, Net of Tax

670,904,185

(32,341,469)

670,904,185

(32,341,469)

Total Comprehensive Income For the Year,
Net of Tax

2,698,479,003

2,624,579

2,682,128,095

64,901,091

Total Comprehensive Income attributable to:

Equity holders of the insurer

2,690,469,738

33,129,861

Non-Controlling Interest

8,009,264

(30,505,282)

The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.

Govind Lal Sanghai

Chairman Directors

Parul Dhakal

Directors

Krishna Raj Lamichhane
Directors

Prem Prasad Regmi
AGM- Account & Finance

Zoya Khan

Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal

Head - Account & Finance

Vivek Agrawal
Directors

Shakti Kumar Golyan

Directors

As per our report of even date

Bimal Prasad Dhakal
Directors

Sunir Kumar Dhungel
Managing Partner

SAR Associates

Pravin Raman Parajuli  Chartered Accountants

Chief Executive Officer

Date: 2080/02/20
Address: Kathmandu
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For Period 17th July, 2022 - 16th July, 2023

(For the Year Ended Ashad, 2080)

@ Gew |

Cash Flow From Operating Actvities:

Fig. in NPR

Insurance Company

Cash Received

Gross Premium Received 37,162,809,071 | 35,489,383,739 | 37,162,809,071 | 35,489,383,739
Commission Received 139,257,094 476,625,546 139,257,094 476,625,546
Claim Recovery Received from Reinsurers 262,290,116 417,849,740 262,290,116 417,849,740
Realised Foreign Exchange Income other

than on Cash and Cash Equivalents

Other Direct Income 256,250,256 - 268,255,209 -
Others (to be specified) - - - -
Cash Paid

Gross Benefits and Claims Paid (15,691,253,006) (14,599,470,718) | (15,691,253,006) | (14,599,470,718)
Reinsurance Premium Paid (652,380,950) (499,409,243) (652,380,950) (499,409,243)
Commission Paid (3,109,076,686) | (3,529,971,651) | (3,109,076,686) | (3,529,971,651)
Service Fees Paid (302,922,232) | (319,181,743) |  (302,922,232) |  (319,181,743)
Employee Benefits Expenses Paid (1,008,362,387) (810,996,923) |  (1,000,878,421) (805,868,239)
Other Expenses Paid (1,443,244.271) | (1,714,416,740) | (1,476,398,047) | (1,707,686,858)
Others (Increase)/Decrease in current assets) (500,699,105) 2,534,731,142 (619,467,950) 2,481,944,261
Ig{)}i‘leiiise(sl)mease/ (Decrease) in current 524,423,121 |  1,072,659,665 540,958,219 |  1,063,570,895
Income Tax Paid (2,877,532,365) | (2,572,101,639) | (2,884,269,049) | (2,575,754,503)
Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities [1] 12,759,558,656 15,945,701,175 12,636,923,368 15,892,031,227
Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Acquisitions of Intangible Assets (5,609,220) (9,473,926) (5,609,220) (8,942,779)
Proceeds From Sale of Intangible Assets - - - -
Acquisitions of Investment Properties (4,138,591) (181,125,000) (4,138,591) (181,125,000)
Proceeds From Sale of Investment Properties - - - -
Rental Income Received - 37,138,898 - 37,138,898
Acquisitions of Property and Equipment (49,029,697) (69,898,086) (48,663,177) (62,283,155)
g;sicgfrisnfmm Sale of Property and (6,650,696) 6,112,259 (6,650,696) 6,112,259
Investment in Subsidiaries - - - (153,000,000)
Receipts from Sale of Investments in ) ) ) )
Subsidiaries

Investment in Associates - - - -
Receipts from Sale of Investments in ) ) ) )
Associates

Purchase of Equity Instruments (501,210,121) (2,022,282,416) (321,818,263) (1,874,557,409)
Proceeds from Sale of Equity Instruments 548,974,378 1,115,845,212 543,150,514 1,115,845,212
Purchase of Mutual Funds (39,951,509) (51,454,302) (36,451,209) (51,454,302)
Proceeds from Sale of Mutual Funds - 79,220,409 - 79,220,409
Purchase of Preference Shares - - - -
Proceeds from Sale of Preference Shares - - - -
Purchase of Debentures (1,107,563,008) (578,515,285) |  (1,081,360,343) (578,515,285)
Proceeds from Sale of Debentures - - - -
Purchase of Bonds - 100,000,000 - 100,000,000
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Proceeds from Sale of Bonds - - - -
Investments in Deposits (21,680,000,000) | (22,186,800,000) | (21,680,000,000) | (22,186,800,000)
Maturity of Deposits - - - -
Loans Paid (5,633,823,685) | (4,800,931,772) | (5,633,823,685) | (4,800,931,772)
Proceeds from Loans - - - -
Rental Income Received 42,363,484 11,822,256,914 42,363,484 11,822,256,914
Proceeds from Finance Lease - - - -
Interest Income Received 15,759,835,094 - 15,720,395,309 -
Dividend Received 133,093,975 58,815,401 132,669,997 58,815,401
Others (to be specified) 757,285 9,118,622 835,496 9,118,622
Total Cash Flow From Investing Activities [2] | (12,542,952,311) | (16,671,973,072) | (12,379,100,384) | (16,669,101,987)
Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Interest Paid - - - -
Proceeds From Borrowings - - - -
Repayment of Borrowings - - - -
Payment of Finance Lease - - - -
Proceeds From Issue of Share Capital - - - -
Share Issuance Cost Paid - - - -
Dividend Paid - (1,231,468,999) - (1,231,468,999)
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid - (64,525,720) - (64,525,720)
Others (Cash dividend of FY 76.77) - (53,052,416) - (53,052,416)
Total Cash Flow From Financing Activities [3] - (1,349,047,135) -1 (1,349,047,135)
E;;T;f:ﬁ;e[/l(gef;fase) USRS 216,606,346 | (2,075,319,032) 257,822,984 | (2,126,117,896)
SZ:? /&lf,efifg Equivalents At Beginning of The | -y 120 534 351 | 6495853383 |  4,369,735,487 | 6,495,853,384
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and
Cash Equivalents
5:;:‘/1,&;53;1‘ Equivalents At End of The 4637,140,696 | 4420534351 | 4,627,558471 |  4,369,735,487
Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash In Hand 92,563,945 81,040,203 92,494,583 80,998,759
Cheuge in Hand 14,903,487 14,903,487 14,903,487 14,903,487
Term Deposit with Banks (with initial
maturity upto 3 months)
Balance With Banks 4,529,673,264 4,324,590,661 4,520,160,401 4,273,833,241
The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date
Govind Lal Sanghai  Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal Vivek Agrawal  Bimal Prasad Dhakal Sunir Kumar Dhungel
Chairman Directors Directors Directors Managing Partner
SAR Associates
Krishna Raj Lamichhane Parul Dhakal Shakti Kumar Golyan Pravin Raman Parajuli  Chartered Accountants
Directors Directors Directors Chief Executive Officer
Prem Prasad Regmi Zoya Khan Date: 2080,/02,/20

AGM- Account & Finance

Head - Account & Finance

Address: Kathmandu
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited

STATEMENT OF DISTRIBUTABLE PROFIT OR LOSS

For Period 17th July, 2022 - 16th July, 2023

(Year Ended Upto Ashad 31, 2080)

Fig. in NPR

Particular Current Year Previous Year
Opening Balance in Retained Earnings (124,936,855) 2,423,940,804
Adjustment: Opening adjustment - (1,057,786,225)
Adjusted Balance in Retained Earnings (124,936,855)
Transfer from OCI reserves to retained earning in current year - -
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 2,011,223,910 97,242,559
Appropriations:
i)Transfer to Insurance Fund - -
ii)Transfer to Catastrophe Reserve (209,960,728) (8,989,042)
iii) Transfer to Capital Reserve - -
iv) Transfer to CSR reserve (20,996,073) (898,904)
v)Transfer to/from Regulatory Reserve - (7,352,144)
vi) Transfer to Fair Value Reserve - -
vii) Transfer of Deferred Tax Reserve 99,163,857 (163,645,670)
viii) Transfer to OCI reserves due to change in classification - -
ix)Others - (111,453,514)
Deductions:
i) Accumulated Fair Value Gain on each Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL
a) Equity Instruments - -
b) Mutual Fund - -
c) Others (if any) - -
ii) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Investment Properties - -
iii) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Hedged Items in Fair Value Hedges - -
iv) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Hedging Instruments in Fair Value Hedges - -
v) Accumulated Fair value gain of Ineffective Portion on Cash Flow Hedges - =
vi)) Goodwill Recognised - -
vii) Unrealised Gain on fluctuation of Foreign Exchange Currency - -
viii) Accumulated Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted using Equity _ )
Method included in Investment Account
ix) Overdue loans - -
x) Fair value gain recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss - -
xi) Investment in unlisted shares - -
xii) Delisted share investment or mutual fund investment - -
xiii) Bonus share/dividend paid - (1,295,994,719)
xiv) Deduction as per Sec 17 of Financial directive - -
xv) Others (to be specified) - -
Adjusted Retained Earning 1,754,494,111 (124,936,855)
Add: Transfer from Share Premium Account 43,839,625 -
Less: Amount apportioned for Assigned capital - -
Less: Deduction as per sec 14(1) Of Financial directive - -
Add/Less: Others (to be specified) - -
Total Distributable Profit/(loss) 1,798,333,736 (124,936,855)

As per our report of even date

Govind Lal Sanghai  Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal Vivek Agrawal = Bimal Prasad Dhakal
Chairman Directors Directors Directors

Krishna Raj Lamichhane Parul Dhakal Shakti Kumar Golyan Pravin Raman Parajuli
Directors Directors Directors Chief Executive Officer
Prem Prasad Regmi Zoya Khan

AGM- Account & Finance Head - Account & Finance
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Sunir Kumar Dhungel

Managing Partner
SAR Associates

Chartered Accountants

Date: 2080,/02/20

Address: Kathmandu



Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

1. General Information

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited (herein after referred to as the ‘Company’) is a public limited
company, incorporated on 2055/10/18 B.S. (01/02/1999 A.D.) and operated as Life Insurance Company
after obtaining license on 2058/01/04 B.S. (17/04/2001 A.D.) under the Insurance Act 2049.

The registered office of the Company is located at Birgunj, Parsa, Nepal. The Company’s shares are listed
in NEPSE as “NLIC” on 2059/10/08 B.S. (22/01/2003 A.D.).

The principal activities of the Company are to provide various life insurance products including
participating and non-participating products through its province offices, branches, sub-branches, and

network of agents.
2. Basis of Preparation

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

a. Reporting Period and approval of financial statements

The Company reporting period is from Shrawan 01, 2079 (July 17, 2022) to Ashadh 31, 2080 (July
16, 2023) with the corresponding previous year from Shrawan 01, 2078 (July 16, 2021) to Ashadh 32,
2079 (July 16, 2022) These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the

company.
b. Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements of the Company comprises of Statement of Financial Position, Statement
of Profit or Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income shown as two separate statements,
Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to the Financial Statements which
have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) issued by the
Nepal Accounting Standards Board (ASB) and in compliance with the requirements of the Companies
Act, 2006, directives issued by Nepal Insurance Authority and required disclosures as per Securities
Board of Nepal. The format used in the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements and
disclosures made therein also complies with the specified formats prescribed in the directives of Nepal

Insurance Authority.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The term NFRS, includes all
the standards and the related interpretations which are consistently used.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 2nd May 2024.
c. Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for following Assets &
Liabilities which have been measured at Fair Value amount:

i. Investment in Equity Shares and Mutual Fund,

ii. Defined Employee Benefits, and

iii. Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities which are required to be determined using the actuarial

valuation method prescribed by Actuarial Valuation Directive 2077.
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Historical cost is generally Fair Value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is

directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

In addition, for Financial Reporting purposes, Fair Value measurements are categorized into Level 1,
or 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the Fair Value measurements are observable &
the significance of the inputs to the Fair Value measurements in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical Assets or Liabilities

that the entity can access at the measurement date.

* Level 2: Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for
the Asset or Liability, either directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3: Inputs are unobservable inputs for the Asset or Liability.

d. Use of Estimates, assumption, and judgement

The preparation of these Financial Statements in conformity with NFRS requires management to
make estimates, judgments, and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the
reported balance of Assets & Liabilities, disclosures relating to Contingent Liabilities as at the date
of the Financial Statements and the reported amounts of Income & Expenses for the year presented.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Changes in estimates are reflected in the Financial Statements in the period in which
changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

e. Functional and Presentation Currency

These Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except
where indicated otherwise.

f. Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The Board of Directors have considered
a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of
profitability, cash flows and capital resources while assessing the going concern basis. Furthermore,
Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operation
of it.

g. Change in Accounting Policies

Accounting Policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the
Company in preparing and presenting financial statements. The Company is permitted to change
an accounting policy only if the change is required by a standard or interpretation; or results in the
financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of transactions,

other events or conditions on the entity’s financial position, financial performance, or cash flow.
h. Recent Accounting Pronouncements:
Accounting standards issued and effective:

Accounting standards issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) except mentioned in below

are effective and been applied in preparing these financial statements.
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Accounting standards issued and non-effective

The Accounting Standard Board (ASB) has issued NFRS 17 (Insurance contracts) which is yet to be
effective.

i. Carve-outs:
The Company has not applied any carve outs provided by the ASB.
j- Presentation of financial statements:

The assets and liabilities of the Company presented in the Statement of Financial Position are grouped
by nature and listed in an order that reflects their relative liquidity and maturity pattern. The figures
for the corresponding year have been reclassified /restated in order to show the comparative figures as

per the Financial Statement Directive, 2080.
k. Offsetting:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the Statement of
Financial Position, only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Income and expenses are not offset in the Statement of Profit or Loss unless required or permitted
by Nepalese Financial Reporting Standards or Interpretation (issued by the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standard Interpretations Committee (SIC) and as

specifically disclosed in the Significant Accounting Policies of the Company.
1. Materiality and Aggregation:

Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of
dissimilar nature or function are presented separately, unless they are immaterial as permitted by the
Nepal Accounting Standard-NAS 1 on ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’.

Notes to the Financial Statements are presented in a systematic manner which ensures the
understandability and comparability of Financial Statements of the Company. Understandability
of the Financial Statements is not compromised by obscuring material information with immaterial

information or by aggregating material items that have different natures or functions.
m. Regrouping & Reclassification

Due to change in the Financial Presentation from Gaap to NFRS, necessary regrouping and
reclassification has been made for better presentation, the details has been mentioned in the respective
schedule.

3. Significant Accounting Policies:
a. Property and Equipment:
i. Recognition
Freehold land is carried at historical cost and other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation when, it is probable that

future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and it can be used for
more than one year and the cost can be measured reliably.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it meets the recognition criteria as mentioned above. The carrying amount
of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they

are incurred.
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ii. Revaluation

After recognition as an assets, lands and buildings whose fair value can be measured reliably,
have been carried at revalued amount at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Valuations are being performed to
ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not materially differ from its carrying amount
as at the reporting date. Valuation of the land and buildings are undertaken by professionally
qualified valuers.

Anincrease in the carrying amount as a result of revaluation, is recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation reserve. However, the
increase is recognized in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of
the same asset previously recognized in profit and loss. A decrease in the carrying amount as a
result of revaluation, is recognized in profit or loss. However, the decrease is recognized in other
comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in
respect of that asset.

Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.
Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred
directly to retained earnings.

Difference between depreciation on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation
based on the asset’s original cost is transferred to retained earnings.

iii. Depreciation
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment other than the Freehold Land i.e. the Company’s
Freehold Building, Plant & Machinery, Vehicles & Other Assets is provided on “Straight Line

Method (SLM)/ Diminishing Balance Method ((DBM)” based on Useful Life estimated by technical
expert of the management.

The Assets Useful Life/ Rate of Depreciation and Residual Values are reviewed at the Reporting
date and the effect of any changes in estimates are accounted for on a prospective basis.

Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment based on SLM/DBM is categorized as stated below:

List of Assets Categories Useful Life (In Years) for SLM/Rate for WDV

Land

Buildings 50
Leasehold Improvement 5
Furniture & Fixture 4
Computers and IT Equipment 4
Officer Equipment 4
Vehicles 7
Other Assets (Plant & Machinery) 8
Other Assets (Furniture & Fixtures) 15
Other Assets (Plant & Machinery- Heavy) 15

iv. Derecognition

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized up to disposal or when no Future
Economic Benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized
in the Statement of Profit or Loss.
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vi.

Impairment of Assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by
which the Asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets.
Assets that suffer an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end
of each reporting period. In case of such reversal, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
so as not to exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had there been no
impairment loss.

Capital Work-In-Progress

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant
and machinery and system development which are to be capitalized. Capital Work in Progress
would be transferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use. Capital Work in Progress is
stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

b. Intangible Assets

i

ii.

Recognition

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and
any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized
development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in Statement of

profit or loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is
expensed as incurred.

Goodwill on business combination is recognized on the acquisition date at the excess of (a) over
(b) below :

a. The aggregate of :
* The consideration transferred measured in accordance with the NFRS 3, which generally
requires acquisition-date fair value

* The amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree measured in accordance with
the NFRS 3, and

* In a business combination achieved in stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree.

* The net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities

assumed.
Amortization

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. An intangible
asset shall be regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on an analysis of all of
the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to

generate net cash inflow for the entity.

Amortization is recognized in statement of profit of loss on Straight Line Method (SLM) over the
estimated useful life of the intangible assets/ Diminishing Balance Method (DBM), from the date
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that is available for use since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the
future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The amortization period and the amortization
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates, The amortization expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Useful Life of Intangible Assets based on SLM/DBM is categorized as stated below:

List of Assets Categories Useful Life (In Years) for SLM

Soft wares 5
Licenses License Period
Others (other to be specified) Not applicable

iii. Derecognition
An Intangible Asset is derecognized when no Future Economic Benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on the derecognition is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in
the Statement of Profit or Loss.

iv. Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that Intangible
Assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. An impairment loss is recognized in the
Statement of Profit or Loss to the extent, asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk

specific to the assets.
c. Investment Properties
Cost Model

Property that is held for rental income or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as investment
property. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including related transaction cost. It
is subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized
to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the company and the cost can be measured reliably. All other repairs and

maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

Land is carried at historical cost, however, buildings are depreciated over their estimated useful lives
as mentioned above.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of, or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected
from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are

recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfer are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer
from investment property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with the policy
stated under PPE up to the date of change in use.

OR
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Fair Value Model

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market condition at the
reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are
included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in which they arise, including the corresponding
tax effect.

The fair value of investment property is determined by an external, independent property valuer,
having appropriate recognized professional qualification and recent experience in the location and

category by property being valued.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its
disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognized

in the statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfer are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer
from investment property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with the policy
stated under PPE up to the date of change in use.

d. Cash & Cash Equivalent

Cash & Cash Equivalents includes Cash in Hand, Cheque in Hand, Bank Balances and short term

deposits with a maturity of three months or less.
e. Financial Assets

i. Initial Recognition & Measurement

Financial Assets are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of

its Financial Assets at initial recognition.

When Financial Assets are recognized initially, they are measured at Fair Value, plus, in the case
of Financial Assets not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the Financial Asset. Transaction costs of Financial Assets carried at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

ii. Subsequent Measurement

a. Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost (AC)

A Financial Asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, Interest income in

these financial assets is measured using effective interest rate method.

b. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling Financial Assets and the
contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These financial
assets are measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement of other comprehensive

income.
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iii.

iv.

c. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.
De-Recognition
A Financial Assets is derecognized only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive
cash flows from the Financial Assets. Where the Company has transferred an Asset, the Company
evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
Financial Asset. In such cases, the Financial Asset is derecognized. Where the Company has not
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the Financial Asset, the Financial
Asset is not derecognized. Where the Company retains control of the Financial Asset, the Asset is

continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the Financial Asset.

Immpairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

f. Financial Liabilities

i

ii.

iii.

Initial Recognition & Measurement

Financial Liabilities are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of
its Financial Liabilities at initial recognition.

All Financial Liabilities are recognized initially at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial Liabilities
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of the
Financial Liability.

Subsequent Measurement

After initial recognition, Financial Liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the Effective Interest Method.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the date of Statement of Financial
Position, the carrying amounts approximate Fair Value due to short maturity of these instruments.
De-Recognition

A Financial Liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing Financial Liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

g. Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the Statement of Financial

Position where there is legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
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intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

h. Reinsurance Assets

Reinsurance assets are the assets which are created against insurance contract liabilities of the amount
which are recoverable from the reinsurer. These assets are created for the reinsurer’s share of insurance

contract liabilities.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after
the initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the Company may not receive all amounts due to
it under the terms of the contract, and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amount that
the company will receive from the re-insurer. If a reinsurance asset is impaired, the company reduce

the carrying amount accordingly and is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

i. Equity
Financial Instruments issued by the Company are classified as Equity only to the extent that they do
not meet the definition of a Financial Liability or Financial Asset.

j- Reserves and Funds

i. Share Application Money Pending Allotment
When the company issued shares whether public or promoter and if the issued shares are not
fully paid then such amount create reserve for share application money pending allotment. The
company does not have share application money pending for allotment.

ii. Share Premium
When the company issues share capital at higher than the Par value then the additional amount
received creates share premium reserve. During the first-time adaptation of NFRS, the company
had booked as a share premium for the interest amount earned from the amount collected for
Further Public Offering (FPO) after deducting the necessary cost to proceed the FPO. Which
was booked as interest income in Gaap Financial Statement. Those share premium amount NRs.
43,839,625 has been transferred to Retained Earning.

iii. Revaluation Reserves

Reserve created against revaluation gain on property and equipment and intangible assets, other
than the reversal of earlier revaluation losses charged to profit or loss.

The company does not have revaluation reserve because the company used cost model to measure
the property and equipment.

iv. Catastrophe Reserve

The company has allocated amounts from profit and loss account to the catastrophe reserve fund
equals to 10 percent of profit after tax (eliminating the effect of deferred tax) as prescribed by
Financial Directive, 2080.

v. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserves
The company has allocated amounts from profit and loss account to the corporate social
responsibility (CSR) reserve fund equals to 1 percent of profit after tax (eliminating the effect of
deferred tax) as prescribed by Financial Directive, 2080.

vi. Fair Value Reserves
The company has policy of presentation of profit or loss on Equity Share investment and Mutual

fund through the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (SOCI). As a result, the resulting Fair
Value gain has been transferred to Life Fund & Shareholders Fund as per Financial Directive, 2080.
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vii. Actuarial Reserves

The reserve against actuarial gain or loss on present value of defined benefit obligation resulting
from, experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous actuarial assumptions
and what has occurred), and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions. The company has
created this reserve to allocate the amount arising from the actuarial valuation of employment

benefits.

viii. Deferred Tax Reserves

ix.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of

assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Other Reserves- Regulatory Reserve

Regulatory reserve represents the amount transferred to Regulatory Reserve due to excess profit
generated from NFRS based financial statement over GAAP based financial statement as per
regulatory provision. The company has regulatory reserve of NRs. 589,594,163 which has not been

transferred to retained earnings.

k. Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities

i

1.

1il.

iv.

Life Insurance Fund

The life insurance fund as per the actuarial valuation report including net policyholder’s liability,
cost of bonus, any other liabilities plus any unallocated surplus shall be presented under life
insurance fund.

Claim Payment Reserve including IBNR

Outstanding claims provisions are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred
but not settled at the statement of financial position date, whether reported or not, together with
related claims handling costs. The company has recognized the 15% of Outstanding Claim as IBNR
reserve in the reporting period amounting to NRs. 183,722,670.

Transfer from Reserves

Any regulatory transfer to be made from fair value reserve, actuarial reserve, revaluation reserves

or any other reserve shall be presented under insurance contract liabilities.

Net gain on fair value changes on FVTPL instruments

The company has changed the accounting of fair value gain/ (loss) previously measured at FVTPL
to FVTOCI prospectively as per NFRS 9.

Liability adequacy

At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test
is performed to determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred
acquisition costs over unearned premiums. The calculation uses current estimates of future
contractual cash flows after taking account of the investment return expected to arise on assets
relating to the relevant life insurance technical provisions. If these estimates show that the carrying

amount of the unearned premiums is inadequate, the deficiency is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss by setting up a provision for liability.

1. Employee Benefits

i.

Short Term Obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related

service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and
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ii.

iii.

iv.

are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligation in the Statement of Financial Position.

Post-Employment Benefits
- Defined Contribution Plan

The Company pays Provident Fund contributions to publicly administered Provident Funds as per
local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contribution

are recognized as Employee Benefit Expenses when they are due.
- Defined Benefit Plan

For Defined Benefit Plan, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit
Credit Method, with Actuarial Valuations being carried out at each Statement of Financial Position.
Actuarial Gains & Losses are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income in the period in
which they occur. Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are
already vested and otherwise is amortized on a Straight Line Basis over the average period until
the benefits become vested. The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Statement of
Financial Position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for
unrecognized past service cost, as reduced by the Fair Value of plan Assets (If Any). Any Asset
resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available

refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Long Term Employee Benefits

The liabilities for un-availed earned leaves are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. Leave Encashment
has been computed using Actuarial Assumptions and these are measured at the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end
of the year using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The benefits are discounted using the market

yields at the end of the year that have terms approximating to the terms of assumptions.

Termination

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the
normal retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary retirement in exchange of these
benefits. The Company recognizes termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:

a) When the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and

b) When the entity recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of NAS 37 and
involves the payment of termination benefits. The termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer in case of voluntary retirement scheme.

m. Revenue Recognition

i

ii.

Gross Earned Premium

Gross Premium are recognized as soon as the amount of the premiums can be reliably measured.
First premium is recognized from inception date. At the end of the financial year, all due premiums

are accounted for to the extent that they can be reliably measured.

Unearned Premium

Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of
risk after the reporting date. Unearned premiums are calculated on a pro rate basis. The proportion
attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums.
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iii. Premiums on Reinsurance Accepted

iv.

vi.

Premium on reinsurance accepted comprise the total premiums payable for the whole cover
provided by contracts entered into the period and are recognized on the date on which the
policy incepts. Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of
reinsurance contracts incepting in prior accounting periods. Unearned reinsurance premiums are
those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after the reporting
date. Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been
presented as negative items within premiums and net benefits and claims, respectively, because

this is consistent with how the business is managed.
Commission Income

Commission Income is recognized on accrual basis. If the income is for future periods, then they

are deferred and recognized over those future periods.
Income from investment and loans

Interest income is recognized in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by
using the EIR method. Fees and commission that are an integral part of the effective yield of the

financial asset are recognized as an adjustment to the EIR of the instrument.
Net realized gains and losses

Net realized gains and losses recorded in the statement or profit or loss include gains and losses
on financial assets and properties. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as
the difference between net sales proceeds and the original or amortized cost and are recorded on

occurrence of the sale transaction.

n. Benefit, Claims and Expenses

i

ii.

Gross Benefits and Claims

Benefits and claims include the cost of all claims arising during the year, including external claims
handling costs that are directly related to processing and settlement of claims. Benefits and claims
that are incurred during the financial year are recognized when a claimable event occurs and/or
the insurer is notified. Death, surrender and other benefits without due dates are treated as claims
payable, on the date of receipt of intimation of death of the assured or occurrence of contingency
covered.

Claims Ceded

Reinsurance claims are recognized when the related gross insurance claim is recognized according
to the term of the relevant contracts.

0. Product Classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant

insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if

a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general

guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk by comparing benefits

paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer

financial risk.

The Company has following portfolios under which it operates its business:

i

Endowment

This is a with profit plan that makes provisions for the family of the Life Assured in event of his
early death and also assures a lump sum at a desired age on maturity. It costs moderate premiums,
has high liquidity and in savings oriented. This plan is opt for people of all ages and social groups
who wish to protect their families from a financial setback that may occur owing to their demise.
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ii. Anticipated
This scheme provides for specific periodic payments or partial survival benefits during the term
of the policy itself so long as the policy holder is alive. It is therefore suitable to meet specified
financial requirements needed for occasions like Brata Bandha, Academic Graduations etc. An
important feature of plan is that in the event of death at any time within the policy term, the death
claim comprises full sum assured without deducting any of the survival benefit amounts, which
have already been paid. It is also with profit plan.

iti. Endowment Cum Whole Life
This plan is a combination of Endowment Assurance and Whole Life with profit plan. It provided
financial protection against death throughout the lifetime of the life assured with the provision of
payment of a lump sum at the maturity of the policy to the assured in case of his survival.

iv. Whole Life
Whole life is a type of life insurance contract that provides insurance coverage of the contract
holder for his or her entire life. Upon the inevitable death of the contract holder, the insurance
payout is made to the contract’s beneficiaries. These policies also include a savings component,
which accumulates a cash value. This cash value is one of the key elements of whole life insurance.
v. Foreign Employment Term
The main objective of foreign employment term is providing insurance for financial assistance if
there is death or elimination of any insured due to work or staying abroad.

vi. Others (Other Term)
Term life insurance, also known as pure life insurance, is life insurance that guarantees payment of
a stated death benefit during a specified term. Once the term expires, the policyholder can renew
it for another term, convert the policy to permanent coverage, or allow the policy to terminate.
vii. Special Termn

Special Term insurance is modified version of term insurance with added benefits.
p. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets is substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure

on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

q. Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flows are reported using the direct method, whereby major classes of cash receipts and cash

payments are disclosed as cash flows.
r. Leases

The lease liability has been accounted for under NFRS 16 “Leases”. For all the significant lease, the
Right-of-Use assets have been recognized at their initial recognition under cash model. The Lease
liability has been recognized at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
The lease payment has been discounted at the incremental borrowing rate in lease which is 10%.
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After the commencement date, the right of use asset has been measured using cost model. The lease
liability has been increased to reflect interest on the lease liability & has been reduced by the lease
payment.

The lease assets having the lease liability of equal to or less than 30 lacs present value at inception has
been considered as low value and for those lease the expenses has been recognized under straight line
basis.

s. Income Taxes
Income Tax Expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable & Deferred Tax.

i. Current Tax

Current Tax Expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses
relate. Provision for Current Income Tax is made for the Tax Liability payable on Taxable Income
after considering tax allowances, deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the

applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.

ii. Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax is recognized on temporary difference between the carrying amounts of Assets
and Liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position and their Tax Base. Deferred Tax Assets &
Liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax
base of Assets & Liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither
accounting nor taxable Profit nor Loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred Tax Assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible Temporary difference and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred Tax Liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable Temporary Difference.

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the Deferred Tax Asset to be utilized.

t. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

i. Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate to
determine the present value is a Pre-Tax Rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as interest expenses.

Provisions for Contingent Liability are recognized in the books a matter of abundant precaution
and conservative approach based on management’s best estimate. However, Management believes
that chances of these matters going against the company are remote and there will not be any

probable cash outflow.
ii. Contingent Liabilities

Contingent Liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past

events due to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
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within the control of the Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms
of future outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made.
Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis and only those having a largely probable outflow of
resources are provided for.

iii. Contingent Assets

Contingent assets where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company are

not recognized but disclosed in the Financial Statements.
u. Functional Currency & Foreign Currency Transactions

The Financial Statements of the Company are presented in Nepalese Rupees, which in the Company’s
Functional Currency. In preparing the Financial Statements of the Company, transactions in currencies
other than the Company’s Functional Currency i.e., Foreign Currencies are recognized at the rates of

exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
v. Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company by
the Weighted Average Number of shares outstanding during the Financial Year.

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to

assumed conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
w. Operating Segment

Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the

chief operating decision maker (CODM) as defined by NFRS 8,” Operating Segment”.

Company’s Income & Expenses including interest are considered as part of un-allocable Income
& Expenses which are not identifiable to any business segment. Company’s Asset & Liabilities are

considered as part of un-allocable Assets & Liabilities which are not identifiable to any business.
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Goodwill & Intangible Assets

Particulars

Softwares

Goodwill

" Others

(to be specified) "

Fig. in NPR

Gross carrying amount

As at Shrawan 1, 2078

7,362,287

7,362,287

Additions during the year

Acquisition

8,942,779

8,942,779

Internal Development

Business Combination( to be Specified)

Disposals during the year

Revaluation/ Adjustment

Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2079

16,305,066

16,305,066

Additions during the year

Acquisition

5,609,220

5,609,220

Internal Development

Business Combination( to be Specified)

Disposals during the year

Revaluation/ Adjustment

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080

21,914,286

21,914,286

Accumulated amortization and impairment

As at Shrawan 1, 2078

5,619,360

5,619,360

Additions during the year

1,140,934

1,140,934

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2079

6,760,294

6,760,294

Additions during the year

2,882,808

2,882,808

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080

9,643,102

9,643,102

Capital Work-In-Progress

As on Shrawan 1, 2078

Additions during the year

Capitalisation during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as on Ashadh 32, 2079

Additions during the year

Capitalisation during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2080

Net Carrying Amount

As on Ashadh 32, 2079

9,544,772

9,544,772

As on Ashadh 31, 2080

12,271,183

12,271,183
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Particulars

Gross carrying amount

Softwares

Goodwill

"Others
(to be specified)"

As at Shrawan 1, 2078

8,186,247

8,186,247

Additions during the year

Acquisition

9,342,799

9,342,799

Internal Development

Business Combination( to be Specified)

Disposals during the year

Revaluation/ Adjustment

Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2079

17,529,046

17,529,046

Additions during the year

Acquisition

5,609,220

5,609,220

Internal Development

Business Combination( to be Specified)

Disposals during the year

Revaluation/ Adjustment

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080

23,138,266

23,138,266

Accumulated amortization and impairment

As at Shrawan 1, 2078

6,131,968

6,131,968

Additions during the year

1,321,160

1,321,160

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2079

7,453,127

7,453,127

Additions during the year

2,996,385

2,996,385

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080

10,449,512

10,449,512

Capital Work-In-Progress

As on Shrawan 1, 2078

Additions during the year

Capitalisation during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as on Ashadh 32, 2079

Additions during the year

Capitalisation during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2080

Net Carrying Amount

As on Ashadh 32, 2079

10,075,919

10,075,919

As on Ashadh 31, 2080

12,688,754

12,688,754
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. Investment Properties
Investment Properties at Cost

Particulars
Gross carrying amount

Land

Building

Fig. in NPR
Total

As at Shrawan 1, 2078

82,814,700

213,698,412

296,513,112

Additions during the year

172,248,536

8,876,464

181,125,000

Acquisition

Subsequent Expenditure

Assets classified as held for sales

Disposals during the year

Transfer/ Adjustment

Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2079

255,063,236

222,574,876

477,638,112

Additions during the year

Acquisition

Subsequent Expenditure

4,138,591

4,138,591

Assets classified as held for sales

Disposals during the year

Transfer/ Adjustment

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080

255,063,236

226,713,467

481,776,703

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

As at Shrawan 1, 2078

65,501,256

65,501,256

Additional during the year

3,920,980

3,920,980

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Transfer/ Adjustments

Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2079

69,422,236

69,422,236

Additional during the year

4,258,042

4,258,042

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Transfer/ Adjustments

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080

73,680,278

73,680,278

Capital Work-In-Progress

As on Shrawan 1, 2078

Additions during the year

Capitalisation during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as on Ashadh 32, 2079

Additions during the year

Capitalisation during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2080

Net Carrying Amount

Net Balance As At Ashad 31, 2079

255,063,236

153,152,640

408,215,876

Net Balance As At Ashad 31, 2080

255,063,236

153,033,189

408,096,425
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(i) Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Rental income 69,732,659 56,813,949
Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income (27,369,175) (18,750,387)
Direct operating expenses from property that didn't generated rental ) )
income
Profit from investment properties before depreciation 42,363,484 38,063,562
Depreciation charge (4,258,042) (3,920,980)
Profit from investment properties 38,105,442 34,142,582
(ii) Fair value of investment properties:
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Land 622,156,000 560,058,000
Building 440,239,000 329,791,000
Total 1,062,395,000 889,849,000

Notes on Fair Value :

The company obtained the independent valuation of Investment Properties located at Kamlpokhari as on 17th December,
2023. However, the effect of fair alue has not been provided in Financial Statements.

(iii) Disclosure on restriction on the realisability of investment properties:

There is no restrcition on realisibility of Investment Properties.

(iv) Contractual obligations:

Generally, the company has practice of rent agreement only for one year, there is no any contractual liability except
mentioned in the rent agreement.

7. Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

Insurance Company

Current Year Previous Year

o T | e e e
Deferred Tax on Temporary
Difference
Goodwill & Intangible Assets - - - -
Property and Equipment (20,547,109) -|  (20,547,109) | (23,020,486) - (23,020,486)
Financial Assets at FVTPL - - - 67,732,957 - 67,732,957
Financial Assets at FEVTOCI - | (212,697,180) | (212,697,180) - - -
Provision for Leave 23,045,470 - 23,045,470 | 34,154,732 - 34,154,732
Provision for Gratuity 22,875,393 | (10,937,549) 11,937,844 | 35,466,167 | 10,780,490 46,246,656
Impairment Loss on Financial _ ) } ) } }
Assets
Impairment Loss on Other ) ) . . ) .
Assets
Carry forward of unused tax ) ) ) ) ) )
losses
Changes in tax rate - - - - - -
Other-Premium Amortization 361,550 207,833 207,833
Others -Rent Equalization 38,746,509 38,746,509 | 38,323,977 38,323,977
Total 64,481,813 | (223,634,728) | (159,514,465) | 152,865,181 | 10,780,490 | 163,645,670
Deferred Tax Asstes 64,481,813 | (223,634,728) - - - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities - - 159,152,915 - - -
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Movements in deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)

articulars
As at Shrawan 1, 2079 152,865,181 10,780,490 163,645,670 | (78,880,827) (78,880,827)
Clhegeell(Cdieih o SEEmail | o0 oor 20 S| (88,383,367) | 231,746,008 231,746,008
of Profit or Loss
Charged/(Credited) to Other | (234,415.218) | (234,415,218) -| 10,780,490 10,780,490
Comprehensive Income
As at Ashadh 31, 2080 64,481,813 | (223,634,728) | (159,152,915) | 152,865,181 | 10,780,490 | 163,645,670

7. Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) Group

Particulars Through
SOPL

Current Year

Previous Year

Through Through | Through
socT SOPL soCI Hotal

Deferred Tax on Temporary

Difference

Goodwill & Intangible Assets - -
Property and Equipment (22,781,964) | (20,547,109) | (23,465,787) | (23,465,787)
Financial Assets at FVPTL 13,388,751 - - 81,927,465 - 81,927,465
Financial Assets at FVTOCI - | (212,697,180) | (212,697,180) - - -
Provision for Leave 23,116,597 - 23,045,470 34,154,732 - 34,154,732
Provision for Gratuity 22,875,393 (10,937,549) 11,937,844 35,466,167 | 10,780,490 46,246,656
Impairment Loss on Financial Assets - - - - - -
Impairment Loss on Other Assets - - - - - -
Carry forward of unused tax losses 7,367,795 = - - > -
Changes in tax rate - - - - - -
Other-Premium Amortization 361,550

Others (Rent Equalization) 40,493,668 - 38,746,509 36,287,447 - 36,287,447
Total 84,821,790 | (223,634,728) | (159,514,465) | 164,370,024 | 10,780,490 | 175,150,513
Deferred Tax Asstes 84,821,790 | (223,634,728) - - - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities - - 138,812,938 - - -

Movements in deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)

Current Year

Previous Year

e | CumentYew | PreviousYear |
As at Shrawan 1, 2079 164,370,024 | 10,780,490 | 175,150,513 | (78,880,827) (78,880,827)
Clhnpga(Crdied) o SHemetel | o many (79,548,234) | 243,250,851 243,250,851
Profit or Loss
Charged/(Credited) to Other Com- (234,415,218) | (234,415,218) 10,780,490 | 10,780,490
prehensive Income
As at Ashadh 31, 2080 84,821,790 | (223,634,728) | (138,812,938) | 164,370,024 | 10,780,490 | 175,150,513

8. Investment in Subsidiaries

Group Insurance Company
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries

Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries - - 153,000,000 153,000,000
Less: Impairment Losses - - - -
Total - - 153,000,000 153,000,000
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Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries

Current Year Previous Year

........... Shares of ..... Rs. Eachof ....... Ltd. - - - - - -
........... Shares of ..... Rs. Each of ....... Ltd.
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years - - - . - _

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year
Total

Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries

Particulars o Fair (or) Equit Cost Fair (or) Equit
Value Method Value Method

........... Shares of ..... Rs. Eachof ....... Ltd. - - - - - -

........... Shares of ..... Rs. Eachof ....... Ltd. - - - - - -

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years - - - - R -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year - = - - - B

Total - - - - - -

Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries

Particulars

(or) Equit
Method

(or) Equit
Method

........... Shares of ..... Rs. Eachof ....... Ltd. - - - - R B

........... Shares of .....Rs. Eachof ....... Ltd. - = - - - -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years - - - - R -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year = = - - - B

Total - - - - - _

9. Investment in Associates

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Investment in Quoted Associates - -

Investment in Unquoted Associates - -

Less: Impairment Losses - -

Total - -

Investment in Quoted Associates

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Fair (or) Equit Fair (or) Equit
Method Sl Value Method
........... Shares of ..... Rs. Eachof ....... Ltd. - - - - - -
........... Shares of ..... Rs. Eachof ....... Ltd. = = - - - -

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years - - - - R -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year = = - - - -

Total - - - - - -
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Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries

Particulars

Shares of ..... Rs. Eachof ....... Ltd.

Current Year

Previous Year

Fair (or) Equit Fair (01‘) Equit

........... Shares of ..... Rs. Eachof ....... Ltd.

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year

Total

Information Relating to Associates

Name

Place of Business

Accounting Method

% of Ownership

Current Assets

Non-Current Assets

Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

Income

Net Profit or Loss

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income

Company's share of profits

Net Profit or Loss

Other Comprehensive Income

10. Investments

Particulars

Investments measured at Amortised Cost

Group Insurance Company
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

132,227,823,677

109,440,260,669

132,201,621,012

109,440,260,669

i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and
Financial Institutions

ii) Investment in Debentures

4,559,723,677

3,452,160,669

4,533,521,012

3,452,160,669

iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/
Guaranteed by Nepal Government)

iv) Fixed Deposits in "A" Class Financial Institutions

116,833,100,000

92,223,100,000

116,833,100,000

92,223,100,000

v) Fixed Deposits in Infrastructure Banks

iv) Fixed Deposits in "B" Class Financial Institutions

10,835,000,000

13,765,000,000

10,835,000,000

13,765,000,000

iiv) Fixed Deposits in "C" Class Financial Institutions

iiiv) Others ( to be Specified)

Less: Impairment Losses

Investments at FVTOCI

6,555,188,400

6,555,188,400

i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)

6,345,180,093

6,345,180,093
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ii) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted) 4,780,000 - 4,780,000 -
iii) Investment in Mutual Funds 205,228,307 - 205,228,307 -
iv) Investment in Debentures - - - -
v) Others ( to be Specified) - - -
Investments at FVTPL 182,892,157| 6,031,898,676 -|  5,883,573,669
i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted) 179,391,857 5,848,155,316 -|  5,700,430,309
ii) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted) - 1,195,000 - 1,195,000
iii) Investment in Mutual Funds 3,500,300 182,548,360 - 181,948,360
iv) Investment in Debentures - - - -
v) Others (to be specified) - - - -
Total 138,965,904,234 115,472,159,344 | 138,756,809,412| 115,323,834,337

a) Details of Impairment Losses

Particulars

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial

Institutions

Group Insurance Company
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

Investment in Debentures

Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/NRB/Guar-

anteed by Nepal Government)

Fixed Deposit with"A" Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks

Fixed Deposit with"B" Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposit with"C" Class Financial Institutions

Others (to be Specified)

Total

b) Investments having expected maturies less than 12 months:

Group Insurance Company
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)

Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)

Investment in Mutual Funds

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and
Financial Institutions

Investment in Debentures

50,255,000

229,850,000

50,255,000

229,850,000

Investment in Bonds (Nepal Govern-

ment/NRB/Guaranteed by Nepal Government)

Fixed Deposit with"A" Class Financial Institu-
tions

6,867,500,000

30,350,000,000

6,867,500,000

30,350,000,000

Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks

Fixed Deposit with"B" Class Financial Institu-
tions

7,630,000,000

7,630,000,000

Fixed Deposit with"C" Class Financial Institu-
tions

Others (to be Specified)

Total

6,917,755,000

38,209,850,000

6,917,755,000

38,209,850,000
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¢) Information relating to investment in equity instruments

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars

Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)

Agriculture Development Bank Ltd 215,955 ordinacy shares
of Rs 100 Each

Agriculture Development Bank Ltd 220,273 ordinacy shares
of Rs 100 Each

Arun Valley Hydropower Development Company Ltd
41,580 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each

CEDB Hydropower Development Company Ltd 8,470
ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each

Bank of Kathmandu Ltd 481,174 promoter shares of Rs 100
Each

Bank of Kathmandu Ltd 35,920 ordinary shares of Rs 100
Each

Century Bank Ltd 12,854 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each - - 3,715,940 2,352,282

Chimek Laghubitta Bikas Bank Ltd 55,178 ordinary shares
of Rs 100 Each

Chimek Laghubitta Bikas Bank Ltd 67,317 ordinary shares
of Rs 100 Each

Chilime Hydropower Company Ltd 1,110 ordinary shares
of Rs 100 Each

Chilime Hydropower Company Ltd 1,122 ordinary shares
of Rs 100 Each

Citizens Bank International Ltd 112,541 ordinary shares of
Rs 100 Each

Civil Bank Ltd 137,516 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each - - 33,754,877 29,290,908
Citizen Investment Trust 83 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each - - 66,890 208,745

Citizen Investment Trust 1,017,543 promoter shares of Rs
100 Each

Citizen Investment Trust 1,653,506 promoter shares of Rs
100 Each

Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 25,921 ordinary
shares of Rs 100 Each

Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 28,513 ordinary
shares of Rs 100 Each

Everest Bank Ltd 497,038 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each - -| 380,150,413| 218,199,682
Everest Bank Ltd 562,489 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each 343,028,759 316,681,307 - -

First Microfinance Laghu bitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 6,300
ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each

First Microfinance Laghu bitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 7,497
ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each

Forward Microfinance Laghu bitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd
270,000 promoter shares of Rs 100 Each

Forward Microfinance Laghu bitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd
337,500 promoter shares of Rs 100 Each

Forward Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd
13,123 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each

Garima Bikas Bank Ltd 319,395 ordinary shares of Rs 100
Each

Garima Bikas Bank Ltd 247,546 ordinary shares of Rs 100
Each

Global IME Bank Ltd 131,243 ordinary shares of Rs 100
Each

- -l 83,582,282 71,481,105

83,582,282 51,521,855 - -

14,905,900( 10,602,900 - -

7,659,969 7,656,880 - -

- -l 40,825,401 67,845,534

- - 9,117,268 8,157,432

- -l 75,442,578 60,695,800

75,442,578 67,317,000 = =

- - 673,685 452,880

673,685 602,177 - -

32,712,152  19,480,847| 32,712,152| 22,789,553

- - 708,726,468| 708,728,875

708,726,468 1,411,102,234 - -

- -l 37,113,159 24,365,740

37,113,159 23,551,738 - -

- - 5,705,456 4,189,500

5,705,456 5,620,041 - -

- - 170,685,095 170,685,900

170,685,095 184,923,000 - -

- -l 28,322,384 31,298,355

- -l 178,735,185| 123,605,865

121,572,961| 100,256,130 - -

44,757,439 32,994,490
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Particulars

Global IME Bank Ltd 510,045 promoter shares of Rs 100
Each

40,825,401

51,004,500

Global IME Bank Ltd 173,333 ordinary shares of Rs 100
Each

53,874,707

32,239,938

Grameen Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 44,177 ordi-
nary shares of Rs 100 Each

51,320,225

27,964,041

51,320,225

33,397,812

Gurans Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 3,261 ordinary
shares of Rs 100 Each

4,525,244

3,150,126

Gurans Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 4,100 ordinary
shares of Rs 100 Each

5,267,251

3,025,800

Himalayan Bank Ltd 109,869 ordinary shares of Rs 100
Each

56,258,677

32,872,805

Himalayan Bank Ltd 234,625 ordinary shares of Rs 100
Each

90,013,554

49,928,200

Nepal Infrastracture Bank Ltd 19,332,000 promoter shares
of Rs 100 Each

1,790,000,000

1,933,200,000

1,790,000,000

1,933,200,000

Jyoti Bikas Bank Ltd 37,315 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each

16,484,410

11,276,593

Jyoti Bikas Bank Ltd 38,435 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each

16,484,410

11,453,630

Kalika Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 4,696 ordinary shares
of Rs 100 Each

4,749,236

5,628,156

Kalika Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 791 ordinary shares
of Rs 100 Each

672,539

582,176

Kumari Bank Ltd 220,994 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each

68,767,274

36,464,010

62,654,588

38,122,836

Laxmi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 6,822 ordinary shares
of Rs 100 Each

12,409,067

8,698,050

Laxmi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 8,995 ordinary shares
of Rs 100 Each

13,746,869

8,032,535

Lumbini Bikas Bank Ltd 5,956 ordinary shares of Rs 100
Each

2,226,000

2,459,828

Machhapuchhare Bank Ltd 297,777 ordinary shares of Rs
100 Each

91,817,146

69,024,709

91,817,146

75,635,358

Manjushree Finance Ltd 30,825 ordinary shares of Rs 100
Each

26,545,973

16,953,750

26,545,973

13,778,775

Mega Bank Ltd 362,101 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each

112,621,272

81,834,826

Mithila Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 35,449 ordinary
shares of Rs 100 Each

62,906,870

48,458,783

Mithila Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 41,214 ordinary
shares of Rs 100 Each

63,353,610

43,027,416

Muktinath Bikas Bank Ltd 35,315 ordinary shares of Rs 100
Each

17,431,825

15,535,069

Muktinath Bikas Bank Ltd 40,082 ordinary shares of Rs 100
Each

17,431,825

16,313,374

Nabil Bank Ltd 25,000 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each

14,950,809

14,980,000

NADEP Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 4,711 ordinary
shares of Rs 100 Each

3,741,481

4,894,729

NADEP Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 3,996 ordinary
shares of Rs 100 Each

3,173,627

2,430,367

Naya Sarathi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 12,772 ordi-
nary shares of Rs 100 Each

15,379,797

10,811,498

Naya Sarathi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 15,198 ordi-
nary shares of Rs 100 Each

15,379,797

10,539,813

NESDO Sambridha Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 860
ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each

2,692,824

1,757,840
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Particulars

Eljiﬁal Bangladesh Bank Ltd 3,120 ordinary shares of Rs 100 1113,978 1,244,880

Nepal Bank Ltd 281,440 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each - - 107,312,985| 83,869,120
Nepal Bank Ltd 307,866 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each 112,667,806 76,658,634 - -

Nepal Credit and Commerce Bank Ltd 21,398 ordinary
shares of Rs 100 Each

Nepal Investment Bank Ltd 491,215 promoter shares of Rs
100 Each

Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd 510,325 promoter shares
of Rs 100 Each

Nepal Investment Bank Ltd 484,449 ordinary shares of Rs
100 Each

Nepal Investment Bank Ltd 436,257 ordinary shares of Rs
100 Each

Nepal Reinsurance Company Ltd 837,577 promoter shares
of Rs 100 Each

Nepal Reinsurance Company Ltd 921,230 promoter shares
of Rs 100 Each

Nepal SBI Bank Ltd 144,505 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each - -| 75,701,491 40,793,762
Nepal SBI Bank Ltd 264,440 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each | 107,945,107| 90,174,040 - -

Nepal Doorsanchar Company Ltd 52,381 ordinary shares of
Rs 100 Each

Nerude Laghubitta Bikas Bank Ltd 4,033 ordinary shares of
Rs 100 Each

Nerude Laghubitta Bikas Bank Ltd 4,920 ordinary shares of
Rs 100 Each

NIC Asia Bank Ltd 1,275,688 promoter shares of Rs 100
Each

NIC Asia Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 7,540 ordinary
shares of Rs 100 Each

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 143,683
ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 183,092
ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each

Oriental Hotels Ltd 1,738 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each - - 589,972 839,454
NMB Bank Ltd 47,775 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each 10,619,308 10,797,150 - -
Prabhu Bank Ltd 90,360 promoter shares of Rs 100 Each - - 11,303,148, 13,102,200
Prabhu Bank Ltd 96,266 promoter shares of Rs 100 Each 11,303,148 9,623,300 - -
Prabhu Bank Ltd 757,222 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each - -| 312,712,352 156,744,954
Prabhu Bank Ltd 291,394 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each 112,338,493 47,380,664 - -

Rasuwagadi Hydropower Company Ltd 8,809 ordinary
shares of Rs 100 Each

Prime Commercial Bank Ltd 220,197 ordinary shares of Rs
100 Each

Prime Commercial Bank Ltd 229,314 ordinary shares of Rs
100 Each

RMDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 12,060 shares of Rs
100 Each

Sadhana Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 19,760 ordinary
shares of Rs 100 Each

Sadhana Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 23,514 ordinary
shares of Rs 100 Each

- - 6,112,685 4,512,838

- -l 172,534,951| 119,119,638

170,461,570 94,073,495 = =

- - 123,220,436 75,378,985

161,756,210 75,821,467 - -

- - 71,895,100 83,757,700

71,895,100 276,486,917 - -

53,181,915 47,504,329 53,181,915 46,037,661

- - 4,263,649 3,549,040

4,263,649 3,384,960 - -

70,820,400 385,431,270 70,820,400 558,751,344

9,528,970 5,496,660 9,528,970 6,483,646

- - 175,906,706 157,907,617

184,205,539 140,065,380 - -

3,065,957 2,642,700 3,065,957 2,404,857

- -|  83,457,773| 58,352,205

83,579,529 44,716,230 - -

- - 12,382,893| 10,106,280

- -l 28,153,547| 22,131,200

28,153,547 17,423,874 - -
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Particulars
Sana Kisan Bikas Bank Ltd 12,507 ordinary shares of Rs 100 17340562| 13,319,955

Each

Sana Kisan Bikas Bank Ltd 15,758 ordinary shares of Rs 100
Each

Sanima Bank Ltd 158,328 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each - -| 51,860,107 43,698,528
Sanima Bank Ltd 239,311 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each 68,845,428 62,340,516 - -

Sanima Mai Hydropower Company Ltd 18,238 ordinary
shares of Rs 100 Each

Sanima Mai Hydropower Company Ltd 48,238 ordinary
shares of Rs 100 Each

Sanjen Jalbidhyut Company Ltd 20,547 ordinary shares of
Rs 100 Each

Shangrila Development Bank Ltd 26,126 ordinary shares of
Rs 100 Each

17,340,562 14,166,442 - -

- - 7,089,636 5,580,828

18,389,748 17,124,490 - -

7,176,950 6,100,404 7,176,950 5,342,220

- - 8,970,219 7,576,540

Shine Resunga Development Bank Ltd 17,706 ordinary
shares of Rs 100 Each

Shivam Cement Ltd 19,263 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each - - 19,321,596| 14,639,880
Shivam Cement Ltd 49,263 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each 35,224,325 32,094,845

Siddhartha Bank Ltd 205,171 ordinary shares of Rs 100
Each

Siddhartha Bank Ltd 251,077 ordinary shares of Rs 100
Each

Soaltee Hotel Ltd 17,665 ordinary shares of Rs 10 Each - - 4,056,616 3,577,163
Soaltee Hotel Ltd 4,576 ordinary shares of Rs 10 Each 1,276,156 2,219,360 - -

Standard Chartered Bank Ltd 136,293 ordinary shares of Rs
100 Each

Standard Chartered Bank Ltd 291,019 ordinary shares of Rs
100 Each

Sunrise Bank Ltd 284,609 ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each 80,708,381 49,265,818 80,708,381| 58,914,063

Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 74,127 ordi-
nary shares of Rs 100 Each

Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 95,267 ordi-
nary shares of Rs 100 Each

- - 6,933,949 5,221,499

- -l 78,451,397 62,166,813

83,456,047 63,522,481 - -

- -l 107,331,039 54,012,916

168,663,179| 154,269,172 - -

- -| 102,557,356 86,654,463

111,562,887 85,797,460 - -

Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted) - - - -

Insurance Institute of Nepal Ltd 11,950 promotor shares of . - 1,195,000 1,195,000

Rs 100 Each

1irslslu(l)lz)aE;edinstitute of Nepal Ltd 47,800 promotor shares of 4,780,000 4,780,000 ) )
Investment in Mutual Funds - -
Nabil Equity Fund 936,352 shares of Rs 10 Each 9,798,019 8,998,343 9,798,019 9,363,520
Nabil Balance Fund-2 157,500 shares of Rs 10 Each 1,730,046 1,386,000 1,730,046 1,697,850
Nabil Balance Fund-3 16,680 shares of Rs 10 Each 166,800 126,268 166,800 157,292
NMB Hybrid Fund L-1 630,961 shares of Rs 10 Each 6,309,610 6,808,069 6,309,610 7,066,763
NIBL Pragati Fund 171,247 shares of Rs 10 Each 1,712,470 1,662,808 1,712,470 1,715,895
Siddhartha Equity Fund 967,748 shares of Rs 10 Each 9,677,480 9,125,864 9,677,480 9,561,350
Sanima Equity Fund 1,568,800 shares of Rs 10 Each 16,234,172| 18,511,840 16,234,172| 20,002,200
Citizen Mutual Fund-1 2,000,000 shares of Rs 10 Each 20,000,000f  18,760,000{  20,000,000| 17,600,000
NMB - 50 4,936,675 shares of Rs 10 Each 53,937,592|  51,835,088| 53,937,592| 63,683,108
Laxmi Equity Fund 2,080,045 shares of Rs 10 Each - - 21,713,731 20,592,446
Laxmi Equity Fund 4,012,945 shares of Rs 10 Each 38,164,940 38,484,143 - -
NIBL Sambridhi Fund- II 1,000,000 shares of Rs 10 Each 10,000,000 9,110,000{ 10,000,000 8,670,000
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Previous Year

Particulars
Sunrise First Mutual Fund 672,130 shares of Rs 10 Each 9,360,380 7,447,200 9,360,380 7,729,495
Prabhu Select Fund 1,468,100 shares of Rs 100 Each 14,681,000 12,992,685 14,681,000 14,108,441
NMB Sulav Investment Fund-2 2,000,000 shares of Rs 10 20,000,000 19,980,000
Each
Total 5,975,334,723| 6,555,188,400| 6,154,505,499|5,883,573,671
Fair Value

i. The valuation basis of promoter share is 40% of 180 days average trading price obtained from Nepal

Stock Exchange . However, the valaution has been considered maximum of 40% of 180 days Average

trading price or Face value.

ii. The promoter share which are freely traded in NEPSE, last trading price has been considered for

valuation.

d) The company has earmarked investments amounting to NPR. 109,973,600,000 to Nepal Insurance

Authority.
11. Loans

Group Insurance Company
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

Loans measured at Amortised Cost

Loan to Employees 495,697,560 374,405,052 495,697,560 374,405,052
Loan to Agents 316,433,645 486,497,201 316,433,645 486,497,201
Loan to Policyholders 30,455,989,783| 24,769,750,182| 30,455,989,783( 24,769,750,182
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Less: Impairment Losses - - - -
i. Agent Loan (150,312,274)|  (146,667,407)|  (150,312,274)|  (146,667,407)
ii. Debtors

Total 31,117,808,713| 25,483,985,028| 31,117,808,713| 25,483,985,028

a) Loans to Policyholders

Loan amount Interest Income

Particulars
Endowment 14,699,433,090| 11,584,888,086 1,425,178,228 1,162,498,522
Anticipated Endowment 8,572,581,085 7,650,379,209 855,332,754 718,009,100
Endowment cum Whole Life 7,183,975,608 5,534,482,887 696,420,706 507,965,601
Whole Life
Foreign Employment Term
Micro Term
Special Term
Others ( Other Term)
Total 30,455,989,783|  24,769,750,182 2,976,931,688 2,388,473,223

b) Expected repayment of loan within 12 months:

Particulars

Loan to Employees

Current Year

Current Year

Loan amount Interest Income

Previous Year Previous Year

Loan to Agents

Loan to Policyholders

Others ( to be Specified)

Total
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12. Reinsurance Assets

Particulars

Endowment

Policy liabilities and
provisions

Current | Previous | Current | Previous | Current| Previous | Current | Previous
year Year year Year year Year year Year

Claim Payment

Reserve

Net Reinsurance

Impairment Losses

Assets

Anticipated Endowment =

Endowment cum Whole Life -

Whole Life -

Foreign Employment Term -

Micro Term -

Special Term -

Others (to be Specified) -

Total -

13. Insurance Receivables

Group Insurance Company
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

Receivable from Reinsurer 65,458,981 132,061,189 65,458,981 132,061,189
Receivable from other Insurance Companies - - - -
Others( to be Specified) - - - -
Less: Impairment Losses - - - -
Total 65,458,981 132,061,189 65,458,981 132,061,189

a) Expected receivable within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

Receivable from Reinsurer 65,458,981 132,061,189 65,458,981 132,061,189
Receivable from Other Insurance Companies - - . _
Others( to be Specified) - 8 - .
Total 65,458,981 132,061,189 65,458,981 132,061,189

14. Other Assets

Group Insurance Company
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

Capital Advances

Prepaid Expenses 3,365,218 6,410,021 3,108,426 6,328,418
Claim Advances - - - -
Advance To Suppliers 2,075,471 4,240,471 2,075,471 4,240,471
Staff Advances 14,707,415 212,944 14,704,933 212,944
Printing and Stationary Stocks 3,872,295 3,319,624 3,864,595 3,319,624
Stamp Stocks 132,437 642,187 132,437 642,187
Deferred Expenses 178,802,998 198,440,585 178,802,998 198,440,585
Deferred Reinsurance Commission Expenses - - - -
Deferred Agent Commission Expenses - - - -
Lease Receivables - - - -
Others - - - -
i. Advance to building 679,533 679,533 679,533 679,533
ii. Advance to agents 273,377 285,390 273,377 285,390
Less: Impairment Losses - - - -
Total 203,908,744 214,230,754 203,641,770 214,149,151
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a) Expected to be recovered/ settled within 12 months:

Particulars
Capital Advances - - - -
Prepaid Expenses 3,365,218 6,410,021 3,108,426 6,328,418
Claim Advances - - - -
Advance To Suppliers 2,075,471 4,240,471 2,075,471 4,240,471
Staff Advances 14,707,415 212,944 14,704,933 212,944
Printing and Stationary Stocks - a - -
Stamp Stocks - - - -
Deferred Expenses = = - -
Deferred Reinsurance Commission Expenses - - - -
Deferred Agent Commission Expenses - - = =
Lease Receivables - - - -
Others = - - -
i. Advance to building 679,533 679,533 679,533 679,533
ii. Advance to agents 273,377 285,390 273,377 285,390
Total 21,101,013 11,828,359 20,841,740 11,746,756

15. Other Financial Assets

Group Insurance Company

Security Deposits 478,528 498,528 478,528 498,528
Accured Interest - - - -
Interest Receivable from Loan to Policyholders 4,439,548,613| 3,447,716,169| 4,439,548,613| 3,447,716,169
Other Receivables (Interest on FD) 356,969,847 343,407,725 356,800,230 343,407,725
Other Deposits - - - -
Sundry Debtors 87,557,993 21,824,089 86,889,970 15,369,640
Others - - - -
i. Share Application Money 1,850,000 4,106,000 - 4,106,000
ii. Income Receivable From "Nepal Life Building" 38,215,308 45,103,612 38,215,308 45,103,612
iii. Deficit Premium Receivable 19,293 19,463 19,293 19,463
Less: Impairment Losses (20,616,076) (20,616,076) (20,616,076) (20,616,076)
Total 4,904,023,506 3,842,059,510| 4,901,335,867| 3,835,605,060
Note:

i. Other receivables includes the interest receivables on Debenture of NRs. 162,322,557.65

ii. Impairment Loss includes the Impairment of income receivable from Nepal Life Building of NRs.

16,196,453.05.
a) Expected maturies within 12 months:

Particulars
Security Deposits - - - -
Accured Interest - - - -
Interest Receivable from Loan to Policyholders 4,439,548,613 3,447,716,169 4,439,548,613 3,447,716,169
Other Receivables 356,969,847 343,407,725 356,800,230 343,407,725
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Particulars
Current Year| Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

Sundry Debtors - - - -
Others - - - -
i. Share Application Money 1,850,000 4,106,000 - 4,106,000
ii. Income Receivable From "Nepal Life Building" 38,215,308 45,103,612 38,215,308 45,103,612

Other Deposits

iii. Deficit Premium Receivable = - - -

Total 4,836,583,768|  3,840,333,506|  4,834,564,151|  3,840,333,506
16. Cash and Cash Equivalent

Group Insurance Company
Particulars - -
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

Cash in Hand 92,563,945 81,040,203 92,494,583 80,998,759
Cheque in Hand 35,451,676 78,572,733 35,451,676 78,572,733
Bank Balances - - - -
i) Balance With"A" Class Financial Institutions 4,346,622,980| 4,097,153,355| 4,345,392,447| 4,073,579,159
ii) Balance With Infrastructure Banks - - - -
iii) Balance With"B" Class Financial Institutions 178,041,301 212,064,022 171,008,380 198,733,466
iv) Balance With"C" Class Financial Institutions 5,008,984 15,373,284 3,759,574 1,520,617

Less: Impairment Losses

Deposit with initial maturity upto 3 months - - - -

Others (to be Specified) - - - -

Less: Impairment Losses (20,548,189) (63,669,246) (20,548,189) (63,669,246)

Total 4,637,140,696| 4,420,534,351 4,627,558,471 4,369,735,487
Note:

i. Impairment losses includes the provision for Cheque in Hand.

17. (a) Share Capital
Particulars
Ordinary Shares

As at Shrawan 1, 2079 8,207,966,554| 7,199,970,661| 8,207,966,554| 7,199,970,661

Additions during the year

i) Bonus Share Issue - - - -
ii) Share Issue -|  1,007,995,893 -|  1,007,995,893
As at Ashadh 31, 2080 8,207,966,554 8,207,966,554| 8,207,966,554| 8,207,966,554

Convertible Preference Shares (Equity Component
only)

As at Shrawan 1, 2079

Additions during the year - - - -
As at Ashadh 31, 2080

Irredeemable Preference Shares (Equity Component
only)

As at Shrawan 1, 2079

Additions during the year - - - -
As at Ashadh 31, 2080 = - - -
Total 8,207,966,554| 8,207,966,554|  8,207,966,554|  8,207,966,554
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i. Ordinary Shares

Particulars
Authorised Capital:
100,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 Each 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000(  10,000,000,000
Issued Capital:
82,079,665.54 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 Each. 8,207,966,554 8,207,966,554 8,207,966,554 8,207,966,554
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:
82,079,665.54 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 Each. 8,207,966,554 8,207,966,554 8,207,966,554 8,207,966,554
Total 8,207,966,554 8,207,966,554 8,207,966,554 8,207,966,554

ii. Preference Share Capital

Particulars

Authorised Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. XXX ) ) ) )
Each

........-rredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. XXX ) ) ) )
Each

Issued Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. XXX ) ) ) )
Each

.......-rredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. XXX
Each

Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. XXX
Each

........J-rredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. XXX
Each

Total = - - -

Shareholding Structure of Share Capital

Particulars
Promoters
Government of Nepal
Nepali Organized Institutions 41,860,629 41,860,629 51% 51%
Nepali Citizens
Foreigners
Others ( to be Specified)
Total (A) 41,860,629 41,860,629 51% 51%
Other than Promoters
General Public 40,219,036 40,219,036 49% 49%
Others (to be Specified)
Total (B) 40,219,036 40,219,036 49% 49%
Total(A+B) 82,079,665 82,079,665 100% 100%
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Details of shareholders holding 1% or more than 1% of the aggregate shares in the Company:

Number of Shares

Particulars
1. Suvash Chandra Sanghai 5,165,382 5,420,948 6.29% 6.60%
2. Govind Lal Sanghai 4,403,754 4,403,754 5.37% 5.37%
3. Anuj Agrawal 3,987,166 4,139,243 4.86% 5.04%
4. Pawan Kumar Golyan 2,765,407 3,026,345 3.37% 3.69%
5. Bishal Agrawal 2,872,794 2,977,794 3.50% 3.63%
6. Ram Chand Sanghai 2,855,710 2,855,710 3.48% 3.48%
7. Purushottam Lal Sanghai 2,492,314 2,492,314 3.04% 3.04%
8. Basudev Golyan 1,950,662 2,377,069 2.38% 2.90%
9. Kavita Sanghai 1,607,925 1,657,925 1.96% 2.02%
10. Tulasi Ram Agrawal 1,384,421 1,457,921 1.69% 1.78%
11. Manju Agrawal 1,333,449 1,384,949 1.62% 1.69%
12. Sushil Gupta 1,154,702 1,203,543 1.41% 1.47%

17. (b) Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Total - - - -

17. (c) Share Premium

Particulars

Particulars
As on Shrawan 1, 2079 43,839,625 43,839,625 43,839,625 43,839,625
Increase due to issue of shares at premium
Decrease due to issue of bonus shares - -
Transaction costs on issue of share
Others ( to be Specified)
As on Ashadh 31, 2080 43,839,625 43,839,625 43,839,625 43,839,625

17. (d) Catastrophe Reserves

Particulars
As on Shrawan 1, 2079 838,236,643 829,247,601 838,236,643 829,247,601
Additions 209,960,728 8,989,042 209,960,728 8,989,042
Utilizations
As on Ashadh 31, 2080 1,048,197,371 838,236,643 1,048,197,371 838,236,643

17. (e) Retained Earnings

As on Shrawan 1, 2079

Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

(159,131,061)

1,366,154,579

(124,936,855)

1,366,154,579

Net Profit or Loss

2,019,565,553

97,242,559

2,011,223,910

97,242,559

Adjustment of prior period provision of Investment-
FVTPL

Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit

Obligations
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Particulars

Transfer to reserves

Group Insurance Company
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

Revaluation Reserves

Capital Reserves

Catastrophic Reserves

(209,960,728)

(8,989,042)

(209,960,728)

(8,989,042)

"Corporate Social Responsibility(CSR) Reserves"

(20,996,073)

(898,904)

(20,996,073)

(898,904)

Insurance Fund

Fair Value Reserves

Actuarial Reserves

Deferred Tax Reserve

99,163,857

(163,645,670)

99,163,857

(163,645,670)

Regulatory Reserves

(7,352,144)

(7,352,144)

Other Reserve

Transfer of Depreciation on Revaluation of Property
and Equipment

Transfer of Disposal of Revalued Property and
Equipment

Transfer of Disposal of Equity Instruments
Measured at FVTOCI

Issue of Bonus Shares

Transaction costs on issue of Shares

Dividend Paid

(1,231,468,999)

(1,231,468,999)

Dividend Distribution Tax

(64,525,720)

(64,525,720)

Transfer to Insurance Contract Liability

Others -Actuarial Impact

(111,453,514)

(111,453,514

Others-Nepal Life Capital

1,038,810

(34,194,206)

As on Ashadh 31, 2080

1,729,680,358

(159,131,061)

1,754,494,110

(124,936,855)

The company has changed the accounting of fair value gain/ (loss) previously measured at FVTPL to FVTOCI

prospectively as per NFRS 9.
17. (f) Other Equity

Revaluation Reserves

Group Insurance Company
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

Capital Reserves 601,993 601,993 - -
"Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserves" 21,183,173 898,904 21,183,173 898,904
Insurance Fund - - - -
Fair Value Reserves 63,809,154 - 63,809,154 -
Actuarial Reserves 1,493,771 (17,874,939) 1,493,771 (17,874,939)
Deferred Tax Reserve 64,481,813 163,645,670 64,481,813 163,645,670
Other Reserve(Regulatory) 589,594,163 589,594,163 589,594,163 589,594,163
Total 741,164,067 736,865,791 740,562,073 736,263,798
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17. (g) Non Controlling Interest

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Equity Interest Held by Non-Controlling Interest(NIC) 51.02% 147,481,607
Accumulated Balance of NCI as on Shrawan 1, 2079 114,649,895 -
Total Comprehensive Income Allocated to NCI for the year 9,006,682 (32,831,712)
Divident Paid to NCI - -
Accumulated Balance of NCI as on Ashadh 32, 2080 123,656,577 114,649,895

18. Provisions

. Group Insurance Company
Particulars
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

Provision for employee benefits

i) Provision for Leave

124,951,283

136,618,928

124,714,194

136,618,928

ii) Provision for Gratuity

133,665,548

184,986,625

133,665,548

184,986,625

iii) Termination Benefits

iv) Other Employee Benefit obligations (to be

Specified)

Provision for tax related legal cases

Provision for non-tax related legal cases

Others( to be Specified)

Total

258,616,831

321,605,553

258,379,742

321,605,553

(a) Movement of Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Description

Opening

Balance

Additions

Year

Utilised
During the | During the
Year

Reversed
During the
Year

Unwinding
of Discount

Closing
Balance

Provision for employee benefits

i) Provision for Leave

136,618,928

237,089

(11,904,734)

124,951,283

ii) Provision for Gratuity

184,986,625

(51,321,077) -

133,665,548

iii)Termination Benefits

iv) Other Employee Benefit obliga-
tions (to be Specified)

Provision for tax related legal cases

Provision for non-tax related legal
cases

Others (to be Specified)

(b) Provision with expected payouts within 12 months

Group Insurance Company
Current Year| Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

Particulars

Provision for employee benefits

i) Provision for Leave

8,996,745

12,488,823

8,759,656

12,488,823

ii) Provision for Gratuity

133,665,548

184,986,625

133,665,548

184,986,625

iii) Termination Benefits

iv) Other employee benefit obligations( to be

Specified)

Provision for tax related legal cases

Provision for non-tax related legal cases

Others (to be Specified)
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19. Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities

Particulars X .

Life Insurance Fund as per Actuary Report (19.1)

161,417,073,231

134,416,007,557

161,417,073,231

134,416,007,557

Claim Payment Reserve including IBNR (19.2)

1,386,487,824

1,715,491,105

1,386,487,824

1,715,491,105

Transfer from:

Fair Value Reserve

574,282,386

574,282,386

Actuarial Reserve

13,443,936

13,443,936

Revaluation Reserve

Other Reserve

Net gain on fair value changes on FVTPL instruments

Fair Value Gain on Investment Properties

Share of Profit of Associates accounted as per Equity
Method

Share of Other Comprehensive Income of Associates
Accounted for using the Equity Method

Total

163,391,287,377

136,131,498,662

163,391,287,377

136,131,498,662

i)

Notes on the cash-flows considered for valuation of liabilities

The liability is calculated as the present value of expected future cash flows based on best estimate +
MAD assumptions, discounted using the minimum of the actual yield earned during the year, or 6% p.a.
(whichever is lower), in accordance with the Valuation Directive 2077 for Life Insurers.

ii) Notes on valuation methods and assumptions

The principles on which the valuation was made were determined by the Appointed Actuary, having
regard to statutory requirements; in particular the Gross Premium Valuation (GPV) basis provided the
Valuation Directive, 2077 for Life Insurers and Insurance Act 2079 (2022) issued by the NIA. Based on
the policy data used for valuation, the expected claims (assuming that the experience would follow the
industry morality table, NALM 2009) were compared against the actual claims experience by year and by
product type.

iii) Notes on the discounting policy

"According to the Valuation Directive 2077, the valuation rate of interest shall be the minimum of 6% p.a.
and the actual yield on life fund. The actual investment yields earned on the life fund is set out in Table
5.11 and is significantly in excess of 6% p.a. The yield on the total assets reflects the impact of interest on
policy loans. Furthermore, the yield formula

used is as per the Form 2 (9) of the valuation directive.

Yield =21 / (A+B-I)

Where A is the fund at the start of the year; B is the fund at the end of the year; [ is the interest and other
investment income received/ receivables during the year. The above yield is earned on the current
investments. However in compliance with the basis prescribed by NIA, I have set the valuation discount

rate as 6% p.a."

iv) Notes on aggregation practises

The valauation model used for liability calculation at policy level however the result can be agrregated at
product level. There is no additional aggregation of data performed for liability calculation.
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v) Any other disclosures as required

Fair value reserve reprsents the 90% of fair value gain/ (loss) through other comprehensive income (Net of

tax) on Euity Share and Mutual Fund.

Amnnexure 19.1: Life Insurance Fund

Anticipated Endowment Foreign Others
Particulars Endowment | £ IPACC i Whole Employment| (Other Total
Endowment .
Life Term Term)

gﬂfg‘“g Life Insurance |70 017 071 458|24,552,644,080|31,016,073,348|  203,946,762| 15,471,908 134,416,007,557
Surplus transfer to Life
Insurance fund as per Sec 21|18,430,774,157| 1,865,603,496| 8,285,063,571| 241,978,082 33,353,152| 28,856,772,457
of the directive
Gross Life Insurance Fund | o7 56 645 616(26 418,247,576|39,301,136,919|  445,924,843| 48,825,061| 163,272,780,015
for valuation (A)
Net policyholder's liability |86,724,740,930|24,685,227,314(34,445,715,114 72,785,700| 33,980,250 145,962,449,308
Surplus/(Deficit) before 1, 333 904 686| 1,733,020,262 4,855,421,805 373,139,143 14,844,811 17,310,330,707
shareholder transfer
;rsfl‘;s(fg to shareholder 995,320,136 | 472,402,693| 373,139,143 14,844,811 1,855,706,783
Transfer from shareholder
fund to cover deficit as per - - - - - -
actuary report (C)
Closing life insurance
Fund as per acturial 96,063,325,479(26,418,247,576(38,828,734,226 72,785,700| 33,980,250( 161,417,073,231
valuation (D=A-B+C)
i) Life fund to cover Net

. 1 1s 86,724,740,930(24,685,227,314(34,445,715,114 72,785,700| 33,980,250( 145,962,449,308
Policyholder's liability
ELIEE: fund to cover Costof | g 557 681 26| 1,713,002,419| 4,251,624,237 - -| 14,922,507,881
iii) Any other liabilities ) ) ) ) ) )
(Please specify, if any)
iv) Unallocated surplus 380,703,324 20,017,843 131,394,875 - - 532,116,042
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20. Insurance Payable

Group Insurance Company
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

Payable to Reinsurer 284,364,516 219,844,104 284,364,516 219,844,104
Payable to other Insurance Companies - = - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total 284,364,516 219,844,104 284,364,516 219,844,104

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars
Payable to Reinsurer 284,364,516 219,844,104 284,364,516 219,844,104
Payable to other Insurance Companies - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total 284,364,516 219,844,104 284,364,516 219,844,104

21. Current Tax Assets/(Liabilities) (Net)

Group Insurance Company
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

Particulars

Income Tax Liabilities 3,620,569,879| 2,564,271,402| 3,620,569,879| 2,562,401,769
Income Tax Assets 1,958,929,812( 2,829,106,806| 1,952,947,518| 2,821,975,670
Total (1,661,640,067) 264,835,404| (1,667,622,361) 259,573,901

22. Borrowings

Particulars

Group Insurance Company

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Bonds

Debentures

Term Loans-Bank and Financial Institution

Bank Overdrafts

Others (to be Specified)

Total

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars

Bonds

Debentures

Term Loans-Bank and Financial Institution

Bank Overdrafts

Others (to be Specified)

Total
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23. Other Liabilities

. Group Insurance Company
Particulars - ;
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

TDS Payable 242,740,691 302,632,839 242,716,779 302,629,109
Unidentified deposits 48,216,328 - 48,216,328 32,006,300
Advance Premiums - - - -
Insurance Service Fee Payable 307,847,343 354,895,063 307,847,343 354,895,063
Lease Liability 160,809,900 160,084,345 154,986,036 153,295,909
Deferred Reinsurance Commission Income - - - -
Deferred Income - - - -
Others - - - -
i. Claim Payable 266,983,348 210,598,433 266,983,348 210,598,433
ii. Payable to Forfeited Policy 1,375,964 2,079,761 1,375,964 2,079,761
iii. New Agent Lic. Fee Payable To Beema Samiti 16,989,930 18,512,726 16,989,930 18,512,726
iv. Renewal Agent Lic.Fee Payable To Beema Samiti 3,271,007 3,129,929 3,271,007 3,129,929
v. Misc Credit Account 83,600 83,100 83,600 83,100
Total 1,048,318,112| 1,052,016,196| 1,042,470,336| 1,077,230,331

Payable within 12 months

Particulars
TDS Payable 242,740,691 302,632,839 242,716,779 302,629,109
Unidentified deposits - - - -
Advance Premiums - - - -
Insurance Service Fee Payable 307,847,343 354,895,063 307,847,343 354,895,063
Lease Liability - 65,323,689 - 65,323,689
Deferred Reinsurance Commission Income - - - -
Deferred Income - - - -
Others - - - -
i. Claim Payable 266,983,348 210,598,433 266,983,348 210,598,433
ii. Payable to Forfeited Policy 1,375,964 2,079,761 1,375,964 2,079,761
Iilsgae;vc f‘fiﬁ&;ﬁ;ee Payable to Nepal 16,989,930 18,512,726 16,989,930 18,512,726
Iir‘l’s‘li?r‘z:’fu‘?gﬁg‘“'lsee Payable to Nepal 3,271,007 3,129,929 3,271,007 3,129,929
v. Misc Credit Account 83,600 83,100 83,600 83,100
Total 839,291,883 957,255,540 839,267,971 957,251,810

24. Other Financial Liabilities

Redeemable Preference Shares

Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares

Refundable Share Application Money

Payable to Agents 1,006,615,248| 1,118,517,559| 1,006,615,248| 1,118,517,559
Sundry Creditors 147,520,284 214,445,055 147,492,686 214,381,165
Retention and deposits 69,218,626 102,376,744 69,218,626 70,285,814
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Particulars

Short-term employee benefits payable

Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

i) Salary Payables 139,774,029|  200331,679|  139,773,769| 200,281,939
ii) Bonus Payables 250,129,576| 110,328,196  250,129,576| 110,328,196
frﬁ‘v)effﬁﬂff}‘fj‘s’fjﬁEiﬁi@ﬁgjﬁ'}lﬁﬁt‘ze“ 74,612,049  10,650978|  74486,670| 10,650,978
Audit Fees Payable 1,748,500 1,507,650 1,525,500 1,440,750
Actuarial Fees Payable - - - -
Dividend Payable 188,691,200 1404300542 188,593,205 1,404,300,542
Others (To be specified) 6,504,032 2,081,185 - -
Total 1,884,813,634| 3,164,539,588| 1,877,835280| 3,130,186,943

Payable within 12 months

Group Insurance Company

Particulars
Redeemable Preference Shares - - - -
Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares - - - -
Refundable Share Application Money - - - -
Payable to Agents 1,006,615,248 1,118,517,559 1,006,615,248|  1,118,517,559
Sundry Creditors 147,520,284 214,445,055 147,492,686 214,381,165
Retention and deposits - - - -
Short-term employee benefits payable - - - -
i) Salary Payables 139,774,029 200,331,679 139,773,769 200,281,939
ii) Bonus Payables 250,129,576 110,328,196 250,129,576 110,328,196
Ilrl:‘)]gttifn‘;r;‘fi;’g’jfl;;r;iﬁﬁgjzgl;lzég;tlze“ 74,612,049 10,650,978 74,486,670 10,650,978
Audit Fees Payable 1,748,500 1,507,650 1,525,500 1,440,750
Actuarial Fees Payable - - - -
Dividend Payable 188,691,290 1,404,300,542 188,593,205  1,404,300,542
Total 1,809,090,976 3,060,081,659 1,808,616,654 3,059,901,129
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26. Premiums Ceded

Particulars

Premium Ceded To Rein-

surers

Reinsurer's Share of

Change in Unearned Pre-
mium

Current Previous
Current Year| Previous Year Year Year Current Year| Previous Year

Premium Ceded

Endowment 202,742,195 225,871,467 202,742,195 225,871,467
Anticipated Endowment 94,919,130 91,583,408 - - 94,919,130 91,583,408
Endowment cum Whole Life 106,286,277 111,751,512 - -| 106,286,277 111,751,512
Whole Life - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term 241,098,491 19,313,110 - -| 241,098,491 19,313,110
Micro Term - - - - - -
Special Term - - - - - -
Othes( Other Term) 7,334,856 5,037,212 - - 7,334,856 5,037,212
Total 652,380,950 453,556,709 - -| 652,380,950 453,556,709

26.1. Portfolio-wise detail of Net Earned Premiumn

Gross Earned Premiums Premium Ceded Net Earned Premium

. Current Previous Previous
Current Year | Previous Year Current Year
Year Year Year

Endowment 21,652,796,496| 20,378,084,243| 202,742,195| 225,871,467|21,450,054,300 20152,212,776
Anticipated Endowment 6,683,505,148| 7,103,099,973| 94,919,130 91,583,408| 6,588,586,018( 7,011,516,565
Endowment cum Whole Life | 8,295,083,240| 7,833,846,315| 106,286,277 111,751,512 8,188,796,963| 7,722,094,803
Whole Life - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term 487,539,154 137,928,324| 241,098,491| 19,313,110 246,440,663 118,615,213
Micro Term - - - - - -
Special Term - - - - - -
Others (Other Term) 43,885,034 36,424,885 7,334,856 5,037,212 36,550,178 31,387,673
Total 37,162,809,071| 35,489,383,739| 652,380,950| 453,556,709|36,510,428,122|35,035,827,030

27. Commission Income

Reinsurance Commission Profit Commission Total Commission Income

Particulars

Current Previous Previous Current .
Current Year Previous Year
Year Year Year Year

Endowment 4,346,374 5,247,769 30,997,026 33,666,954 35,343,400 38,914,723
Anticipated Endowment 1,437,751 2,224,526 14,512,079 13,650,836 15,949,830 15,875,363
Endowment Cum Whole Life 2,309,652 4,465,358 16,249,989 16,656,965 18,559,641 21,122,323
Whole Life - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term - 7,505,850 67,631,592 2,878,689 67,631,592 10,384,538
Micro Term - - - - - -
Special Term - - - - - -
Othes( Other Term) 651,212 958,654 1,121,418 750,815 1,772,630 1,709,468
Total 8,744,988 20,402,156| 130,512,105 67,604,259 139,257,094 88,006,415

28. Other Direct Income

Other Direct Income Total Other Direct Income

Current Previous Current Previous Current
Previous Year
Year Year Year Year Year

Endowment 220,657,582| 203,665,626 220,657,582 203,665,626
Anticipated Endowment - -| 123,916,980 112,112,102 123,916,980 112,112,102
Endowment Cum Whole Life - - 84,597,377 72,823,067 84,597,377 72,823,067

Whole Life

Foreign Employment Term

83t arfifer wfereer Qowk /z0 @



Other Direct Income Total Other Direct Income
Particulars Current Previous Current Previous Current .
Previous Year
Year Year Year Year Year

Special Term - - - - - -

Micro Term

Othes( Other Term) -

- 56,690

18,336

56,690

18,336

Total -

429,228,628

388,619,131

429,228,628

388,619,131

29. Income from Investments and Loans

Particulars

Insurance Company

Previous q
Current Year Current Year | Previous Year

Interest Income from Financial Assets Designated at
Amortised Costs
i) Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial Institutions 10,853,095,355| 7,954,038,501| 10,850,161,006 7,949,929,538
ii) Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank - - - -
iii) Fixed Deposit with "B" Class Financial Institutions | 1,245,100,027| 1,185,502,607| 1,245,100,027|  1,185,502,607
iv) Fixed Deposit with "C" Class Financial Institutions - - - -
v) Debentures 381,956,865 298,402,922 381,757,492 298,402,922
Nzga]?(égifegiziﬁt;}overnment/ NRB/ Guaranteed by ) 3174111 3174111
vii) Bank Deposits other than Fixed Deposit 55,347,669 31,884,850 55,347,669 31,884,850
viii) Agent Loans 24,174,737 66,450,345 24,174,737 66,450,345
ix) Employee Loans 33,838,983 61,267,453 33,838,983 61,267,453
x) Other Interest Income (Gratuity Deposit) 13,175,026 7,978,233 13,175,026 7,978,233
Financial Assets Measured at FVTOCI - - - -
i) Interest Income on Debentures - - - -
ii) Dividend Income - - - -
iii) Other Interest Income ( to be specified) - - - -
Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL = = = =
i) Interest Income on Debentures - - - -
ii) Dividend Income 133,093,975 59,070,670 132,669,997 58,815,401
iii) Other Interest Income (to be specified) - - - -
Rental Income 42,363,484 38,063,562 42,363,484 38,063,562
Others (Miscellaneous Income) 757,285 896,541 749,696 846,341
Total 12,782,903,406| 9,706,729,796|12,779,338,117|  9,702,315,365

30. Net Gain/(Loss) on Fair Value Changes

Previous .
Current Year Year Current Year| Previous Year

Particulars

Changes in Fair Value of Financial Assets Measured at
FVTPL

i) Equity Instruments 34,115,703| (863,577,886) (790,301,798)
ii) Mutual Fund - 4,477,746 - 4,477,746
iii) Others (to be specified) - - - -

Changes in Fair Value on Investment Properties = = = o

Changes in Fair Value on Hedged Items in Fair Value
Hedges

Changes in Fair Value on Hedging Instruments in Fair
Value Hedges

Other (to be Specified) - - - -
Total 34,115,703| (859,100,140) (785,824,051)
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Fair value gain/ (loss) on the financial assets are recognized at fair value and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) prospectively from the fiscal year 2079.80.

31. Net Realised Gains/(Losses)

Particulars Previ
revious .
Current Year Year Current Year | Previous Year

Realised Gain/(Losses) on Derecognition of Financial
Assets Measured at FVTPL

i) Equity Instruments (213,071,424)| 10,634,931.86|  (196,933,714) 9,118,622.39
ii) Mutual Fund - - - -

iii) Debentures = = - -
iv) Others (to be specified) - - - -

Realised Gain/(Losses) on Derecognition of Financial
Assets at Amortised Costs

i) Debentures - - - -
ii) Bonds - - - -
iii) Others (to be specified) - - - -
Total (213,071,423.75)| 10,634,931.86|(196,933,714.43) 9,118,622.39

32. Other Income

Group Insurance Company
Particulars Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Unwinding of discount on Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

i) Employee Loan - - - -

ii) Bonds - - - -
iii) Others (to be Specified) = - - -

Foreign Exchange Income - - - -

Interest Income from Finance Lease = - - -

Amortization of Deferred Income - - - -

Profit from disposal of Property and Equipment 85,800 85,800 -
Amortization of Deferred Income 35,874,496 -| 35,874,496 -
Stamp Income = = - -
Others (Income from DP and portfolio management service) 4,132,756 13,791,964 - -
Total 40,093,051 13,791,964| 35,960,296 -

33. Gross Benefits, Claims Paid and Claims Ceded

Sty Benelgtisdand e Claims Ceded Net Claims Paid

Particulars
Current Year Previous Current Previous Current Year Previous
Year Year Year Year
Endowment 7,420,072,675| 8,225,701,532| 87,899,095 98,916,004 7,332,173,580| 8,126,785,528
Anticipated Endowment 6,582,310,969| 4,931,080,884| 26,120,590 70,064,150( 6,556,190,379| 4,861,016,734
Endowment cum Whole Life | 1,502,998,296| 999,271,652 50,810,739 44,003,148| 1,452,187,557| 955,268,504
Whole Life - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term 182,541,065 240,935,560 97,293,691 46,369,863 85,247,374 194,565,697
Micro Term - - - - - -
Special Term - - - - - -
Others (Other Term) 3,330,000 7,578,342 166,000 360,000 3,164,000 7,218,342
Total 15,691,253,006(14,404,567,970| 262,290,116| 259,713,165|15,428,962,890| 14,144,854,805
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36. Service Fees

Reinsurer's Share of
Service Fees

Previous Current Previous Previous
Current Year Current Year
Year Year Year Year

Net Service Fees

Service Fees

Particulars

Endowment 178,658,780 203,780,842 1,527,677 2,217,392  177,131,103| 201,563,450
Anticipated Endowment 56,331,144 71,031,000 715,222 899,079 55,615,921 70,131,921
Endowment Cum Whole Life 68,683,288 78,338,463 800,875 1,097,070 67,882,413 77,241,393
Whole Life - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term 3,766,596 1,379,283 1,816,694 189,598 1,949,902 1,189,685
Micro Term - - - - - -
Special Term - - - - - -
Othes( Other Term) 398,160 364,249 55,269 49,451 342,892 314,798
Total 307,837,968 354,893,837 4,915,737 4,452,590 302,922,232 350,441,247

Note: Service fees shall be calculated on the basis of Gross Written Premiums as Per Note 25.1.

37. Other Direct Expenses

Reinsurance Commission . Total Other Direct
Other Direct Expenses
Expenses Expenses

Particulars

Previous Current Previous Previous
Current Year Current Year
Year Year Year Year

Endowment 801,574 1,431,905 801,574 1,431,905
Anticipated Endowment - - 74,149 125,703 74,149 125,703
Endowment Cum Whole Life - - 404,527 843,649 404,527 843,649
Whole Life - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term - - 1,315,817 103,446 1,315,817 103,446
Micro Term - - - - - -
Special Term - - - - - -
Othes( Other Term) - - 67,263 69,727 67,263 69,727
Total - - 2,663,330 2,574,430 2,663,330 2,574,430

38. Employee Benefits Expenses

. Group Insurance Company
Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Salaries 494,029,316 451,277,583 487,180,889 446,319,158
Allowances 28,122,335 27,783,571 27,723,885 27,783,571
Festival Allowances 39,971,014 30,872,034 39,971,014 30,688,534
Defined Benefit Plans - - - -

i) Gratuity 82,856,048 59,881,637 82,856,048 59,881,637
ii) Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Defined Contribution Plans - - - -
i) Provident Fund/ Social Security Fund 28,965,127 25,440,457 28,965,127 25,440,457
ii) Others ( to be specified) - - - -
Leave Encashments 42,485,321 45,616,669 42,248,232 45,616,669
Termination Benefits - - - -
Training Expenses 14,414,975 2,412,870 14,343,790 2,376,371
Uniform Expenses - 4,828,553 4,828,553
Medical Expenses 10,075 1,182,072 10,075 1,182,072
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Particulars
Insurance Expenses 14,833,265 17,121,332 14,833,265 17,121,332
Staff Welfare - - - -
Others - - -
é‘x ‘;Z‘q‘;gizaﬁon of Deferred Employee 35,874,496 35,711,468 35,874,496 35,711,468
ii. Staff Incentives 16,099,337 12,800,301 16,099,337 12,800,301
Sub-Total 797,661,307 714,928,546 790,106,156 709,750,122
Employees Bonus 250,129,576 110,328,196 250,129,576 110,328,196
Total 1,047,790,883 825,256,742 1,040,235,732 820,078,318

39. Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

Particulars

Group

Insurance Company

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Amortization of Goodwill & Intangible

Assets (Refer Note. 4) 2,996,385 1,140,934 2,882,808 1,140,934
Depreciation on Property and Equip- 66,985,860 53,130,726 63,517,100 50,119,489
ment (Refer Note.5)

Depreciation on Investment Properties 4,258,042 3,920,980 4,258,042 3,920,980
(Refer Note. 6)

Total 74,240,286 58,192,640 70,657,950 55,181,403

* Depreciation related to Right-of-Use assets for FY 78/79 is NPR 17,702,471 is re-grouped within Property and

Equipement

40. Impairment Losses

Particulars

Impairment Losses on Property and
Equiment, Investment Properties,
Goodwill & Intangible Assets

Group

Insurance Company

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

i) Property and Equipment

ii) Investment properties

iii) Goodwill & Intangible Assets

Impairment Losses on Financial Assets

i) Investments

ii) Loans

5,589,331

112,642,036

5,589,331 112,642,036

iii) Other Financial Assets

iv) Cash and Cash Equivalents

(43,121,057)

63,609,246

(43,121,057) 63,669,246

v) Others ( Other Assets)

Impairment Losses on Other Assets

i) Reinsurance Assets

ii) Insurance Receivables

iii) Lease Receivables

iv) Others (to be Specified)

Total

(37,531,726)

176,311,282

(37,531,726) 176,311,282
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41. Other Operating Expenses

.
Particulars

Rent Expenses 61,173,184 86,124,162 61,173,184 86,124,162
Electricity and Water 8,685,025 7,958,897 8,555,320 7,662,405
Repair & Maintenance - - - -
i) Building 355,146 787,435 355,146 787,435
ii) Vehicle 313,723 1,135,221 223,902 1,135,221
iii) Office Equipments 71,746 106,027 71,746 26,866
iv) Others - - - -
i. Software 1,461,504 6,935,405 1,461,504 6,935,405
ii. Furniture 2,878,537 4,757,144 2,878,537 4,757,144
Telephone & Communication 8,317,523 31,217,579 8,117,360 31,217,579
Printing & Stationary 25,633,456 30,450,373 25,585,146 30,265,165
Office Consumable Expenses 3,241,506 8,028,342 3,096,153 7,766,328
Travelling Expenses - - - -
i) Domestic 12,421,975 12,324,186 12,129,943 12,324,186
ii) Foreign - - - -
Transportation Expenses - - - -
Agents Training 21,709,760 17,008,854 21,709,760 17,008,854
Agents Others 1,051,246,815 1,313,128,939 1,051,246,815 1,313,128,939
Insurance Premium 3,872,510 3,909,377 3,850,253 3,907,820
Security and Outsourcing Expenses 11,638,867 2,443,655 11,425,599 2,443,655
Legal and Consulting Expenses 4,197,717 3,411,216 4,197,717 3,311,216
Newspapers, Books and Periodicals 164,266 193,337 164,266 189,937
Advertisement & Promotion Expenses 57,270,510 56,509,619 57,235,976 56,044,507
Business Promotion 29,681,743 18,847,395 29,389,386 18,847,395
Guest Entertainment 2,746,232 1,418,652 2,746,232 1,418,652
Gift and Donations 120,000 1,530,806 120,000 1,430,806
Board Meeting Fees and Expenses - 24,934 - -
i) Meeting Allowances 4,130,000 4,549,000 3,670,000 3,919,000
ii) Other Allowances 1,231,374 447,663 1,111,374 315,663
Other Committee/ Sub-committee ) ) ) )
Expenses

i) Meeting Allowances 4,906,000 4,332,000 4,906,000 4,332,000
ii) Other Allowances - - - -
General Meeting Expenses 870,444 1,011,992 795,347 883,340
Actuarial Service Fee 2,965,362 4,828,014 2,965,362 4,828,014
Other Actuarial Expenses - - - -
Audit Related Expenses - - - -
i) Statutory Audit 1,271,250 1,197,800 1,158,250 1,130,000
ii) Tax Audit - - - -
iii) Long Form Audit Report -

iv) Other Fees 303,400 165,706 - 165,706
v) Internal Audit 1,582,000 1,243,000 1,469,000 1,243,000
vi) Others (IS Audit) 339,000 339,000 339,000 339,000
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Particulars

Bank Charges 1,127,638 1,000,270 1,120,772 837,715
Fee and Charges 7,490,371 8,754,885 7,490,371 8,275,961
Postage Charges 4,305,748 4,750,581 4,305,748 4,750,581
Foreign Exchange Losses 687 13,039 687 13,039
Others - - - -
i. Fuel 16,464,002 13,457,313 16,266,896 13,308,180
ii. Staff Entertainment and conference 15,173,119 16,618,560 15,159,775 16,618,560
iii. FE-Pool Expenses - 5,235,055 - 5,235,055
iv. Miscellaneous 13,426,661 14,420,516 12,189,518 14,136,576
Merchant Banking Expenses: = = = =
Depository Participant Expense 147,614 31,288 - -
Commission Expenses - 1,703,375 - -
SEBON Commission - 847,690 - -
Service Charge-SEBON 102,514 515,686 = =
BO-Maintenance Cost 21,065 80,960 - -
Sub-Total 1,383,059,993 1,693,794,949 1,378,682,043 1,687,065,068
Medical examination fee 8,566,363 11,938,587 8,566,363 11,938,587
Fines, interest, Late Fees and Penalties

Total 1,391,626,356 1,705,733,536 1,387,248,406 1,699,003,655

42. Finance Cost

Particulars

Unwinding of discount on Provisions

Group

Insurance Company

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on Financial
Liabilities at Amortised Costs

Interest Expenses - Bonds

Interest Expenses - Debentures 614,868 - 614,868 -
Interest Expenses - Term Loans - - - -
Interest Expenses - Leases 15,048,066 14,468,238 14,501,688 14,161,977
Interest Expenses - Overdraft Loans - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - = = -
Total 15,662,934 14,468,238 15,116,556 14,161,977

43. Income Tax Expense

a. Income Tax Expense

Current Year| Previous Year Current Year | Previous Year

Current Tax

i) Income Tax Expenses for the Year 2,552,194,744 1,537,570,372 2,552,117,530 1,535,700,739

ii) Income Tax Relating to Prior Periods 31,070,972 14,558,580 31,070,972 13,352,734

iii) Income Tax Relating to Prior Periods- Share- | 1,026,701,030 | 1,026,701,030
holders

Deferred Tax For The Year - - - -

i) (zf;‘s’atmg and reversal of temporary differ- 81,569,468  (241,324,162) 88,383,367|  (231,746,008)
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Group Insurance Company
Current Year| Previous Year Current Year | Previous Year

Particulars

ii) Changes in tax rate

iii) Recognition of previously unrecognised tax
losses

iv) Write-down or reversal - - - -
v) Others ( to be Specified) = = - -
2,664,835,185 2,337,505,820 2,671,571,869|  2,344,008,495

Income Tax Expense

b. Reconciliation of Taxable Profit & the Accounting Profit

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Accounting Profit Before Tax 4,682,795,779 2,498,233,221
Applicable Tax Rate 25% 25%
Tax at the applicable rate on Accounting Profit 1,170,698,945 624,558,305
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose

i) Net Claims Benefits 3,857,240,723 3,536,213,701
ii) Change in Insurance Contract Liabilities 6,668,015,598 5,897,932,822
Less: Tax effect on exempt income and additional deduction

i) Premium Income (9,127,607,030) (8,758,956,757)
iii) Dividend Income (33,167,499) (14,527,753)
Less: Adjustments to Current Tax for Prior Periods

Add/ (Less): Others(to be Specified)

i) Tax effect of expenses that ar not deductible for tax purpose (40,231,998) 248,863,746
Income Tax Expense 2,494 948,738 1,534,084,063
Effective Tax Rate 53% 61%

OR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Accounting Profit Before Tax

Income Tax Expense

Average Effective Tax Rate

Less: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose

Add: Tax effect on exempt income and additional deduction

Add: Adjustments to Current Tax for Prior Periods

Add/ (Less): Others( to be Specified)

Applicable Tax Rate
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44. Employee Retirement Benefits

a) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Contribution Plans

For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023 ) the company has recognised an amount of NRs.
28,916,285 as an expenses under the defined contribution plans in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

b) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Benefit Plans

For Defined Benefit Plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit

Method, with Actuarial Valuations being carried out.

¢) Total Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Current service cost

68,057,118

45,957,417

Past service cost

Net interest cost (a-b)

14,798,930

13,924,220

a. Interest expense on defined benefit obligation
(DBO)

b. Interest (income) on plan assets

Defined benefit cost included in Statement of
Profit or Loss

82,856,048

59,881,637

d) Remeasurement effects recognised in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Particulars

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

a. Actuatial (gain)/ loss due to financial assumption (44,640,678) 43357104

changes in DBO

b. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to experience on DBO - - -
1cr‘;lieturn on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount 890,484 (235,146) )
Total actuarial (gain)/ loss included in OCI (43,750,194) 43,121,958 -

e) Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Cost recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 82,856,048 59,881,637
Remeasurements effects recognised in OCI (43,750,194) 43,121,958 -
Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income 39,105,854 103,003,595 -

f) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars

}l?ee:;ned benefit obligation as at the beginning of the 360,805,500| 270,841,344

Service cost 72,236,697 45,957,417 -
Interest cost 28,864,440 21,667,308 -
Benefit payments from plan assets (94,606,510) (21,017,673) -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - financial assumptions (42,755,654) - -
Actuarial (gain)/ Loss - experience (1,885,024) 43,357,104 -
Defined Benefit Obligation as at Year End 322,659,449 360,805,500 -
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8) Change in Fair Value Of Plan Assets

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars

Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year 175,818,875 96,788,604
Interest Income 14,065,510 7,743,088
Expected return on plan assets - -
Employer contributions - 71,052,037
Participant contributions - -
Benefit payments from plan assets - -
Transfer in/ transfer out - -
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets (890,484) 235,146
Fair value of Plan Assets as at Year End 188,993,901 175,818,875

h) Net Defined Benefit Asset/(Liability)

Particulars

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Current Year| Previous Year| Current Year| Previous Year

Defined Benefit Obligation 322,659,449 360,805,500
Fair Value of Plan Assets 188,993,901 175,818,875
Liablllfy/ (Asee.t) Recognised in Statement of 133,665,548 184,986,625
Financial Position

i) Expected Company Contributions for the Next Year

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars

Expected company contributions for the next year

Current Year| Previous Year| Current Year| Previous Year

87,035,627

7) Reconciliation of amounts in Statement of Financial Position

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Net defined benefit liability/ (asset) at prior year end 184,986,625 174,052,740
E(eiisned benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or 82,856,048 59,881,637
Total remeasurements included in OCI (43,750,194) 43,121,958
Acquisition/ divestment (94,606,510) (21,017,673)
Employer contributions -l (71,052,037)
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) 129,485,969 184,986,625

k) Reconciliation of Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars

Current Year| Previous Year| Current Year| Previous Year

Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss, beginning of period 43,121,958 43,357,104
Total remeasurements included in OCI (86,872,152) (235,146)
Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss (43,750,194) 43,121,958

) Current/Non - Current Liability

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars

Current Liability 133,665,548| 184,986,625
Non - Current Liability - - - -
Total 133,665,548 184,986,625 - -
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m) Expected Future Benefit Payments

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars

Within 1 year 7,858,003 10,851,663

Between 1-2 years 14,097,250 9,171,978 - -
Between 2-5 years 11,935,828 48,797,813 - -
From 6 to 10 105,921,158| 125,883,992 - -
Total 139,812,239| 194,705,446 - -

n) Plan assets

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars Current Year| Previous Year| Current Year| Previous Year
(% Invested) [ (% Invested) | (% Invested) | (% Invested)

Government Securities (Central and State) -

Corporate Bonds (including Public Sector bonds) - - - -
Mutual Funds = = - -
Deposits (Citizen Investment Trust) 189,884,385 175,818,875 - -

Cash and bank balances - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total 189,884,385 175,818,875 - -

o) Sensitivity Analysis

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars
Current Year| Previous Year| Current Year| Previous Year

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Increase
in Discount Rate

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Decrease in Discount Rate

(36,015,225)|  (40,654,135)

42,755,654 48,331,557 - -

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Increase

in Salary Escalation Rate 41,884,515 46,908,180 ) )

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%

Decrease in Salary Escalation Rate (35,982,452)|  (40,309,785) ) )

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Increase
in Attrition Rate

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Decrease in Attrition Rate

(5,561,729)  (9,087,498) - -

6,131,879 10,187,686 - -

p) Assumptions
Particulars Employee Benefit | Any O.the.r .Funded

Plan Liability
Discount Rate 9.00%
Escalation Rate (Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels) 10.00%
Attrition Rate (Employee Turnover) 3.31%
Nepali Assured
Mortality Rate During Employment Lives Mortality
Table, 2009
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45. Insurance Risk

Insurance risk includes the risk of incurring higher claims costs than expected owing to the random nature
of claims, frequency and severity and the risk of change in the legal or economic conditions of insurance
or reinsurance cover. This may result in the insurer having either received too little premium for the risks
it has agreed to underwrite and hence has not enough funds to invest and pay claims, or that claims are

in excess of those expected.

The Company seeks to minimise insurance risk through a formalised reinsurance arrangement with an
appropriate mix and spread of business between classes of business based on its overall strategy. This is
complemented by observing formalised risk management policies.

"The Company considers insurance risk to be a combination of the following components of risks:

a) Product development

b) Pricing

¢) Underwriting and
d) Claims Handling

e) Reinsurance

f) Reserving

a) Product development:

b)

The Company principally issues the following types of Life Insurance contracts:

- Endowment

- Anticipated Endowment

- Endowment Cum Whole Life
- Whole Life

- Foreign Employment Term

- Other Term

- Special Term

- Others (Other term)

"The above risk exposure is mitigated by the diversification across a large portfolio
of insurance contracts and geographical areas. The variability of risks is improved by
careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategies, which are designed
to ensure that risks are diversified in terms of type of risk and level of insured benefits.
Furthermore, strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review
of claims handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are put in
place to reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The Company further enforces a policy of actively
managing and promptly pursuing claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future
developments that can negatively impact the business."

Pricing:

The pricing of an insurance product involves the estimation of claims, operational and financing costs
and the income arising from investing the premium received. The pricing process typically comprises
collecting data on the underlying risks to be covered, determining the pricing assumptions and the
base rate, setting the final premium rate, and monitoring the review of the appropriateness of pricing.

The Company collects adequate data to validate the reasonableness of the underlying assumptions
used for pricing. The base rate represents the amount required to meet the value of anticipated benefits,
expenses, and margins for risks and profit. Data primarily relates to the company's own historical
experience and that of the industry where relevant. These may be supplemented by other internal and
external data, and could include trends observed in claims costs and expenses.

Pricing is done by modelling all identified risks, using appropriate methodologies depending on the
complexity of the risks and available data. Adequate buffers are kept in the premiums to cushion
against the risk that actual experience may turn out to be worse than expected.
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¢) Underwriting:
The Company’s underwriting process is governed by the by the internal underwriting procedures.

Some of the actions undertaken to mitigate underwriting risks are detailed below:

i) Investments are made on the training and development of underwriting and claims management

staff, including those attached to the distribution network.
ii) Application of Four-Eye principle on underwriting process.

iii) Pre-underwriting inspections are made on new business over a predetermined threshold to

evaluate risk prior to acceptance.
iv) Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed.
v) Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the
adequacy of these covers."

d) Claims handling:

The Company considers insurance claim risk to be a combination of the following components of
risks:

i) Mortality Risk - risk of loss arising due to policyholder death experience being different than

expected
if) Longevity Risk - risk of loss arising due to the annuitant living longer than expected
iii) Investment Return Risk - risk of loss arising from actual returns being different than expected
iv) Expense Risk - risk of loss arising from expense experience being different than expected
v) Policyholder Decision Risk - risk of loss arising due to policyholder experiences (lapses and
surrenders) being different than expected"
Assumptions

The assumptions that have the greatest effect on the statement of financial position and statement of profit

or loss of the Company are listed below:

S Mortality | Investment| Lapseand |Discount |Mortality|Investment| Lapseand |Discount
Return [Surrender Rate Rate Rates Return |Surrender Rate| Rate
Life 0, (o) 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0,
100% 9.97% 4.55% 6% 100% 10.37% 5.35% 6%
Insurance
Sensitivities

"The life insurance claim liabilities are sensitive to the key assumptions as mentioned in the table below.
The following analysis is performed for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions with all other
assumptions held constant, showing the impact on gross and net liabilities, profit before tax and profit
after tax. The correlation of assumptions will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate claims

liabilities, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in assumptions, assumptions had to be changed

Current Year Previous Year

on an individual basis."

Particulars Changes. in Linarersie) Increase/ I Eiens) Increase/
Assumptions | (Decrease) (Decrease) on (Decrease) (Decrease) on
GO0 Net Liabilities (VT Net Liabilities
Liabilities Liabilities
Mortality Rate "+"50% 1,878,321,263
Longevity +10%
Discount Rate +1% (16,858,046,368)
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Current Year Previous Year

. Changes in Increase/ Increase/
Particulars > Increase/ Increase/
Assumptions (PETE) (Decrease) on (Egee) (Decrease) on
on Gross Net Liabilities | °%.5%5 | Net Liabilities
Liabilities Liabilities
Mortality Rate -50% (2,465,438,902)
Longevity -10%
Discount Rate 1% 19,622,138,973

e) Reinsurance

The Company purchases reinsurance as part of its risks mitigation programme. Premium ceded to
the reinsurers is in accordance with the terms of the programmes already agreed based on the risks
written by the insurance companies. Recoveries from reinsurers on claims are based on the cession
made in respect of each risk and is estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims
provisions made for the loss. Although we mitigate our exposures through prudent reinsurance
arrangements, the obligation to meet claims emanating from policy holders rests with the Company.
Default of reinsurers does not negate this obligation and in that respect the Company carries a credit
risk up to the extent ceded to each reinsurer.

f) Reserving

Insurance Contract Liabilities are created to cover this risk based on the actuarial valuation report.

The table below sets out the concentration of risk associated with above mentioned products. Risk as
at year end has been measured as insurance contract liabilities and disclosed as below:

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars Gross Gross

Insurance Reinsurance Net Insurance Reinsurance Net
Liabilities Assets Liabilities Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Endowment 96,735,217,944 -l 96,735,217,944| 79,333,789,772 -| 79,333,789,772
Finliaipeiied 26,999,650,438 | 26,999,650,438 25,480,330,099 -| 25,480,330,099
Endowment
Endowment
Cum Whole 38,958,561,326 -| 38,958,561,326| 31,095,072,779 -| 31,095,072,779
Life
Whole Life - - - - - -
Foreign
Employment 76,093,597 - 76,093,597 206,719,104 - 206,719,104
Term
Other Term - - - 15,586,908 - 15,586,908
Special Term - - - - - -
Others (Other 34,037,750 ) ) ) ) )
Term)
Total 162,769,523,305 -| 162,769,523,305| 136,131,498,662 -1136,131,498,662

46. Fair Value Measurements

(i) Financial Instruments by Category & Hierarchy

"This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the Fair Values of the
Financial Instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at Amortised
Cost and for which Fair Values are disclosed in the Financial Statements.
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To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining Fair Value, the
Company has classified its financial instruments into Three Levels prescribed as per applicable NFRS."

oo e
Particulars - ‘
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised FVTPL O morticed
Cost Cost

Investments

i) Investment in Equity
Instruments

Investment in Equity

(Quoted) 1 - | 6,345,180,093 - | 5,700,430,309 -

Investment in Equity

(Unquoted) 3 - 4,780,000

1,195,000 =

ii) Investment in Mutual
Funds

—_
'

205,228,307 181,948,360 -

iii) Investment in
Preference Shares of
Bank and Financial
Institutions

iv) Investment in

Debentures 3 - - 4,559,723,677 - - 3,452,160,669

v) Investment in Bonds
(Nepal Government/
NRB/ Guaranteed by
Nepal Government)

vi) Fixed Deposits 3 - ~ | 127.668.100.000 - - | 105,988,100,000

vii) Others (to be specified) - = - -

Loans 3 - -| 31,117,808,713 - -| 25,463,368,952
Other Financial Assets 3 - - 4,904,023,506 - - 3,856,221,137
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 - - 4,637,140,696 - - 4,369,735,487
6,555,188,400 | 172,886,796,593 | 5,883,573,669 - | 143,129,586,244

Total Financial Assets

Borrowings - - - - -

Other Financial Liabilities 8 - - 1,884,813,634 - - 1,911,188,611

Total Financial Liabilities - - 1,884,813,634 - - 1,911,188,611

Level 1: Level 1 Hierarchy includes Financial Instruments measured using Quoted Prices.

Level 2: Fair Value of Financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques which maximises the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible
on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to determine Fair Value of an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in Level 3.

There is no transfer of Financial Instruments between different levels as mentioned above during the year.
(ii) (ii) Valuation Technique Used to Determine Fair Value

a) Use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

b) Fair Value of remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis
(iii) Valuation Process

The finance and accounts department of the Company performs the valuation of financial assets and
liabilities required for financial reporting purposes. Discussion on valuation processes and results are
held at least once in a year.
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The main level 3 inputs are derived and evaluated as follows:

a) Discount rate is arrived at considering the internal and external factors.

b) Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the
discounting is material

(iv) Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost

Current Year Previous Year

Farticulars Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

Investments

i) Investment in Preference Shares of
Bank and Financial Institutions

ii) Investment in Debentures 4,559,723,677 4,559,723,677 3,452,160,669 3,452,160,669
iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal

Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed - = - -
by Nepal Government)

iv) Fixed Deposit 127,668,100,000 | 127,668,100,000 | 105,988,100,000 | 105,988,100,000

v) Others (to be Specified) -

Loans - - - -

i) Loan to Associates = - -

ii) Loan to Employees - - 374,405,052 374,405,052
iii) Loan to Agent - - 486,497,201 339,829,794
iv) Loan to Policyholders - -| 24,769,750,182 | 24,769,750,182

v) Others (to be Specified) - = - -

Other Financial Assets - - - -

Total Financial Assets at Amortised
Cost

Borrowings
i) Bonds - - - -

ii) Debentures - - - -

132,227,823,677 | 132,227,823,677 | 135,070,913,103 | 134,924,245,696

iii) Term Loans - Bank and Financial
Institution

iv) Bank Overdrafts - - - -
v) Others (to be Specified) - = - -
Other Financial Liabilities - - 1,911,188,611 1,911,188,611

Total Financial Liabilities at
Amortised Cost

- - 1,911,188,611 1,911,188,611

The fair values of the above financial instruments measured at amortised cost are calculated based on
cash flows discounted using current discount rate.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values
due to their short-term nature.

47. Financial Risk Management
The Company's activities expose it to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk & Market Risk.
i) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss as a result of the default or failure of third parties to meet their
payment obligations to the Company. Thus, for an insurance contract, credit risk includes the risk that
an insurer incurs a financial loss because a reinsurer defaults on its obligations under the reinsurance
contract.
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The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company’s exposure to credit
risk:

a) Company has credit risk policy which sets out the assessment and determination of what
constitutes credit risk for the Company. Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures
and breaches are reported to the Company’s risk committee. The policy is regularly reviewed for
pertinence and for changes in the risk environment.

b) Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration of
risk is avoided by entering into agreement with more than one party. At each reporting date,
management performs an assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the
reinsurance purchase strategy, ascertaining suitable allowance for impairment.

¢) The company deals with only creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashadh End, 2080.

Gross Expected Expected Carrying
Particulars Asset Group Carrying probability Credit Amount After
Amount of Default Losses Provision
Loan to 495,697,560 - -| 495,697,560
Employees
e, Loss allowance
Credit Risk has not measured at 12 | Loan to Agent 316,433,645 47.50% | 150310074 | 166121371
significantly increased since h d oLy
initial recognition months expecte Loan t
credit losses oan to 30,455,989,783 - - | 30,455,989,783
Policyholders

Credit Risk has significantly
increased and not credit Loss allowance _ R . _ _
impaired measured at life-

time expected
Credit Risk has significantly credit losses

increased and credit impaired

Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashadh End, 2079.

Gross Expected Expected Carrying
Particulars Asset Group Carrying probability Credit Amount After
Amount of Default Losses Provision
Loan to 374,405,052 0.00% 374,405,052
Employees
. Loss allowance
Credit Risk has not Loan to Agent 486,497,201 30.15% | 146,667,407 339,829,794
L . . measured at 12
significantly increased since h d
initial recognition T bonpected | Loan to 24,769,750,182 0.00% 24,769,750,182
credit losses Policyholders 7 7 7 . o , , ,

Credit Risk has significantly
increased and not credit
impaired

Loss allowance
measured at life-
time expected
credit losses

Credit Risk has significantly
increased and credit
impaired

Reconciliation of Loss Allowance Provision

Measured at 12
Particulars months expected Credit Risk has Credit Risk has
credit losses significantly increased significantly increased
- and not credit impaired and credit impaired

Loss Allowance on Ashadh End, 2079 146,667,407 - -

Changes in loss allowances 3,644,867 - =
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Measured at 12

Particulars months expected Credit Risk has Credit Risk has
credit losses significantly increased significantly increased
and not credit impaired and credit impaired
Write-offs - - -
Recoveries - - -
Loss Allowance on Ashadh End, 2080 150,312,274 - -

ii) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. In respect of
catastrophic events there is also a liquidity risk associated with the timing differences between gross
cash out-flows and expected reinsurance recoveries.

Maturity of Financial Liabilities:

The table below summarises the Company's Financial Liabilities into Relevant Maturity Groupings
based on their Contractual Maturities for all Financial Liabilities.

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
1 Year to5 | More than 1 Yearto5 | More than
Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities 1,720,924,277 | 190,264,334

Total Financial Liabilities - - 1,720,924,277 | 190,264,334 -

iii) Market Risk

al) Foreign Currency Risk Exposure

"Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to experience volatility in the value of its
assets, liabilities and solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value
between the currencies of its assets and liabilities and its reporting currency. The Company does
not maintain foreign currency denominated assets in its investment portfolios and as such is not
exposed to foreign exchange risk related to investments.

The Company has no significant concentration of currency risk. The amount with reinsurer is
settled in Nepali Rupee."

Alternative note for Foreign Currency Risk Exposure (where there is Foreign Currency Risk)

Operation of the Company has exposed it to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency
transactions, with respect to the USD and Currency A. The risk is measured through a forecast
of highly probable foreign currency cash flows. The objective of the hedges is to minimise the
volatility of the NPR cash flows of highly probable forecast transactions.

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in
NPR, are as follows:

Particulars

I

Investments

Loans

Insurance Receivables

Other Financial Assets

Less: Derivative Assets
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Particulars

Currency
A

Currency
A

i) Foreign exchange forward contracts - Sell
Foreign Currency

ii) Foreign exchange option contracts - Sell
Foreign Currency

Net Exposure to Foreign Currency Risk/ (Assets) - - - -

Insurance Payables
Other Financial Liabilities

Less: Derivative Liabilities

i) Foreign exchange forward contracts - Buy
Foreign Currency

ii) Foreign exchange option contracts - Buy
Foreign Currency

Net Exposure to Foreign Currency Risk/
(Liabilities)

a2) Foreign Currency Risk - Sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign
currency denominated financial instruments and the impact on the other components of equity
arising from foreign forward exchange contracts, foreign exchange option contracts designated as
cash flow hedges.

Impact on profit after tax Impact on Other.
component of equity

Particulars

USD sensitivity

Current
Year

Currency

A

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Currency

A

Previous
Year

NPR/ USD - Increases by 10% *
NPR/ USD - Decreases by 10% *

Currency A sensitivity
NPR/ USD - Increases by 10% *
NPR/ USD - Decreases by 10% *

* Holding all other variable constant

b1) Interest Rate Risk
"Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The major interest rate risk that the Company is exposed to is the discount rate for determining

insurance liabilities."

b2) Interest Rate Sensitivity
Profit or Loss is sensitive to changes in Interest Rate for Borrowings. A change in Market Interest
Level by 1% which is reasonably possible based on Management's Assessment would have the
following effect on the Profit After Tax.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Interest Rate - Increase By 1%*

Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%*

* Holding all other Variable Constant
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c1) Equity Price Risk
"Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in equity prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrument or its issuer, or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company has invested in equity securities and the exposure is equity securities price risk
from investments held by the Company and classified in the statement of financial position as fair
value through OCL"

b2) Sensitivity
The table below summarises the impact of increase/ decrease of the index in the Company’s equity
and impact on OCI for the period. The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index
had increased/ decreased by 1% with all other variables held constant, and that all the Company's
equity instruments moved in line with the index.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Interest Rate - Increase By 1%*

Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%*

* Other components of equity would increase/decrease as a result of gains/ (losses) on equity securities classified as fair
value through other comprehensive income.

48. Operational Risk

Operational Risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss, or damaged reputation resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems or external events. When controls fail to perform,
operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to
financial loss. The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous
control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage
the risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access controls, authorisation and reconciliation
procedures, staff education and assessment processes, including the use of internal audit. Business risks
such as changes in environment, technology and the industry are monitored through the Company’s
strategic planning and budgeting process.

49, Climate Risk

Climate risk refers to the potential adverse impacts and consequences of climate change on various aspects
of human society, ecosystems, and economic activities.

"The company acknowledges the importance of tackling climate change and its potential effects on our
operations, stakeholders, and the environment. In accordance with the Climate Risk Related Directive,
2078, issued by Nepal Insurance Authority (NIA), we are dedicated to assessing and handling climate-
related risks to protect our financial interests and promote sustainable development.

1. The company is currently developing a comprehensive Climate Change Risk Management Policy in
line with this directive, overseen by our dedicated risk management department. The inception of
this policy was driven by the guidance of the Investment and Risk Management Committee and is
awaiting the board's final approval.

2. Assessment of the role of the designated individual overseeing climate risk: Within our organization,
a specialized risk management unit is dedicated to overseeing activities and disclosures related to
climate risk. This department functions under the umbrella of Investment and Risk Management,
facilitating discussions and resolutions on climate-related issues.

3. During the fiscal year 2079-2080 the company is committed to advancing towards a greener and more
resilient Nepal for future generations. This commitment involves activities like:

i) Tree plantation through various branches and sub branches during various occasions.
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ii) Reduction of paper consumption through the use of electronic and digital medium as well as
automation.

iii) Investing in renewable energy projects and promoting environmental conservation.
iv) Emphasis on the use of Electric Vehicles.

v) Active participation on the training provided by NIA for knowledge enhancement and shaping for
the future.

In the future, we shall conduct comprehensive assessments to understand how climate-related risks and
opportunities may affect our financial performance in key areas such as new business, product pricing,
valuation, expenses, and loss ratio. Acknowledging the unpredictable nature of climate change, we
integrate rigorous scenario analysis, simulations, and stress testing techniques to anticipate and manage
potential risks proactively. To gauge our exposure to climate change risks, we shall utilize various
indicators, matrices and risks, including;:

* Mortality and longevity risks: Climate change affects mortality rates through extreme weather events
and changes in disease patterns, impacting claims frequency.

* Investment risks: Climate-related events can risk investments and affect profitability in fossil fuel
industries.

* Change in Technical Provisions: Anticipated changes in assumptions that could significantly affect
our current technical provisions.

* Reputational risks: Perception of inadequate response to climate change can lead to customer backlash
and loss of trust.

* Operational risks: Disruptions from climate events can increase costs, reduce revenue, and require

adjustments to underwriting practices."

50. Capital Management

The Company's objectives when managing Capital are to:

a) Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern so that they can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

b) Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends

paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

* Regulatory minimum paid up capital
Life insurance companies were required by the Directive of Nepal Insurance Authority to attain a

stipulated minimum paid up capital of NPR 5 billion by Mid-July 2022. As on the reporting date, the
company's paid up capital is NPR 8.20 Billion

¢ Dividend

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

(i) Dividends recognised

Since the year ended the directors have recommended the payment of a
final dividend of NPR 15.7895 /- per fully paid equity share (Ashadh 31,
2078 - Cash Dividend NPR 15.7895). This proposed dividend is subject
to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting

1,295,994,719

- 1,295,994,719

(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period

In addition to the above dividends, since the year ended the directors
have recommended the payment of a final dividend of NPR 21.05/- per
fully paid equity share (Ashadh 31, 2080 - NPR 8,207,966,554 /-). This 1,727,992,959
proposed dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in the
ensuing annual general meeting.

1,727,992,959 1,295,994,719
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51. Earnings Per Share

Profit For the Year used for Calculating Basic
Earning per Share

2,027,574,817

34,966,047

2,011,223,910

Previous Previous
Current Year Current Year
Year Year

97,242,559

Add: Interest saving on Convertible Bonds

Profit For the Year used for Calculating Diluted
Earning per Share

2,027,574,817

34,966,047

2,011,223,910

97,242,559

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares
Outstanding During the Year For Basic Earning
per Share

82,079,666

82,079,666

82,079,666

82,079,666

Adjustments for calculation of Diluted Earning
per Share:

i) Dilutive Shares

ii) Options

iif) Convertible Bonds

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares
Outstanding During the Year for Diluted
Earning Per Share

82,079,666

82,079,666

82,079,666

82,079,666

Nominal Value of Equity Shares

100

100

100

100

Basic Earnings Per Share

24.70

0.43

24.50

1.18

Diluted Earnings Per Share

24.70

0.43

24.50

1.18

Proposed Bonus Share

Restated Basic Earning Per Share

24.70

0.43

24.50

1.18

Restated Diluted Earning Per Share

52. Operating Segment

Segment information is presented in respect of the Company's business segments. Management of the

Company has identified portfolio as business segment and the Company's internal reporting structure is

also based on portfolio. Performance is measured based on segment profit as management believes that

it is most relevant in evaluating the results of segment relative to other entities that operate within these

industries.

Segment asset is disclosed below based on total of all asset for each business segment.

"The Company operates predominantly in Nepal and accordingly, the Management of the Company is of the

viewthatthefinancialinformationby geographicalsegmentsofthe Company’soperationisnotnecessary tobe

presented."
Business Segments of the Company’s are:

i) Endowment

ii) Anticipated Endowment

iif) Endowment Cum Whole Life
iv) Whole Life

v) Foreign Employment Term
vi) Micro Term

vii) Special Term

viii) Othes (Other Term)

@ 283t arfifer uferemar Qoo /Z0



el it ¢ |15 B L T | s = R T

07S'S60' 1L - 968°6¢8 01€°£E1°0T 196'805¥S1 PIE'0T9'06T | 6LL'C66'P1F sosuadxy syyouog sokordug
TET'TL6'T0€ - T68°THe 206'676'1 eI¥'T88'L9 126'S19'S QOT'TEL LY 99, IAISG
9899/0'601¢ | - 985°668'¢ 8TSF61T GLL'€96'768 6IT'TEY'STH | 6L9°TEV6LLT sosuadxy uorssIuIo))
€8C°STO'TOL'Th | - IF8P19°1C (e€1'8LE"SH) SOT'9L9°STE’6 | STL'OTS'SLO'S | TSL'T09°EELFT pa1IndU] SWe[) pue sjgoudyg PN
} } } } ) } ) SIDINSULIY
0} papaD) sanIqer] penuo)) ut a8uey))
£6£'790°TL9'9C | - I#8'05H'8T (zos'szo’0en) LPS'88Y'€98'L | 6€€°0TE61S'T | TLL'STH TOV'LL SoRI[Iqer] }oenUoD) Ul A8uey) SS01D)
(9r1'o6c'2c90) |- (000"991) (169'¢62'L6) (6€£°018°09) (065°0c1'92) | (G60°668°£8) papaD swre[)
900°€ST'169°ST | - 000°0€€'¢ Q90'THS"T81L 967'866'C0S'T | 696°01€°T8S9 | SL9TLO'OTH L pred SWIe[) pue s}jauag ssoIn)
Sasuadxy
60,'969°0F8°TS | - ¥86°LEL'TH 680°79¢ SE €TI'08°0T8IL | LLL'0IS8'66L'6 | 96€'€86°CTH0E awoou] [eyuswidag [ejo L
- - - - - - awodUy IB_yI0
- - - - - - - (sassoT) /suren) pasifeay 19N
= = = = = = = sadueyD) anfeA Ireq uo (Sso ) /ures) PN
LLT'ISSP8LIL | - 98%'8G¢ Y 7£8'68C°0F 9CH'RTH'TER’T | 9SG HT0IT'T | 988°6VL 16T L SUBOT PUE SJUSUIISIAU] WO UIOdU]
889'1€6'926'C | - - - 90£°02%°969 $GL'Te’a68 | STT'SLL'STH'T | SIOPIOYADI[OJ O} UROT UO SWIODU] JS2IU]
879'8CC6TF - 06999 - LLE' L6578 086'9L6'CCL | T8E'£S9'0TT awoou] 32311 YO
¥60°L5T'6€T - 0£9°TLLT T66°T€9'29 1#9'665°S1 0£8°676'ST 00%'che’se SWODU] UOISSIUILIOD)
TTU'STH0IS9¢ | - 8LT'0SS'9¢ £99°0¥%°9%¢ £96°96L°881'8 | 8109858859 | 00€'FS0°0SH IT swnpuaig paureq PN
= = = = = = = ONUIAIY uﬂmawmmuumﬁﬂ
(0s6'08¢259) | - (9987¢€"2) (167860°1+7) (L£z'987'901) | (0cT'616'%6) | (G6T°ChLT0T) papaD swnnuaif
TL0'608'T91'LE | - $€0'S88'c PeT'6£9°/8F 0%C'e80°'G6T'8 | SP1'G0S°€89°9 | 967'964°259'1T SWNIWL] PIUIe SSOID)
Puroouy
uoneurnuI[y Wi, E2g |
Iel01L JuowSag yuswAodwy a[oyM wn> JUSWMOPYE | swmopug srenonIEg

1)Uy

ugarog

Jjuswmopuy

(€202 “91 A1nf) 080T ‘IE YpvYsY papua ivah ayy 1of uoypuriofu (vyuamsag (v

paredpnuy

83t arfifer wfereer Qowk /z0



0L6T9T90LOF | - S8LLOLYVE |- - 789°968°6ST | - L8ESI8BSEOT | SIEB60°0ST6 | L6LTTLD06°9T swoou] [eyuswidag [elo],
9€8°29T’8 1651 81C°ST 665016°T 8/5°L0€°T 068CT0°S awodU] BYIO

- - - - - - - - - (s9ss0T)/sures) pasijeay 1N

= = = = = = = = = wmmﬁwﬂU mﬂ~ﬁ> Ireq uo Awwo‘d\ﬁﬂmu 9N
GEE690°L6L°8 SL'9SL0SOT | - - €IL1€89C - $66°868TE0T | TI9LLTT6ET | 09TOTFFHE'S SUROT PUE SJUSUIISIAU] WIOIJ SUIOIU]
€TTCLY88ET = 5 = = 109°696°L0S 001°600°81Z TTS86VTIT‘T SI9POYADI[OJ 03 UBOT UO SWOIU] 3$2123U]
IE1°619°88¢ 9¢¢ 81 - - - - £90°€T8TL TOTTITCIT 979°699°€0CT awodu] 32311 BYIO
ST17°900°88 89%°60L°T = > 8ESP8E 0T = €TETTIIT €9€°G/8°ST €TLYI68E SWIOJU] UOISSTUIIOD)
0€0°LT8°SE0°SE | - €L9L8ETE |- - €ITSI9BIT | - €08F60°TTLL | S9S°OISTTOL | 9LLTITTSTIOT SWNIWAIJ pautey 1N
= = = = = = = = = = aNU2AYY JuawSag-1au]
(60L°955°€SF) - (T1TL€0%9) | - - (orteresr) | - (TISTSLTTT) (807°¢85°16) (L9¥°1£8°5TT) PapaD swnnwaid
6£L°€8€68¥°G¢E = S88YTH9E | - > YTe8T6LET = SIE9P8cE8L | €£6'660°€0T°L | €FTF80°8£°0C SWNIWI PauIey sso1n

uoneurUIg

" AEHQH

R,

9T

[woouy

urRJ, U,

bclitlo)

Juswurmopuy

juawdag e

R_YIO) juswkordurg 3[oym wnd Juawmopuy sIe[noIeJ

readg

ANA BB SRR B. . = = = = = = = - e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e - — = = —

Uy

mvﬁuaﬁo "

uSarog

Juswuimopuyg

(6£0T ‘9T Ai1nl) 6£0T “T€ YpvYsy papua svah ayy 1of uoypuriofu] (p3uamsas (q

£85'6£8'909'L91 | - €86'IH0SE | - 9z9'8€e’sL |- SIT'9L6'L0T'0F | EET'SETI6L'LT | 929'LHT'685°66 sanIqer juswdag

68€°907FTL69T | - 86L°LIT'6C |- 68€€60°99 - €69FC90IS’0F | T99'8T1699°1E | TSH'TSH ST L6 s3assYy Juawdag
6L£°9€€°L8T'Y - 8¥€LT9'ST | - €£9°967°6.LE - 108009'850°T STYFETITE 7€6'9L1°60S°C s3[nsay] [ejuawdag [ejo . m
s
0€€’09€°€SS’ LY | - 9€9°0IT'LT |- (€8s pe1’'s0) | - TTETOTTILOT | T6F'SLE'SL8'S | F9P°908°C16°LT sasuadxy reyuaw3ag [ejo L, 2
o
106709°CT - 766'ST - 0S6°¢6T - €11°956°C 890°66¥C LLL/6S6°L 150D 9dueUl] MW

e er0ceT’T - 02L'0LE - 96C'198% - P8¥'L6€CIE I8T'Z18°04T 7G8°965°€9L sasuadxg SuneradQ By0
- - - - - - - - - 898507 Juawareduy W
GET'T65'€9 - 6VL'FL - 795906 - T6V/LI8'ET 69T'189'TT 8ITITLE sasuadxg uoneziiowy pue uogepardaq %
vogeunung | (ug wy o311 -

3ag RYO) WIS L WIS L juswAorduyg 31 a[oypM wn) juswrmopuy juswMopuy ste[noIR g
7oL ek [ewads | omIN a[oyM paredpyuy :

R

SIYIO

uSrazog

Jjuswmopuy




el it ¢ |15 B L T | s = R T

LT6°096°S1TOVL | - 89515991 | - L66T8¥ 61T | - V6L€96°SE0TE | IFLSLITFIOT | TT8ISISO8°IS sanIqIqery juswdag
60SVISOILSET | - P66°18€°1T | - €86°9FSLVE | - 998°S0€‘9981€ | 6£9°08€1L9°ST | 98686101808 §19ssy Juawdag
0TS091°L9LT = (£0T‘SL6T6) | - CECSPTGET | - 1L¥°6LL°098 ST1S98°LST €LLTVTEOLT s)nsay [eyuaw3ag [ejof,
< < <

ISFT01°6€6'Sy | - €66°THLLTT | - LVEG09°LT - LI6°GE0°86V6 | 0LT°c€TT606 | o0 CBY E0TST sasuadxy [ejuowidag [e10],
- - - - - - - - 1S0D) ddURUI]

€80°56€°€€S‘T - 16LLLE9 - 8L1°TTT9 6€T°879°8TE 00S‘TS6STE GLESITLY sasuadxy SuneiadQ 1L2YIO
- - - - - - - - - $98s07 Juaumreduuy
€97°€99°6¥ - 06ZTF¥ - GL6°981 - 16260901 T09TTE0T LYIPIS8T sasuadxq uonezniowy pue uoneaidaq
98%°0L0°8€L = 717859 - PELBLLT = IFELI9LST €€8°SHT ST 99€‘0LLE€TY sasuadxq sygouag sakordwry
LYTIFP0SE - 86LF1€ - G89°681°T - €6ETVTLL 126TE10L 0S¥°€95°10T §99,] 901AIS
1S91L6°6TSE = 00£06T°€ - = = LOV*L16°€66 P18F9¥669F 0€£°818T90C sasuadxy uorssruwo))
0TL09S°LELLE | - 10TLSOLIT | - VLLOSTL - 98L°STO‘0E6°L | TOSLFITLOS | 9SH66S019°TT PI1INOU] SWI[D pue SJYIUdY 9N
B B B B B B ~ B B SI2INSUIY
0] PIPa)) SaNIQRIT 1oeIIUO0)) UI wmcwau

T16°S0LT6S €T - 806°LL9€T - (TE9'8TSTLT) T8TLSLYL6D | L9L0EOTITE | 9858SLFISET SOMI[IqRIT 30B1U0)) Ut dfuey)) $SOID)
(€16°ST9VSF) - (005°819°T) | - (96685T°09) (TeLTwsoL) (c€8‘16€°0TT) | (€58°€06°S6T) papaD swre)
12L0L¥ 665 F1 - €6LL66F0T1 | - 10¥°8066€T GETTISTEOT 695800186V | €TLFVLIFTS pred SWIe[) pue s)yaudg ssoIn
o = = = = = = - - Ssuwadxy

uoneunuITy W (WL wiy, Sy |
o], juawdag IP2Y30) WBL WHSL juawfojdury 231 d[oyM wn) juswmopuy judwmopuyg sIe[ndI3Ie g
L [epads | YO 3[0YyM pajedppuy :

Uy

s1YI0 ,

ugraiog

Jjuswumopuy

83t arfifer wfereer Qowk /z0



¢) Reconciliation of Segmental Profit with Statement of Profit or Loss

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Segmental Profit 4,287,336,379 2,767,160,520
Less: Employee Benefits expenses (329,140,192) (82,007,831)
Less: Depreciation and Amortization (7,065,795) (5,518,140)
Less: Other operating expenses (137,868,204) (168,183,001)
Less: Impairment losses 37,531,726 (176,311,282)
Less: Finance Cost (1,511,656) (14,161,977)
Add: Unallocable Other Income 833,513,521 120,272,765
Profit Before Tax 4,682,795,779 2,441,251,052

d) Reconciliation of Assets

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Segment Assets 169,724,406,389 138,716,814,509
Goodwill & Intangible Assets 828,983 890,547
Property and Equipment 15,550,648 21,308,781
Investment Properties 27,569,071 38,087,383
Deferred Tax Assets - 15,268,478
Investment in Subsidiaries 10,335,959 153,000,000
Investment in Associates

Investments 9,373,755,921 10,759,951,545
Loans 661,818,931 64,716,061
Current Tax Assets - 24,218,780
Other Assets 18,179,178 19,980,557
Other Financial Assets 331,111,145 359,793,384
Cash and Cash Equivalents 312,616,035 407,705,331
Total Assets 180,476,172,260 150,581,735,357

e) Reconciliation of Liabilities

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Segment Liabilities 167,606,839,587 140,218,960,927
Provisions 17,454,917 321,605,553
Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities 587,726,322
Deferred Tax Liabilities 159,152,915
Current Tax Liabilities 112,656,705
Other Financial Liabilities 126,857,699 178,317,838
Other Liabilities 70,424,382 161,481,274
Total Liabilities 168,681,112,527 140,880,365,592

53. Related Party Disclosure
(a) Identify Related Parties

Holding Company: The Company doesn’t have holding company for the fiscal year ended Ashadh
31, 2080 (16th July, 2023)

Subsidiaries: The Company have Invested 1,530,000 number of Shares of Rs. 100 each in Nepal Life
Capital Limited during the fiscal year ended Ashadh 32, 2079 (16th July, 2022)
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b)

(c) Related Party Transactions:

Associates: The Company doesn’t have holding company for the fiscal year ended Ashadh 31, 2080

(16th July, 2023)

Fellow Subsidiaries: The Company doesn’t have fellow subsidiaries for the fiscal year ended Ashadh

31, 2080 (16th July, 2023)
Key Management Personnel:

Mr. Govind Lal Sanghai
Mr. Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal

Mr. Vivek Agrawal

Mr. Sakti Kumar Golyan
Mr. Bimal Prasad Dhakal
Mr. Krishna Raj Lamichhane

Mrs. Parul Dhakal

Mr. Pravin Raman Parajuli

Mr. Amit Kumar Keyal

Key Management Personnel Compensation:

Director / Promoter Group
Director / Promoter Group
Director / Promoter Group
Director / Public

Director / Public
Independent Director
Chief Exexutive Officer
Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Short-term employee benefits 22,851,623 17,140,943
Post-employment benefits - -
Other long-term benefits - -
Termination benefits - -
Total 22,851,623 17,140,943

Payment to Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Annual salary and allowances

14,174,710

5,371,865

Performance based allowances

i) Employee Bonus

1,585,581

ii) Benefits as per prevailing provisions

100,913

1,932,497

iii) Incentives

Insurance related benefits

i) Life Insurance

ii) Accident Insurance

iii) Health Insurance (including family members)

Total

14,275,623

8,889,943

Particulars Lttt Subsidiaries | Associates Fe.ll(?w. R Total
Company Subsidiaries Personnel

Premium Earned

Current Year

Previous Year

Commission Income

Current Year
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Previous Year -

Rental Income

Current Year - = = - - _

Previous Year - - - - - _

Interest Income

Current Year - = = - - _

Previous Year - - - - - _

Sale of Property & Equipment

Current Year - = o - - _

Previous Year - - - - - _

Purchase of Property & Equipment

Current Year - = = - - -

Previous Year - - - - - _

Premium Paid

Current Year - = = - - -

Previous Year - - - - - _

Commission Expenses

Current Year = = = - - _

Previous Year - - - - - -

Dividend

Current Year = = = - - _

Previous Year - - - - - -

Meeting Fees

Current Year - 7,295,000 7,295,000
Previous Year - 6,976,000 6,976,000
Allowances to Directors

Current Year - 1,281,000 1,281,000
Previous Year - 1,275,000 1,275,000

Others (to be specified)

Current Year

Previous Year
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(d) Related Party Balances:

Particulars laEliy Subsidiaries | Associates Fe.llt?w' 1Koy MbnE ek Total
Company Subsidiaries Personnel

Receivables including Reinsurance Receivables

Current Year

Previous Year

Other Receivables (to be Specified)

Current Year

Previous Year

Payables including Reinsurance Payables

Current Year

Previous Year

Other Payables (to be Specified)

Current Year

Previous Year

54. Leases
(a) Leases as Lessee

(i) Operating Leases:

The Company has various operating leases ranging from 1 years to 10 years from 2022 to 2032 The
company has not entered into any of Non-cancellable lease agreement. The leases are renewable
by mutual consent and contain escalation clause. Rental expenses for operating leases recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year is NPR 61,171,83 (Ashadh 32, 2079/ July 16, 2022:

NPR 86,124,161.94).

Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below.

Future Minimum Lease Payments Current Year Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year 33,278,492 65,323,689
ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 155,433,670 156,353,819
iii) Later than 5 years 33,808,418 14,236,195

(ii) Finance Lease:

The Company holds assets under finance leases. Future minimum lease payments and lease liability

at the end of the year is given below:

Future Minimum Lease Payments Current Year Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year

ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

iii) Later than 5 years

Total Future Minimum Lease Payments

Less: Effect of Discounting

Finance lease liability recognised
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(b) Leases as Lessor

(i) Operating Lease:

The Company has leased out certain office spaces of its assets-"Investment Property" that are

renewable on a periodic basis. Rental income received during the year in respect of operating lease
is NPR 69,732,659 (Ashadh 32 2079/ July 16, 2022: NPR 56,813,949). Generally, the company has
practice of providing the space for one year and rent agreement has been executed accordingly.

Details of assets given on operating lease as at year end are as below.

Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below

Future Minimum Lease Income Current Year Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year

ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

iii) Later than 5 years

(ii) Finance Lease:

The Company has given assets under finance leases. At the year end receivables under finance lease
agreements fall due as follows:

Current Year Previous Year

Unearned
Finance
Income

Unearned
Finance
Income

Particulars

Net Gross
Investment | Investment

Net
Investment

Gross
Investment

i) Not Later than 1 year - - - - - -

ii) Later than 1 year and
not later than 5 years

iii) Later than 5 years - - - - - -
Total - - - > > -

55. Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed in capital accounts and not provided for

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Property and Equipment - -

Investment Properties = =

Goodwill & Intangible Assets - -

Total - -

56. Contingent Liabilities

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed in capital accounts and not provided for (net of
advances).

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts - -

a) Income Tax - -

b) Indirect Taxes - -

c) Others (to be Specified) = -

Total - -
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57. Events occuring after Balance Sheet

There are no any adjusting events after balance sheet date.

58. Assets Pledged as Security (only if pledged)

The carrying amount of assets pledged as security are:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Reinsurance Receivables - -

Investments in equity -

Fixed Deposits -

Property and Equipment = -

Others (to be Specified) - -

Total -

59. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The company has allocated fund for Corporate Social Responsibility as per Insurer's financial statement
related directives, 2080. The fund has been utilized for different CSR initiatives as per the provision of
Corporate social responsibility mentioned in Insurers Corporate Good Governance Directives, 2075.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Opening Provision 898,904 -
Less: Utilization of reserve (711,804)
Addition: Transfer from retaining earnings 20,996,073 898,904

Add/Less: Others -

Closing Balance of reserve 20,996,073 898,904

60. Miscellaneous

(i) All amounts are in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated.

(if) All figures are in the Nearest Rupee & Rounded off.
61. Others (to be specified)

None.

83t arfifer wfereer Qowk /z0 @



Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited

MAJOR FINANCIAL INDICATOR

Annexure III

Particular Indicators
2079/80 2078/79 2077/78 2076/77 2075/76

1 | Net worth NPR | 11,795,059,734 | 9,701,369,764 | 11,041,485,154 | 9,225,337,123 | 9,144,232,023
2 | Number of Shares No.s 82,079,666 82,079,665 71,999,707 71,999,707 54,961,608
3 | Book value per shares NPR 144 118 135 128 166
4 | Net Profit NPR | 2,011,223,910 156,061,777 | 1,964,067,798 | 1,108,130,708 | 1,336,303,963
5 | Earning per Shares (EPS) NPR 25 2 24 15 24
6 | Dividend per Shares (DPS) NPR - 15.79 14.74 51.00
7 | Market Price per Shares (MPPS) NPR 744 747 1,919 1,260 901
8 | Price Earning Ratio (PE Ratio) Ratio 30.36 393 80 82 37
9 | Change in Equity % 21.58% -11.60% 19.69% 0.89% -5.64%
10 | Return on Equity % 17.05% 1.60% 17.79% 12.01% 14.61%
11 | Capital to Total Net Assets Ratio % 69.59% 84.61% 64.96% 77.70% 59.37%
12 Capital to Technical Reserve o 510% 6.13%

Ratio
13 | Affiliate Ratio %

Business:

First Year Premium Growth Rate %

Endowment % -14.94% -31.37% -10.78% 6.67% 82.02%

Anticipated Endowment % -42.06% -2.76% -13.79% -30.57% 17.85%

Endowment Cum Whole Life % -33.10% 19.43% 57.96% -12.63% 38.92%
14 | Whole Life %

Foreign Employment Term % 253.47% 198.22% -75.85% -8.36% -39.28%

Micro Term %

Special Term %

Othes( Other Term) % 10.84% 345.66% -7.11% 27.21% 22.31%

Renewal Premium Growth Rate %

Endowment % 7.11% 23.44% 36.98% 52.49% 48.69%

Anticipated Endowment % 0.87% 4.64% 15.63% 2.58% 19.73%

Endowment Cum Whole Life % 22.73% 25.61% 30.83% 25.76% 37.50%
15 | Whole Life %

Foreign Employment Term %

Micro Term %

Special Term %

Othes( Other Term) % 79.40% -9.32% -38.35% -0.30% -17.35%

Single Premium Growth Rate %

Endowment % 630.20% -86.74% -46.39% 54.71% 81.77%

Anticipated Endowment % -33.09% 255.59% 177.93% 209.05% -46.39%
16 | Endowment Cum Whole Life %

Whole Life

%

Foreign Employment Term

%

Micro Term

%
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S. . .
N Particular Indicators
: 2079/80 2078/79 2077/78 2076/77 2075/76

Special Term %
Othes( Other Term) % -100.00% -100.00%

17 IT{ZEI Direct Premium Growth % 472% 9.65% 17.02% 19.68% 42.92%

g | 2led o P Gz % 98.24% 98.72% 98.71% 98.64% 98.74%
Insurance Premium

19 | Reinsurance Ratio %
Reinsurance Commission

20 | Income/ Gross Reinsurance % 21.35% 19.40% 6.08% 22.75% 22.06%
Premium

o1 | Gross Premium Revenue/ % 315.07% 365.82% 292.02% 298.48% 249.65%
Equity

22 | Net Premium Revenue/ Equity % 309.54% 361.14% 288.25% 294.41% 246.50%

23 | Gross Insurance Premium/Total % 20.59% 23.57% 25.43% 27.19% 29.74%
Assets

24 | Return on Revenue % 5.51% 0.28% 4.54% 3.11% 4.49%

25 | NetProfit/ Gross Insurance % 5.41% 0.27% 6.07% 4.01% 5.78%
Premium

26 | Return on Investments % 10.14% 9.47 % 9.22% 10.64% 10.41%
Expenses:

g7 | Management expenses/ Direct % 6.66% 7.80% 8.49% 10.06% 1036%
Insurance Premium

2g | Agent Related Expenses/ Total % 71.50% 73.39% 78.22% 78.35% 79.05%
Management expenses

0 | e CagEa % 42.02% 29.63% 27.61% 27.08% 24.15%
Management expenses

30 | Agent Related Expenses/ Direct % 11.33% 13.69% 1617% 17.82% 18.58%
Insurance Premium

gyl || ECTEyER gy N Amt. 1,716,561 1,246,674 1,243,527 1,235,548 1,061,103
Employees

32 | Expense Ratio % 16.24% 18.47% 20.78% 23.00% 23.81%

33 | Commission Ratio % 8.37% 9.95% 11.01% 11.72% 12.19%

34 E;fgt Business Acquisition % 55.38% 61.18% 70.06% 78.00% 75.92%

35 | Operating Expense Ratio % 6.20% 7.04% 8.45% 10.01% 10.36%
Assets:

36 | Increment in Investment held % 20.29% 40.09% 23.34% 25.53% 12.49%

37 | Return on Assets % 1.11% 0.10% 1.54% 1.09% 1.72%

oy | Loy s s e Lo % 95.01% 66.87% 49.72% 55.52% 70.58%
Investments

39 | Short term Investments/Total % 4.99% 33.13% 50.28% 44.48% 29.42%
Investments

ol e e edronr Aees % 103.97% 103.44% 101.01% 96.68% 99.56%
Insurance Contract Liabilities
Investment in Unlisted Shares o o o o o o

41| Debtors, Total Net Assets % 0.74% 0.01% 0.01% 1.78% 3.31%

ap | Bovesiiinsntiin Sieties Toell NG % 0.00% 58.77% 51.73% 44.48°% 44.75%
Assets

43 | Agentloan / Number of Agents Per agent 1,414 2,347 6,355 4,593 4,054

44 | Liquidity Ratio % 201% 199.5% 325.2% 333.9% 496.8%
Liabilities:
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Fiscal Year

2079/80 2078/79 2077/78 2076/77 2075/76

; Particular Indicators
45 [ Solvency Margin % 322% 347% 262% 272% 348%
46 | hcrementin (ross Insurance % 20.02% 20.95% 28.26% 32.73% 2852%
Net Technical Reserve/ Average
Net Premium of Previous 3 %
Years
Endowment % 471.52% 416.24% 362.76% 324.24% 320.51%
Anticipated Endowment % 396.58% 387.55% 350.76 % 289.99% 255.25%
o7 Endowment Cum Whole Life % 523.73% 500.91% 468.78 % 411.65% 380.52%
Whole Life %
Foreign Employment Term % 53.46% 189.37% 286.83% 266.50% 107.34%
Micro Term %
Special Term %
Othes( Other Term) % 65.70% 81.11% 64.00%
48 | Actuarial Provision Amt.
49 Egﬁ;“l g ons) Lokl % 1364% 1380% 985% 921% 696%
50 | Insurance Debt/ Total Equity %
51 | Outstanding Claim/ Claim Paid % 8.84% 12.13% 24.96% 23.26% 10.13%
50 No. o.f Outstandi.ng Claim/ No. o 32% 60% 799% 65%
of Intimated Claims
53 | Total Number of Inforce Policies No.s 1,159,583 1,054,691 1,381,433 1,304,632 1,280,636
54 | Lapse Ratio % 4.55% 5.35% 3.88% 5.52% 3.40%
Number of Renewed Policy/
55 | Last Year's Total Number of In % 89.25% 71.51% 72.61% 87.08% 80.47 %
Force Policies
56 ?;:ﬁ’f}flgfg:rﬁéﬁ;esoiZilTo/hcy % 011% 0.17% 0.09% 0.06% 0.07%
57 | Declared Bonus Rate Per'000 Rs50-Rs 85| Rs50-Rs85 Rs56-Rs 82| Rs56-Rs82| Rs62-Rs82
58 | Interim Bonus Rate Per'000 Rs 50 - Rs 85
Others:
59 | Number of Offices No.s 198 195 199 197 179
60 | Number of Agents No.s 223,744 207,294 185,739 157,645 127,883
61 | Number of Employees No.s 606 663 634 610 545
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Promoter share pledged as on Ashad end 2080

Name Share Name Share
units units

Basu Dev Golyan 893126 Mahesh Kumar Agrawal 31920
2 |Narayan Prasad Mundara 511690 32 |Pratik Jalan 31000
3 [Shashi Kant Agrawal 378000 33 |Vishal Agrawal 30723
4 | Anant Kumar Golyan 310000 34 |Mahesh Kumar Agrawal 30363
5 |Pradip Kumar Murarka 264039 35 [Sumit Agrawal 30000
6 Prudential Capital Management 250000 36 |Bijaya Kumar Agrawal 25388
Company Pvt. Ltd. ,
37 |Sushil Gupta 21000
7 |Pawan Kumar Golyan 210000
38 |Prem Bahadur Baral 20518
8 [Shankar Lal Agrawal 189000 . )
39 |Suraj Adhikary 19798
9 [Amit Agrawal 176176
40 |Surendra Kumar Goel 18080
10 | Satish Kumar More 175373 :
41 |Rajendra Kumar Agrawal 17733
11 | Ashok Kumar Agrawal 158944 )
42 |Raj Kumar Baral 17420
12 |Shankar Lal Agrawal 158000 - -
43 |Mahendra Kumar Bhimsaria 16424
13 |Ram Awatar Agrawal 150000 )
44 |Dipesh Bahadur Dhoubanzar 14746
14 |Jaishree Golchha 125445 .
45 |Roshani Maiya Dhoubanzar 14746
15 |Prakash Bikram Khatri 113815 ]
46 |Nand Kishor Sharma 14531
16 |Shiv Ratan Agarwal 104644 )
47 |Sanjeeb Kumar Dahal 14479
17 | Anjali Sarawogi 104117 i
48 |Lalit Sarda 12070
18 | Ashok Kumar Agrawal 101000 i
49 |Bharat Regmi 11642
19 |Bodh Prasad Tripathi 100781 - -
50 [Anjan Bhandari 11135
20 |Renu Mittal 99822
51 |Pawan Kumar Saraf 10458
21 |Saurav Garg 82095 )
52 |Vivek Agarwal 9657
Shree Ganesh I> ti d
2 | e pernesan 66550 53 |Poonam Goel 9017
23 |Sanjay Kumar Sureka 63269 54 |Keshav Tuladhar 8718
24 | Linu Tuladhar 57558 55 |Sumitra Sharma 8208
25 |Jayant Kumar Agrawal 51520 56 |Dinesh Aryal 7154
26 |Ram Awatar Agrawal 43077 57 |Sumitra Sharma 6014
- Captive Investment Company 41986 58 | Binod Prasad Dulal 5700
Pvt. Ltd. 59 |Shyam Chokhani 5279
28 |Suresh Kumar Agrawal 41846 60 |Ravi Kumar Agrawal 3548
29 |Nand Kishor Sharma 32118 61 |Pradeep Krishna Manandhar 3252
30 |Pramila Devi Agrawal 32000 620 [ShovalNishra 1924
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ACTUARIAL VALUATION FY79/80 (AS AT 16 JULY 2023)

Certification by Appointed Actuary

ACTUARY’S CERTIFICATE

I, Philip Jackson, do hereby certify that:

1. I have applied such tests as | consider reasonable to satisfy myself about the accuracy and
completeness of the database on business in force used in my valuation;

2. | have valued the liabilities in compliance with the Valuation Directive 2077 for Life Insurers and
Insurance Act 2079 (2022) issued by Insurance Regulatory Authority of Nepal (NIA) to the extent
they are applicable to the valuation; and

3. | have valued the liabilities in respect of products for which the basis of valuation is not
prescribed, on a basis, which | consider appropriate and adequate.

/ g&’%\

Philip Jackson
Fellow of the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries

14 March 2024

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited 40 14 March 2024

Jibh
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